
1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49004 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
www.ktwp.org 

   

 

 

 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda 
February 12, 2024 

 7:30 P.M. 
 

The “Regular Meeting” of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of Kalamazoo will be held at  
7:30 p.m., on Monday, February 12, 2024, at the Kalamazoo Township Hall to discuss and act on the 
below-listed items and any other business that may legally come before the Board of Trustees of the 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo.  

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86025457296?pwd=ZjNWMkZXZUlXYlRRaDU5SWJtUENOQT09 

 

Meeting ID: 860 2545 7296                    Passcode: 718656 

Find your local number:  
 

h�ps://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcRjM75Gn7 

 

Meeting ID: 860 2545 7296                        Passcode: 718656 

 
 

1 – Call to Order 

2 – Pledge of Allegiance  

3 – Roll Call of Board Members 

4 – Addition/Deletions to Agenda (Any member of the public, board, or staff may ask that any 
item on the consent agenda be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for a full discus-
sion. Such requests will be automatically respected.) 

5 – Public Comment on Agenda and Non-agenda Items (Each person may use three (3) minutes 
for remarks. If your remarks extend beyond 3 minutes, please provide your comments in writing 
and they will be distributed to the board. The public comment period is for the Board to listen to 
your comments. Please begin your comments with your name and address.) 

6 – Consent Agenda (The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items to be dealt with in one Board Motion without discussion.) 

     Approval of:  

A. Minutes of December 11, 2023, Board of Trustees Work Session 
B. Minutes of December 11, 2023, Board of Trustees Board Meeting  
C. Payment of Bills in the Amount of $ 190,486.78 

 
      Receipt of: 



Kalamazoo Township Board meetings are open to all without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, or disability.  Individuals with disabilities requiring 
special assistance must contact the Township, giving five business days’ notice by writing or calling: Donald Martin, Charter Township of Kalamazoo 

Supervisor, 1720 Riverview Drive, Kalamazoo, MI  49004-1099. Telephone:  (269) 381-8085  

A. Check Distribution—January 2024 
B. Check Register—January 2024 
C. KABA Report—January 2024 
D. Fire Report – December 2023 
E. Planning Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals Work Plan Report -2024 

7    Public Hearing/Presentation   

  A. Presentation on Community Survey 

8     Old Business 

9  New Business  

A. Resolution to Adopt the 2022 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
B. Request to Approve the Agreement with Williams Architects 
C. Request to Approve MDOT Performance Resolution for Municipalities 
D. Request to Approve the Hiring Full-Time FF/EO 24-hour position 
E. Request to Approve to enter into Federal Grant with RCKC for Traffic Pre-Emption System 

 
10 – Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 

 

11 – Board Member Reports 

Trustee Glass 

Trustee Leuty 

Trustee Miller 

Trustee Robinson 

Clerk Mackie 

Treasurer Miller 

Supervisor Martin 

     12 – Attorney Report 

     13 – Public Comments 

     14 – Adjournment 

 

      Posted: February 9, 2024 

 

       Think Green 
 Don Martin 

Kalamazoo Township Supervisor 
 



1 

 

Charter Township of Kalamazoo 1 

Minutes of a Board of Trustees Work Session 2 

Held on December 11, 2023 @ 5:30 p.m. 3 

 4 

A work session meeting of the Kalamazoo Charter Township Board of Trustees was conducted on 5 

December 11, 2023, commencing at 5:30 p.m., at the Kalamazoo Charter Township Hall.  6 

 7 

Call to Order: 8 

 9 

Supervisor Martin called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  10 

 11 

Present were:  12 

 13 

Don Martin – Supervisor 14 

Lisa Mackie – Clerk 15 

Mark Miller – Trustee 16 

Sherine Miller – Treasurer 17 

Steven Leuty – Trustee 18 

 19 

Also, present was Township Attorney, Seth Koches; and Township Fire Marshal, Todd; and, Police 20 

Chief Bryan Ergang Kowalski. 21 

 22 

Absent were:    23 

 24 

Ashley Glass – Trustee  25 

Clara Robinson – Trustee 26 

 27 

A. Discussion on a Proposed New IFT District 28 

 29 

The first item on the agenda was discussion of creating an industrial development district. An 30 

application for an industrial facilities tax exemption was submitted by Consumers Concrete 31 

Corporation. Attorney Seth Koches said that the first step of the process was to create an 32 

industrial development district. Koches said that a public hearing will be held at the 7:00 p.m. 33 

Board meeting and the Board may adopt a resolution approving the district. The Board and 34 

Koches discussed the tax advantages of a manufacturing facility requesting an industrial facilities 35 

tax exemption.  36 

 37 

B. Discussion on Flock License Plate Reader (LPR) Program Implementation. 38 

 39 

The next item on the agenda was discussion regarding Flock License Plate Readers. Police Chief 40 

Bryan Ergang said that Flock is used across the nation with great results. Ergang said that Flock 41 

allows to view videos, which may contain crimes and has been used by some policing jurisdictions 42 

within Kalamazoo County with positive results. Ergang said that Flock is used as a crime 43 

prevention measure. Flock doesn’t retain video; instead, it monitors vehicle and does not contain 44 



2 

 

facial recognition technology. Ergang said that the proposed agreement is for 2 years of service 1 

at a cost of approximately $78,000.  2 

 3 

Martin and Ergang discussed which policing agencies within Kalamazoo County utilize Flock. 4 

Leuty and Mackie discussed potential misuse of the system and Ergang discussed safeguards in 5 

place to reduce concerns of potential misuse. M. Miller and Ergang discussed how Flock helps 6 

prevent crimes. Ergang said Flock allows the police department to track direction of travel and 7 

helps narrow the search for vehicles used in crimes. Mackie discussed concerns regarding privacy 8 

rights and mass data collection.  9 

 10 

C. Discussion on depositories for Township Funds. 11 

 12 

The next item on the agenda was discussion on depositories for Township Funds. Treasurer S. 13 

Miller discussed several financial institutions contained in a resolution that will be considered by 14 

the Township Board at the 7:30 p.m. Board meeting to be designated as the list of depositories 15 

of the Township. 16 

 17 

D. Public Comment. 18 

 19 

None. 20 

 21 

 22 

Supervisor Martin adjourned the work session at 5:57 p.m.  23 

 24 

s/ T. Seth Koches 25 

       Seth Koches, Township Attorney 26 

 27 



1 

 

Charter Township of Kalamazoo 1 

Minutes of a Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 2 

Held on December 11, 2023 @ 7:30 p.m. 3 

 4 

A regular meeting of the Kalamazoo Charter Township Board of Trustees was conducted on 5 

December 11, 2023, commencing at 7:30 p.m., at the Kalamazoo Charter Township Hall.  6 

 7 

Call to Order: 8 

 9 

Supervisor Martin called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  10 

 11 

Pledge of Allegiance 12 

 13 

The Board said the Pledge of Allegiance. 14 

 15 

Roll Call of Board Members  16 

 17 

- Present were:  18 

 19 

Don Martin – Supervisor 20 

Lisa Mackie – Clerk  21 

Mark Miller – Trustee  22 

Sherine Miller – Treasurer  23 

Clara Robinson – Trustee  24 

Steve Leuty – Trustee  25 

 26 

Also, present was Township Fire Marshal, Todd Kowalski; Township Police Chief, Ergang; 27 

Township Attorney, Seth Koches; and, approximately five (5) interested members of the public. 28 

 29 

- Absent was:    30 

 31 

Ashley Glass 32 

 33 

Upon motion of Martin, supported by S. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, Trustee Glass was excused from 34 

the meeting. 35 

 36 

Additions/Deletions to Agenda 37 

 38 

The Board members received their agenda packet prior to the meeting. The Board made no 39 

additions or deletions to the agenda items.  40 

 41 

Public Comment 42 

 43 

None. 44 



2 

 

Consent Agenda 1 

 2 

The next matter was consideration of the Consent Agenda. Supervisor Martin summarized the 3 

consent agenda. 4 

 5 

Upon motion of Mackie, supported by S. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Board approved the consent 6 

agenda as presented. 7 

 8 

 9 

Public Hearings. 10 

 11 

Next on the agenda was a public hearing for the creation of a new Industrial Development District 12 

for Consumers Concrete. Supervisor Martin opened the public hearing and welcomed members 13 

of the public to make comment. Attorney Koches summarized the IDD creation procedure. No 14 

public comment was made and the public hearing was closed.  15 

 16 

A public hearing on the proposed IFT exemption for Consumers Concrete was scheduled for 17 

January 8, 2024, at 7:30 p.m. at the Township Hall.  18 

 19 

Old Business 20 

 21 

None. 22 

 23 

New Business 24 

 25 

A. Request to approve the new position in assessing.  26 

 27 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of a request for approval of the deputy assessor 28 

job description and proposed salary range. The Board discussed the current shortage of assessors 29 

and reviewed the proposed job description.  30 

 31 

Upon motion of M. Miller, supported by S. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board approved 32 

the job description and salary range for a deputy assessor as presented.  33 

 34 

B. Request to adopt the 2024 operating budget. 35 

 36 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of a request for approval of the proposed 37 

operating budget for the Township for Fiscal Year 2024. The Board mentioned that the proposed 38 

budget includes a 3% increase in pay for non-union employees. The Board also discussed fire 39 

capital improvements and the police budget.  40 

 41 

Upon motion of Leuty, supported by M. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board approved the 42 

proposed operating budget for Fiscal Year 2024, as presented.  43 

 44 



3 

 

C. Request to appoint Township Engineer, Mike Schwartz, as the Township’s Wellhead 1 

Protection Administrator.  2 

 3 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of the request to appoint Township Engineer, 4 

Mike Schwartz, as the Township’s Wellhead Protection Administrator. The Board discussed the 5 

recommendation and agreed to appoint Mike Schwartz to that role.  6 

 7 

Upon motion of Martin, supported by Leuty, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board appointed 8 

Township Engineer, Mike Schwartz, to serve as the Township’s Wellhead Protection 9 

Administrator.  10 

 11 

D. Request to adopt Ordinance No. 638, being the Township’s Wellhead Protection 12 

Ordinance.  13 

 14 

The next item on the agenda was a request to adopt the proposed Ordinance No. 638, a Wellhead 15 

Protection Ordinance.  16 

 17 

Upon motion of M. Miller, supported by Leuty, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board adopted the 18 

Wellhead Protection Ordinance, as presented, as Ordinance No. 638.  19 

 20 

E. Request to adopt a Resolution to Establish an Industrial Development District for 21 

Consumers Concrete. 22 

 23 

The next item on the agenda was a request to adopt a Resolution to Establish an Industrial 24 

Development District for Consumers Concrete.  25 

 26 

Upon motion of Leuty, supported by M. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board adopted the 27 

Resolution to Establish an Industrial Development District for Consumers Concrete.  28 

 29 

F. Request to approve the Resolution Authorizing Depositories of Township Funds.  30 

The next item on the agenda was a request to adopt a Resolution Authorizing Depositories of 31 

Township Funds. Leuty introduced the resolution and explained that it is a standard yearly 32 

process to approve the Township depositories and summarized a list of the financial depositories.  33 

Upon motion of S. Miller, supported by Mackie, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board adopted the 34 

Resolution Authorizing Depositories of Township Funds.  35 

 36 

G. Request to approve the year-end budget adjustments.  37 

 38 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of a request to approve the year-end budget 39 

adjustments. S. Miller discussed the amendments and inter-fund transfers.  40 

 41 



4 

 

Upon motion of S. Miller, supported by Robinson, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board approved 1 

the year-end budget adjustments, as presented.   2 

 3 

H. Request to authorize the Township Police Chief to sign an agreement to purchase and 4 

implement 11 Flock license plate readers.  5 

 6 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of a request to authorize the Township Police 7 

Chief to sign an agreement to purchase and implement 11 Flock license plate readers. Police 8 

Chief, Bryan Ergang, discussed the request and the utility of the Flock license plate readers. 9 

Ergang mentioned that the system is cloud-based software that helps tracking for investigations.  10 

 11 

Upon motion of Robinson, supported by S. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board authorized 12 

the Township Police Chief to sign an agreement for 11 Flock license plate readers for a term of 2 13 

years at a cost of $78,150.    14 

 15 

I. Request to approve the purchase of turnout gear replacement.  16 

 17 

The next item on the agenda was consideration of the request to approve the purchase of 18 

replacement turnout gear for the Township Fire Department. The Township Fire Marshal, Todd 19 

Kowalski, explained the purpose of the request to replace the obsolete equipment.   20 

 21 

Upon motion of Robinson, supported by Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board authorized 22 

the Township Fire Marshal to purchase the new turnout gear at a purchase price of $27,598.  23 

 24 

J. Request to adopt a Resolution Eliminating Water Connection Fees.  25 

 26 

The next item on the agenda was a request for an approval of a Resolution Eliminating Water 27 

Connection Fees. S. Miller discussed that the Township has not received many recent requests 28 

for water hook-ups.  29 

Upon motion of M. Miller, supported by S. Miller, and a 6-0 vote, the Township Board adopted 30 

the Resolution Eliminating Water Connection Fees.  31 

 32 

Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 33 

 34 

Nothing was removed from the Consent Agenda.  35 

Board member reports.  36 

Leuty provided updates from the Planning Commission and discussed the master plan.  37 

M. Miller wished those in attendance happy holidays and looked to re-focus as a Board in 2024. 38 

Robinson did not have anything to report.  39 



5 

 

Mackie discussed elections and her need for election inspectors. She invited any interested 1 

parties to contact the Clerk’s Office.  2 

S. Miller thanked Consumers Concrete for attending the Board meeting and wished everyone a 3 

happy holiday.  4 

Supervisor Martin wished everyone a happy holiday and discussed challenging issues around 5 

the world.  6 

Attorney Report.  7 

Attorney Koches did not have anything to report to the Board.  8 

Public Comments. 9 

Adrian Hydema resident spoke and they thanked the Board.  10 

Adjournment.  11 

The Township Board adjourned the meeting 8:10 p.m.  12 

 13 

s/ T. Seth Koches 14 

       Seth Koches, Township Attorney 15 

 16 



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 1/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKGIS MAINTENANCE
NOpen91.75 91.75 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41498

79870

91.75 CONSTRUCTION COSTS807-535-972.00

02/08/2024MONICAK2024 SANITARY CCTV
NOpen223.75 223.75 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41499

79600

223.75 ENGINEERING FEES807-535-946.00

02/08/2024MONICAKWOODWARD/WINDING WAY LIFT STATIONS
NOpen3,893.00 3,893.00 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41500

79614

3,893.00 CONSTRUCTION COSTS807-535-972.00

02/08/2024MONICAK1251 SHAKESPEARE AVE - SPR
NOpen992.25 992.25 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41501

79898

992.25 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

02/08/2024MONICAKAGOL MAP MIGRATION
NOpen770.50 770.50 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41502

79872

256.82 ENGINEERING SERVICES101-257-946.00
256.84 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-261-754.00
256.84 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC206-336-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKGEN SANITARY
NOpen507.25 507.25 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41503

79611

507.25 ENGINEERING FEES807-535-946.00

02/08/2024MONICAKNON-MOTORIZED PROJECTS
NOpen9,633.20 9,633.20 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41504

79894

9,633.20 SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE101-446-986.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCALIBER COLLISION - SPR
NOpen143.00 143.00 02/07/202402/07/2024PREIN & NEWHOF, INC.41505

79899

143.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen337.97 337.97 02/07/202402/07/2024MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST41506

03301

337.97 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-752.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen54.93 54.93 02/07/202402/07/2024MENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST41507

03519

54.93 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-754.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 2/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

12/31/2023MONICAKPLANNING/ZONING ADMIN
NOpen5,330.00 5,330.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41508

21-028-32

5,330.00 PLANNING CONSULTANT101-701-801.00

12/31/2023MONICAK316 W MOSEL
NOpen115.00 115.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41509

21-028-32A

115.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

12/31/2023MONICAK3735 FRANKLIN STREET
NOpen172.50 172.50 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41510

21-028-32B

172.50 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

12/31/2023MONICAK2017 N BURDICK
NOpen82.00 82.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41511

21-028-32C

82.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

12/31/2023MONICAK2609 N BURDICK
NOpen256.25 256.25 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41512

21-028-32D

256.25 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

12/31/2023MONICAK4629 WINDING WAY
NOpen41.00 41.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41513

21-028-32E

41.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

12/31/2023MONICAK1100 FOSTER
NOpen27.00 27.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.41514

21-028-32F

27.00 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen139.90 139.90 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41515

346090

139.90 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen116.45 116.45 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41516

347184

116.45 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen32.56 32.56 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41517

459468

32.56 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 3/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKBELT
NOpen17.95 17.95 02/07/202402/07/2024SHARP SHOP41518

1536

17.95 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-931.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen24.31 24.31 02/07/202402/07/2024STEENSMA LAWN & POWER EQUIPMENT41519

1095680

24.31 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-931.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen77.84 77.84 02/07/202402/07/2024LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.41520

71029

77.84 REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS206-336-930.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen91.88 91.88 02/07/202402/07/2024LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.41521

01459

91.88 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen196.13 196.13 02/07/202402/07/2024LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.41522

71867

196.13 REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS206-336-930.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #530031860760
NOpen1,022.04 1,022.04 02/07/202402/07/2024DELL MARKETING, L.P.41523

10728602251

1,022.04 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT101-261-985.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #1000 0018 2830
NOpen13,501.80 13,501.80 02/07/202402/07/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY41524

206614395347

13,501.80 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC219-448-920.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #1000 2066 4423
NOpen6,960.88 6,960.88 02/07/202402/07/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY41525

202254217218

6,960.88 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC219-448-920.00

02/08/2024MONICAKWATER/SEWER
NOpen182.46 182.46 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER41526

013124

182.46 UTILITIES - WATER101-261-918.00

02/08/2024MONICAKPROPERTY INSPECTIONS
NOpen600.00 600.00 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY41527

24-06-01

600.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-372-801.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 4/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen262.24 262.24 02/07/202402/07/2024INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC41528

2550274-0

262.24 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-261-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen17.56 17.56 02/07/202402/07/2024INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC41529

2550280-0

17.56 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-261-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKOFFICE 365
NOpen924.00 924.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ECF DATA, LLC41530

INV-04003-M5H8X6

462.00 SOFTWARE MAINT AGREEMENTS101-261-933.00
462.00 LEIN BILLING207-301-933.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen117.08 117.08 02/07/202402/07/2024STEENSMA LAWN & POWER EQUIPMENT41531

1097088

117.08 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-754.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen116.96 116.96 02/07/202402/07/2024STEENSMA LAWN & POWER EQUIPMENT41532

1095687

116.96 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-754.00

12/31/2023MONICAKREPAIR - STATION 3
NOpen1,103.29 1,103.29 02/07/202402/07/2024R.W. LAPINE, INC.41533

55679

1,103.29 REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS206-336-930.00

02/08/2024MONICAKFLOOR DRAIN
NOpen106.00 106.00 02/07/202402/07/2024CONSUMERS CONCRETE CORPORATION41534

36159

106.00 REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS206-336-930.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSENSOR
NOpen102.57 102.57 02/07/202402/07/2024WEST MICHIGAN INTERNATIONAL41535

X103114675:01

102.57 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKBACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONS
NOpen1,220.00 1,220.00 02/07/202402/07/2024JANET JOY ERLANDSON41536

013124

1,220.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC206-336-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKNOTICES
NOpen516.10 516.10 02/07/202402/07/2024MLIVE MEDIA GROUP41537

0010814701

516.10 PUBLIC NOTICES101-701-903.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 5/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKCLIENT #120007379
NOpen85.00 85.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS41538

120639678

85.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-265-801.00

12/31/2023MONICAKFSA/HRA ADMIN FEE
NOpen240.00 240.00 02/07/202402/07/2024BURNHAM & FLOWER INSURANCE GROUP41539

BFG-824169

240.00 OTHER FEES101-261-820.00

12/31/2023MONICAKPROFESSIONAL SERVICES
NOpen3,500.00 3,500.00 02/07/202402/07/2024BENDZINSKI & CO41540

4833

3,500.00 LEGAL SERVICES861-446-802.00

02/08/2024MONICAKVOTER ID CARD MAILING
NOpen1,894.10 1,894.10 02/07/202402/07/2024KCI41541

330904

1,230.97 PURCHASED CLEANING SERV.101-215-801.00
663.13 POSTAGE101-215-851.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSECURE SHREDDING
NOpen104.29 104.29 02/07/202402/07/2024WEST MICHIGAN DOCUMENT41542

138757

52.15 AUDIT SERVICES101-261-801.00
52.14 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKVAT CARDS
NOpen49.39 49.39 02/07/202402/07/2024ELECTION SYSTEMS &41543

CD2074516

49.39 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-215-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #3-0249-0100499
NOpen226.85 226.85 02/07/202402/07/2024REPUBLIC SERVICES #24941544

0249-008109987

226.85 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-261-919.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #3-0249-0094822
NOpen1,408.30 1,408.30 02/07/202402/07/2024REPUBLIC SERVICES #24941545

0249-008109917

690.16 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-261-919.00
174.82 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.11
174.82 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.14
174.82 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.12
84.27 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-567-919.00
36.47 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-751-919.00
36.47 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-751-919.00
36.47 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.13

12/31/2023MONICAKBLUEPRINT SCANNING
NOpen42,732.00 42,732.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ABRAXAS41546

10716



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 6/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

42,732.00 CONTINGENT EXPENSES101-966-999.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen44.06 44.06 02/07/202402/07/2024MULDER'S LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES41547

R18427

44.06 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT101-265-752.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #3-0249-0303078
NOpen46,254.46 46,254.46 02/07/202402/07/2024REPUBLIC SERVICES #24941548

0249-008115702

46,254.46 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC226-528-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSCREENING - KAMPHOUSE
NOpen150.00 150.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ROBERT LAMSON, LLC41549

4228

150.00 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSCREENINGS
NOpen300.00 300.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ROBERT LAMSON, LLC41550

4239

300.00 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSCREENINGS
NOpen300.00 300.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ROBERT LAMSON, LLC41551

4244

300.00 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSCREENINGS
NOpen150.00 150.00 02/07/202402/07/2024ROBERT LAMSON, LLC41552

4250

150.00 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKWINDSHIELD REPAIR
NOpen85.00 85.00 02/07/202402/07/2024HARMON GLASS DOCTOR41553

4435-850891

85.00 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKBUSINESS CARDS
NOpen275.20 275.20 02/07/202402/07/2024KRESA PRINT CENTER41554

45130

275.20 CRIME PREVENTION207-301-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKBUSINESS CARDS
NOpen55.04 55.04 02/07/202402/07/2024KRESA PRINT CENTER41555

45142

55.04 CRIME PREVENTION207-301-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKUNIFORMS
NOpen1,584.50 1,584.50 02/07/202402/07/2024NYE UNIFORM CO.41556

873595A

1,584.50 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE207-301-767.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 7/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKUNIFORMS
NOpen23.44 23.44 02/07/202402/07/2024NYE UNIFORM CO.41557

873857

23.44 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE207-301-767.00

02/08/2024MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen214.12 214.12 02/07/202402/07/2024INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC41558

2551751-0

214.12 CRIME PREVENTION207-301-751.00

02/08/2024MONICAKLIVESCAN FEES
NOpen994.75 994.75 02/07/202402/07/2024STATE OF MICHIGAN41559

551-631208

994.75 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC217-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #724921614
NOpen310.15 310.15 02/07/202402/07/2024XEROX CORPORATION41560

020615774

310.15 AUDIT SERVICES101-261-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen44.98 44.98 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41561

347333

44.98 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKTRAINING PEPPERBALLS
NOpen633.70 633.70 02/07/202402/07/2024KIESLER'S POLICE SUPPLY, INC.41562

IN230430

633.70 TUITION/TRAINING207-301-910.00

12/31/2023MONICAKCLEANING
NOpen727.54 727.54 02/07/202402/07/2024PORTAGE CLEANERS AND LAUNDRY41563

C3E85F

713.67 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE207-301-767.00
13.87 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE206-336-767.00

02/08/2024MONICAKNAME PLATES
NOpen1,104.52 1,104.52 02/07/202402/07/2024SIGN IMPRESSIONS, INC.41564

19389

1,104.52 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-301-754.00

02/08/2024MONICAKOFFICE SUPPLIES
NOpen98.25 98.25 02/07/202402/07/2024INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC41565

2547870-0

98.25 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION207-301-801.01

02/08/2024MONICAKREMOVE EQUIPMENT
NOpen1,740.00 1,740.00 02/07/202402/07/2024EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS41566

S0018375

1,740.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY - VEHICLES825-441-981.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 8/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

12/31/2023MONICAKDIAGNOSE TRANS PROBLEM
NOpen60.00 60.00 02/07/202402/07/2024MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE41567

3613

60.00 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00

12/31/2023MONICAKOIL CHANGE
NOpen81.32 81.32 02/07/202402/07/2024MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL POLICE41568

3615

81.32 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKSWAP DOORS
NOpen290.00 290.00 02/07/202402/07/2024EMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS41569

S0018446

290.00 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00

12/31/2023MONICAK4TH QTR SUBPOENA BY MAIL
NOpen571.00 571.00 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER41570

012524

571.00 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION207-301-801.01

02/08/2024MONICAKHAZARDOUS MATERIAL DUES
NOpen1,400.00 1,400.00 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER41571

1000224853

1,400.00 DUES/SUBS/PUBL206-336-791.00

02/08/2024MONICAKTIRES
NOpen883.88 883.88 02/07/202402/07/2024MEEKHOF TIRE OF KALAMAZOO41572

24-0234972-071

883.88 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #0462-00-405802-0
NOpen208.31 208.31 02/07/202402/07/2024WEX BANK41573

94971560

208.31 GAS & OIL206-336-759.00

02/08/2024MONICAKFUEL CAP
NOpen60.65 60.65 02/07/202402/07/2024MOSES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC.41574

24023

60.65 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKONLINE BACKUP SERVICE
NOpen1,069.92 1,069.92 02/07/202402/07/2024VC3, INC.41575

136821

1,069.92 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-228-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKBS&A HOSTING
NOpen1,600.00 1,600.00 02/07/202402/07/2024VC3, INC.41576

136910

1,600.00 SOFTWARE MAINT AGREEMENTS101-228-933.00



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 9/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #2250825
NOpen1,498.14 1,498.14 02/07/202402/07/2024CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.41577

PG46768

1,498.14 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION207-301-801.01

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #2250825
NOpen761.92 761.92 02/07/202402/07/2024CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.41578

PG30667

761.92 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-228-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #2250825
NOpen38.98 38.98 02/07/202402/07/2024CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.41579

PF40941

38.98 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-228-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #2250825
NOpen372.02 372.02 02/07/202402/07/2024CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.41580

NZ72984

372.02 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-228-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKCUSTOMER #724921614
NOpen350.50 350.50 02/07/202402/07/2024XEROX CORPORATION41581

020615773

350.50 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #1883888
NOpen3,723.39 3,723.39 02/07/202402/07/2024METRO FIBERNET LLC41582

020124

249.95 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET101-261-924.00
550.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET207-301-924.00
450.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.11
748.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.12
450.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.13
450.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.14
825.44 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)206-336-850.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen(6.58)(6.58)02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41583

348566

(6.58)VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen182.87 182.87 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41584

348560

182.87 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #1000 0033 6162
NOpen416.98 416.98 02/07/202402/07/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY41585

207058886686

416.98 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-921.13



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 10/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

02/08/2024MONICAKACCT #1000 2469 5296
NOpen156.40 156.40 02/07/202402/07/2024CONSUMERS ENERGY41586

206258612802

156.40 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-920.13

02/08/2024MONICAKWATER/SEWER
NOpen53.79 53.79 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER41587

013124A

53.79 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.13

02/08/2024MONICAKWATER/SEWER
NOpen107.73 107.73 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER41588

013124B

107.73 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.12

02/08/2024MONICAKWATER/SEWER
NOpen123.55 123.55 02/07/202402/07/2024KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER41589

013124C

123.55 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.14

12/31/2023MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen467.64 467.64 02/07/202402/07/2024LOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.41590

901066

467.64 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-931.00

02/08/2024MONICAKANTENNA REPAIR
NOpen125.90 125.90 02/07/202402/07/2024ROE-COMM, INC.41591

360058

125.90 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00

02/08/2024MONICAKLEGAL SUPPORT
NOpen20,359.44 20,359.44 02/07/202402/07/2024BAUCKHAM, THALL, SEEBER, 41592

020524

1,400.00 LEGAL SERVICES206-336-802.00
6,589.97 LEGAL SERVICES101-261-802.00
4,884.27 LEGAL SERVICES - GEN TWP101-701-802.00
2,773.00 LEGAL SERVICES - GEN TWP207-301-802.00
2,532.50 LEGAL SERVICES101-372-802.00
2,179.70 LEGAL SERVICES101-101-802.00

02/08/2024MONICAKMISC SUPPLIES
NOpen78.04 78.04 02/07/202402/07/2024NAPA AUTO PARTS41593

348222

78.04 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-754.00

190,493.36 190,493.36 # of Invoices:              95  # Due:    95           Totals:
(6.58)(6.58)# of Credit Memos:           1  # Due:     1           Totals:

190,486.78 190,486.78 Net of Invoices and Credit Memos:



INVOICE REGISTER REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 11/11Page:02/08/2024 10:21 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 02/13/2024 - 02/13/2024
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED OPEN

 BANK CODE: POOL

GL Distribution
Post DateEntered ByDescriptionInv Ref#   
JrnlizedStatusAmt DueInv AmtDue DateInv DateVendorInv Num    

--- TOTALS BY FUND ---

85,611.64 85,611.64 101 - GENERAL
12,957.98 12,957.98 206 - FIRE
12,420.52 12,420.52 207 - POLICE

994.75 994.75 217 - LIVESCAN/SOR
20,462.68 20,462.68 219 - STREET LIGHTS
46,254.46 46,254.46 226 - RUBBISH COLLECTION FUND
1,829.00 1,829.00 701 - TRUST & AGENCY
4,715.75 4,715.75 807 - SEWER IMPROVEMENT
1,740.00 1,740.00 825 - POLICE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
3,500.00 3,500.00 861 - ROAD DEBT SERVICE (VOTED BOND)

--- TOTALS BY DEPT/ACTIVITY ---

1,829.00 1,829.00 000 - REVENUES
2,179.70 2,179.70 101 - BOARD OF TRUSTEES
2,021.53 2,021.53 215 - CLERK
3,842.84 3,842.84 228 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

256.82 256.82 257 - ASSESSOR
10,562.37 10,562.37 261 - GENERAL SERVICES_ADMIN

363.10 363.10 265 - MAINTENANCE
13,415.27 13,415.27 301 - POLICE
12,957.98 12,957.98 336 - FIRE
3,132.50 3,132.50 372 - CODE ENFORCEMENT(ORD,BLDG,RENTAL)
1,740.00 1,740.00 441 - FIRE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

13,133.20 13,133.20 446 - INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE
20,462.68 20,462.68 448 - STREET LIGHTS
46,254.46 46,254.46 528 - REFUSE COLLECTION
4,715.75 4,715.75 535 - SEWER IMPROVEMENT

84.27 84.27 567 - CEMETERY
10,730.37 10,730.37 701 - PLANNING/ZONING

72.94 72.94 751 - RECREATION
42,732.00 42,732.00 966 - CONTINGENCY



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 1/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

299.97 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYBEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT0248052023122210952ERAD01/04/2024

998.00 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYLENS EQUIPMENT701010953ERAD01/04/2024

240.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRLARRY L EIB111710954ERAD01/04/2024

74.34 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRAT&T269962174712D10955ERAD01/04/2024

467.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRCITY OF SPRINGFIELD230000359710956ERAD01/04/2024

352.79 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRVERIZON WIRELESS995193420010957ERAD01/04/2024

962.09 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRWEX BANK9419961010958ERAD01/04/2024

72,930.03 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTAKALAMAZOO COUNTY1231232488TAX01/08/2024

13.09 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTA123123A2488

72,943.12 

41,248.02 703-000-221.01CITY SWR/WTR USAGE - DELINQKALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER1231232489TAX01/08/2024

816,568.34 703-000-223.00KAL. LIBRARYKAL. PUBLIC LIBRARY1231232490TAX01/08/2024

161.72 703-000-223.00KAL. LIBRARY123123A2490

816,730.06 

7,691.13 703-000-222.00DUE TO COUNTY OPERATINGKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER1231232491TAX01/08/2024

777.76 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAIN123123N2491

184.13 703-000-222.03COUNTY INTEREST123123A2491

39,105.69 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME123123D2491

7.02 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME123123E2491

174,802.18 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND123123F2491

31.34 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND123123G2491

337,285.71 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY123123B2491

60.49 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY123123C2491

81,186.90 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR123123H2491

14.57 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR123123I2491

151,486.09 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH123123J2491

27.16 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH123123K2491

23,439.51 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 123123L2491

4.21 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 123123M2491

816,103.89 

847.82 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAINKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER123123O2492TAX01/08/2024

1,203.70 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAIN123123P2492

4,778.47 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAIN123123Q2492

259.96 703-000-228.03INT. - SCH. #01 - S.E.T.123123S2492

1,292.87 703-000-228.04SCH. #32 - S.E.T.123123T2492



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 2/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

65.76 703-000-228.05INT. - SCH. #32 - S.E.T.123123U2492

818.53 703-000-228.07SCH. #40 - S.E.T.123123V2492

14.66 703-000-228.09INT. - SCH. #40 - S.E.T.123123W2492

5,917.44 703-000-237.00KPS SCH. #01 - DEBT123123R2492

15,199.21 

652,119.44 703-000-235.00KVCCKAL. VALLEY COMM. COLLEGE1231232493TAX01/08/2024

116.95 703-000-235.00KVCC123123A2493

652,236.39 

2,460.99 703-000-236.00KRESA ISDKRESA1231232494TAX01/08/2024

1,298,983.33 703-000-236.00KRESA ISD123123A2494

290.00 703-000-236.00KRESA ISD123123B2494

93.75 703-000-236.02INT. -KRESA123123C2494

1,301,828.07 

365.99 703-000-214.00TOWNSHIPKALAMAZOO COUNTY LAND BANK1231232495TAX01/08/2024

92.53 703-000-214.19DUE TO TOWNSHIP - COMM POLICING123123A2495

37.66 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTA123123D2495

7.00 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME123123E2495

31.34 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND123123F2495

60.47 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY123123B2495

13.07 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTA123123C2495

14.55 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR123123G2495

27.16 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH123123H2495

4.19 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 123123I2495

161.71 703-000-223.00KAL. LIBRARY123123L2495

1.15 703-000-223.05PARCHMENT LIBRARY123123M2495

116.93 703-000-235.00KVCC123123K2495

289.99 703-000-236.00KRESA ISD123123J2495

340.02 703-000-237.00KPS SCH. #01 - DEBT123123N2495

1,563.76 

** VOIDED **PARCHMENT LIBRARYPARCHMENT COMM. LIBRARY1231232496TAX01/08/2024

** VOIDED **PARCHMENT LIBRARY123123A2496

432,782.63 703-000-228.01KPS SCH# 01 OPERATINGSCHOOL DISTRICT #11231232497TAX01/08/2024

1,700,538.45 703-000-237.00KPS SCH. #01 - DEBT123123A2497

340.03 703-000-237.00KPS SCH. #01 - DEBT123123B2497

2,133,661.11 

1,872.27 703-000-238.00SCH. #32 - OPERATINGSCHOOL DISTRICT #321231232498TAX01/08/2024

96.98 703-000-238.01INT. - SCH. #32 - OPER.123123C2498



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 3/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

1,100.53 703-000-238.02SCH. #32 - DEBT123123A2498

69.82 703-000-238.03INT. - SCH. #32 - DEBT123123D2498

199.24 703-000-238.06SCH #32 - SINKING FUND123123B2498

12.65 703-000-238.07INT. -SCH. #32 - SINKING FUND123123E2498

3,351.49 

925.31 703-000-239.00SCH. #40 - OPERATINGPARCHMENT PUBLIC SCHOOLS1231232499TAX01/08/2024

916.39 703-000-239.03SCH. #40 - DEBT123123A2499

25.72 703-000-239.05INT. - SCH. #40 - DEBT123123C2499

255.54 703-000-239.06PARCHMENT SD #40 - SINKING FUND123123B2499

7.17 703-000-239.08INT. -  SCH #40 - SINKING FUND123123D2499

2,130.13 

209,596.06 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTACENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION1231232500TAX01/08/2024

37.67 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTA123123A2500

209,633.73 

2,276,177.92 703-000-214.00TOWNSHIPTWP. OF KALAMAZOO/SHERINE MILLER0101242501TAX01/08/2024

266,533.78 703-000-214.19DUE TO TOWNSHIP - COMM POLICING010124H2501

266,533.78 703-000-214.20DUE TO TOWNSHIP - FIRE OPERATING010124J2501

94,213.03 703-000-226.01ADMINISTRATIVE FEE010124B2501

9,495.00 703-000-226.05TWP SERV-MW/DEMO/FALSEALRMS010124E2501

107,225.46 703-000-226.10STREET LIGHTING010124C2501

327,200.13 703-000-226.11RECYCLING010124D2501

453,117.02 703-000-226.16POLICE OPERATING010124F2501

79,945.56 703-000-226.17POLICE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT010124G2501

266,533.78 703-000-226.18FIRE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT010124I2501

575,484.80 703-000-226.19BOND- TWP ROADS010124A2501

4,722,460.26 

370.10 703-000-275.00REFUNDCORELOGIC01/08/20242502TAX01/08/2024

2,805.81 703-000-275.00REFUNDNATIONSTAR MORTGAGE01/08/20242503TAX01/08/2024

427.50 101-261-802.00LEGAL SERVICES - LABORCLARK HILL PC138163752674POOL01/10/2024

427.50 206-336-802.00LEGAL SERVICES138163752674

855.00 

1,710.79 101-261-921.00UTILITIES - NATURAL GASCONSUMERS ENERGY20341104324252675POOL01/10/2024

31.68 101-751-920.00UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20385599115952675

28.79 206-336-920.11UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20688111994752675

545.71 206-336-920.11UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20688111994652675

98.53 206-336-920.12UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20421195014652675

451.00 206-336-920.12UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20421195014752675



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 4/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

29.24 206-336-920.13UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20510180907652675

728.69 206-336-921.11UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20688111994652675

492.03 206-336-921.12UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20421195014552675

198.45 206-336-921.12UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20421195014652675

4,314.91 

325.02 101-261-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS00555040112212352676POOL01/10/2024

314.04 101-261-924.00UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00555030112212352676

109.99 206-336-924.11UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00555420112142352676

181.25 206-336-924.11UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00555410112142352676

930.30 

2.05 701-000-222.01KCTA TRANSPORTATIONKALAMAZOO COUNTY12292352677POOL01/10/2024

167.42 101-261-918.00UTILITIES - WATERKALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER12162352678POOL01/10/2024

99.47 206-336-918.12UTILITIES - WATER12192352678

54.20 206-336-918.13UTILITIES - WATER12202352678

83.63 206-336-918.14UTILITIES - WATER12222352678

404.72 

15.28 701-000-236.03KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARYKAL. PUBLIC LIBRARY12292352679POOL01/10/2024

13.19 701-000-222.00DUE TO COUNTYKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER12292352680POOL01/10/2024

1.06 701-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME122923A52680

4.96 701-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND122923B52680

9.52 701-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY122923C52680

2.30 701-000-222.09CO SENIOR122923D52680

4.28 701-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH122923E52680

17.11 701-000-228.07PARCHMENT PS - S.E.T.122923F52680

2,944.00 701-000-240.05TRAILER TAX01092452680

736.00 701-000-240.05TRAILER TAX010924A52680

3,732.42 

384.40 101-265-759.00GAS & OILJ & H OIL COMPANY12312352681POOL01/10/2024

1,348.53 206-336-759.00GAS & OIL123123A52681

1,732.93 

18.48 701-000-235.00DUE TO KVCCKAL. VALLEY COMM. COLLEGE12292352682POOL01/10/2024

47.32 701-000-236.00KRESA ISDKRESA12292352683POOL01/10/2024

62.51 206-336-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESMENARDS - KALAMAZOO EAST413A52684POOL01/10/2024

307.94 206-336-930.00LAND REPAIRS & MAINT78752684

370.45 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 5/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

5.28 701-000-223.05DUE TO LIBRARY - PARCHMENTPARCHMENT COMM. LIBRARY12292352685POOL01/10/2024

32.16 701-000-228.02KALAMAZOO PS - DEBTSCHOOL DISTRICT #1122923A52686POOL01/10/2024

38.53 701-000-237.00KALAMAZOO PS - OPERATING12292352686

70.69 

19.97 701-000-239.03PARCHMENT PS - DEBTPARCHMENT PUBLIC SCHOOLS12292352687POOL01/10/2024

5.56 701-000-239.06PARCHMENT SD #40 - SINKING FUND122923A52687

25.53 

5.74 701-000-222.04CCTA TRANSPORTATIONCENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION12292352688POOL01/10/2024

230.00 206-336-791.00DUES/SUBS/PUBLSTATE OF MICHIGAN12132352689POOL01/10/2024

1,954.06 826-441-985.00MISC & ADMINISTRATIONTWP. OF KALAMAZOO/SHERINE MILLER01042452690POOL01/10/2024

2,079.27 826-441-985.00MISC & ADMINISTRATION010424A52690

4,033.33 

1,974.00 206-336-802.00LEGAL SERVICESWARNER NORCROSS + JUDD LLP236261552691POOL01/10/2024

168.24 206-336-752.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTMOSES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC.2335152692POOL01/10/2024

114.35 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT2339252692

242.90 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT2336352692

1,977.00 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT2334752692

2,502.49 

45,150.00 207-301-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTFLOCK GROUP, INC.INV-2882852693POOL01/10/2024

6,883.43 207-301-948.00COMPUTER SERVICEPOWERDMS, INCINV-4441852694POOL01/10/2024

548.75 101-261-919.00UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLEREPUBLIC SERVICES #2490249-00807801052695POOL01/10/2024

311.85 101-261-919.00UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807807952695

67.00 101-567-919.00UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

58.00 101-751-919.00UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

139.00 206-336-919.11UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

139.00 206-336-919.12UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

29.00 206-336-919.13UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

139.00 206-336-919.14UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE0249-00807801052695

46,738.16 226-528-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC0249-00808586852695

48,169.76 

149.99 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYBEST BUY BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT774196210959ERAD01/19/2024

2,105.37 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYENS84334710960ERAD01/19/2024

1,035.56 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYC0725710960

3,140.93 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 6/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

40.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRSUSAN A MCCARTHY01112410961ERAD01/19/2024

93.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRROSE PEST SOLUTIONS12063724610962ERAD01/19/2024

75.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPR12063844510962

168.00 

249.95 101-261-924.00UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNETMETRO FIBERNET LLC01012452697POOL01/19/2024

833.89 206-336-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)01012452697

450.00 206-336-924.11UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET01012452697

748.00 206-336-924.12UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET01012452697

450.00 206-336-924.13UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET01012452697

450.00 206-336-924.14UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET01012452697

550.00 207-301-924.00UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET01012452697

3,731.84 

149.92 206-336-920.13UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20643638471452698POOL01/19/2024

301.08 206-336-921.13UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS20599166658352698

451.00 

6,853.81 219-448-920.00UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20465689190052699POOL01/19/2024

13,974.12 219-448-920.00UTILITIES - ELECTRIC20661435093152699

20,827.93 

1,091.50 101-101-802.00LEGAL SERVICESTOKIO MARINE HCC-PUBLIC RISK GROUP20406452700POOL01/19/2024

1,142.19 101-265-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESFERGUSON FACILITIES #3400007049452701POOL01/19/2024

179.00 207-301-767.00PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCEENTENMANN-ROVIN CO.0174484-IN52702POOL01/19/2024

1,754.79 207-301-940.00RENTALS - EQUIPMENTFURNITURE CITY BROADCASTING CORP284452703POOL01/19/2024

174.09 207-301-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESGORDON WATER221542952704POOL01/19/2024

2,513.40 207-301-759.00GAS & OILJ & H OIL COMPANY123123B52705POOL01/19/2024

200.00 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCHROBERT LAMSON, LLC404552706POOL01/19/2024

41.07 101-171-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)VERIZON WIRELESS995316032652707POOL01/19/2024

82.14 101-215-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)995316032652707

92.14 101-228-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)995316032652707

925.47 206-336-850.00COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)995316032652707

1,026.61 207-301-850.00RADIO TOWER T1 LINE995316032652707

2,167.43 

278.13 206-336-759.00GAS & OILWEX BANK9418556652708POOL01/19/2024

90.40 207-301-801.01BACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONTRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE01012452709POOL01/19/2024



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 7/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

1,980.05 101-261-938.00INSURANCE - WORKERS COMPACCIDENT FUND INS CO OF AMERICA100115590052710POOL01/24/2024

17,820.45 206-336-938.00INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP100115590052710

29,650.75 207-301-938.00INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP100115590052710

50.00 267-301-938.00INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP100115590052710

49,501.25 

1,860.30 207-301-948.00COMPUTER SERVICELEXISNEXIS CLAIMS SOLUTIONS, INCI100274-2023123152711POOL01/24/2024

1,640.00 825-441-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTDEMANET BITE SUITS245852712POOL01/24/2024

5.00 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCHBILL'S LOCK SHOP, INC.529052713POOL01/24/2024

912.00 207-301-835.00HEALTH SERVICESBRONSON HEALTHCARE GROUP01042452714POOL01/24/2024

2,874.04 101-261-920.00UTILITIES - ELECTRICCONSUMERS ENERGY20714740230652715POOL01/24/2024

1,828.00 825-441-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTK9 KENNEL STORE01082452716POOL01/24/2024

12.00 206-336-752.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTDR. HOOKS, INC.3583252717POOL01/24/2024

109.99 206-336-924.12UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNETCHARTER COMMUNICATIONS00557730101012452718POOL01/24/2024

147.04 206-336-924.12UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00557710101012452718

103.81 206-336-924.13UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00557810101012452718

109.99 206-336-924.14UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET00555200101012452718

470.83 

232.00 207-301-835.00HEALTH SERVICESALL PRO EXERCISE SERVICEINV1272652719POOL01/24/2024

115.00 207-301-791.00DUES/SUBS/PUBLFBINAA7237252720POOL01/24/2024

115.00 207-301-791.00DUES/SUBS/PUBL49628A52720

230.00 

22.52 101-261-751.00OFFICE SUPPLIESINTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC2544825-052721POOL01/24/2024

75.59 101-261-751.00OFFICE SUPPLIES2541312-052721

76.95 206-336-751.00OFFICE SUPPLIES2544825-052721

178.84 207-301-751.00CRIME PREVENTION2543577-052721

163.02 207-301-801.01BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION2544850-052721

516.92 

300.00 101-372-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCKALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY23-06-1252722POOL01/24/2024

136,335.43 807-535-972.00CONSTRUCTION COSTSROAD COMMISSION OF KALAMAZOO COUNTY5430252723POOL01/24/2024

15.07 101-215-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESKCI32991352724POOL01/24/2024

1,327.90 101-101-903.00PUBLIC NOTICESMLIVE MEDIA GROUP001080777152725POOL01/24/2024

55.04 207-301-751.00CRIME PREVENTIONKRESA PRINT CENTER4509152726POOL01/24/2024



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 8/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

313.57 207-301-751.00CRIME PREVENTION4513152726

55.04 207-301-751.00CRIME PREVENTION4501252726

423.65 

365.76 101-265-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCENGINEERED PROTECTION SYSTEMS, INC.A84910952727POOL01/24/2024

586.29 206-336-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCA84896352727

462.69 206-336-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCA84896252727

586.29 206-336-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCA84896452727

644.22 206-336-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCA84894852727

14,900.00 826-441-975.00STATION UPGRADES/EQUIPMENTJ33557252727

17,545.25 

348.16 101-265-930.00LAND REPAIRS & MAINTR.W. LAPINE, INC.5541752728POOL01/24/2024

905.43 101-265-930.00LAND REPAIRS & MAINT5557152728

770.79 206-336-930.00REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS5493752728

425.00 206-336-930.00REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS5492252728

302.50 206-336-930.00REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS5543852728

520.15 206-336-930.00REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS5543752728

3,272.03 

574.29 101-261-801.00AUDIT SERVICESQUADIENT LEASING USA, INC.Q113804352729POOL01/24/2024

151.02 206-336-910.00TRAINING FEES/EQUIPMENTMICHIGAN STATE FIREMEN'S ASSOC553352730POOL01/24/2024

7,322.50 101-701-801.00PLANNING CONSULTANTMCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.21-028-3152731POOL01/24/2024

7,150.00 101-701-801.00PLANNING CONSULTANT21-028-3052731

201.25 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31A52731

950.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31B52731

437.50 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31C52731

489.75 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31D52731

437.50 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31E52731

500.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31F52731

150.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31G52731

75.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31H52731

100.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31I52731

50.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-31J52731

172.50 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30A52731

143.75 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30B52731

143.75 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30C52731

18,323.50 

86.25 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROWMCKENNA ASSOCIATES, INC.21-028-30D52732POOL01/24/2024

304.81 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30E52732

979.50 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30F52732



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 9/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

531.25 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30G52732

437.50 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30H52732

100.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30I52732

350.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30J52732

50.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW21-028-30K52732

2,839.31 

3,750.00 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCHTHE ROSSOW GROUP, LLCTKPD-22-652733POOL01/24/2024

34.35 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTNAPA AUTO PARTS45796652734POOL01/24/2024

25.64 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT34482852734

48.09 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT34534752734

108.08 

76.19 207-301-767.00PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCENYE UNIFORM CO.86612852735POOL01/24/2024

451.16 101-261-933.00SOFTWARE MAINT AGREEMENTSECF DATA, LLCINV-03935-G7K6Y352736POOL01/24/2024

451.16 207-301-933.00LEIN BILLINGINV-03935-G7K6Y352736

902.32 

15.00 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTCARL'S TIRE AND SMALL ENGINE REPAIR224552737POOL01/24/2024

1,035.00 101-567-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCPONTEM SOFTWARE BY RIA0001270252738POOL01/24/2024

162.12 101-265-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCPURITY CYLINDER, INC.000186105452739POOL01/24/2024

11,243.56 207-301-931.00EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINTMOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC.828177853352740POOL01/24/2024

31,935.52 101-228-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTCDW GOVERNMENT, INC.NT5353752741POOL01/24/2024

427.49 101-253-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESNT2832752741

949.99 206-336-751.00OFFICE SUPPLIESNQ9034352741

33,313.00 

30.00 217-301-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCSTATE OF MICHIGAN551-62899152742POOL01/24/2024

519.00 217-301-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCSTATE OF MICHIGAN551-62928652743POOL01/24/2024

384.00 206-336-767.00PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCETHE SPIRIT SHOPPE2120552744POOL01/24/2024

5,786.04 207-301-948.00COMPUTER SERVICETYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC130-14363152745POOL01/24/2024

234.27 101-261-802.00LEGAL SERVICES - LABORWARNER NORCROSS + JUDD LLP237040352746POOL01/24/2024

6,465.73 206-336-802.00LEGAL SERVICES237040352746

6,700.00 

8,469.50 101-101-801.00PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVCWESTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITYGM000285520252747POOL01/24/2024

2,880.00 101-257-946.00ENGINEERING SERVICESPREIN & NEWHOF, INC.7907552748POOL01/24/2024



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 10/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

7,793.90 101-446-986.00SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE7906652748

192.00 701-000-283.00ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW7906452748

192.00 806-534-946.00ENGINEERING FEES7899952748

1,533.00 807-535-946.00ENGINEERING FEES7898752748

128.00 807-535-946.00ENGINEERING FEES7899852748

8,104.15 807-535-972.00CONSTRUCTION COSTS7900352748

315.75 807-535-972.00CONSTRUCTION COSTS7905652748

21,138.80 

20,488.80 825-441-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTEMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTSS001819552749POOL01/24/2024

11,512.45 825-441-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENTS001826352749

32,001.25 

62.94 207-301-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTDORRANCE FORD2606832552750POOL01/24/2024

58.45 207-301-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT2606826752750

121.39 

90.00 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCHKENT COUNTY TREASURER/DPW3576452751POOL01/24/2024

125.00 206-336-791.00DUES/SUBS/PUBLKALAMAZOO COUNTY FIRE CHIEFS ASSOC50152752POOL01/24/2024

153.83 101-265-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESLOWE'S COMPANIES, INC.0174052753POOL01/24/2024

3,442.40 206-336-752.00SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENTMOSES FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC.2343652754POOL01/24/2024

113.65 206-336-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT2343552754

3,556.05 

32.20 207-301-835.00HEALTH SERVICESPAW PAW VETERINARY CLINIC5933352755POOL01/24/2024

118.00 207-301-835.00HEALTH SERVICES6212852755

150.20 

630.00 207-301-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESTELE-RAD, INC.91325652756POOL01/24/2024

630.00 207-301-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIES91325752756

6,430.00 825-441-985.00CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT91343052756

7,690.00 

250.00 101-257-754.00OPERATING SUPPLIESSMART SOURCE, LLC, MICHIGAN DIVISIO180242052757POOL01/24/2024

407.68 101-261-801.00AUDIT SERVICESXEROX CORPORATION02041436252758POOL01/24/2024

418.85 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH02041436152758

826.53 

130.00 101-261-801.00AUDIT SERVICESWEST MICHIGAN DOCUMENT13784352759POOL01/24/2024

65.00 207-301-801.00PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH13784352759



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 11/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

195.00 

55.00 207-301-932.00VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINTMCDONALD'S TOWING85169152760POOL01/24/2024

74.34 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRAT&T269962174701C10963ERAD01/26/2024

15.00 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRSTATE OF MICHIGAN01242410964ERAD01/26/2024

926.16 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRTWP. OF KALAMAZOO/SHERINE MILLER262210965ERAD01/26/2024

352.79 719-000-245.04FORFEITURE - OPRVERIZON WIRELESS995440593310966ERAD01/26/2024

6,218.32 719-000-245.17HIDTA MONEYTHE HERTZ CORPORATION904010419010967ERAD01/26/2024

24.90 101-261-851.00USPSFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA01032452761POOL01/26/2024

2,832.44 206-336-752.00STROBES R US01032452761

77.49 206-336-752.00AMAZON MKTPLC01032452761

98.75 206-336-754.00AMAZON MKTPLC01032452761

(157.24)206-336-930.00GRAYBAR - CREDIT01032452761

566.50 206-336-932.00FLOYD'S ELECTRIC01032452761

87.96 206-336-932.00BOB & KAYS AUTO WASH01032452761

205.89 206-336-932.00FREIGHTLINER01032452761

3,736.69 

13.49 101-228-751.00AMAZON MKTPLCFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA010324A52762POOL01/26/2024

128.77 101-228-933.00WASABI TECHNOLOGIES010324A52762

75.00 101-372-801.00MACEO010324A52762

129.41 207-301-751.00AMAZON MKTPLC010324A52762

22.99 207-301-754.00AMAZON MKTPLC010324A52762

177.96 207-301-754.00CHEWY.COM010324A52762

26.99 207-301-767.00AMAZON MKTPLC010324A52762

200.00 207-301-791.00POLICE EXECUTIVE RESEARCH010324A52762

30.00 207-301-791.00WMACP010324A52762

275.30 207-301-801.00ARROWHEAD SCIENTIFIC010324A52762

38.71 207-301-801.00INDEED010324A52762

13.99 207-301-835.00AMAZON MKTPLC010324A52762

136.03 207-301-835.00AMAZON.COM010324A52762

13.41 207-301-909.00SCHLOTZSKY'S010324A52762

348.00 207-301-933.00EDEN K9 CONSULTING010324A52762

15.99 207-301-933.00ZOOM010324A52762

2,758.46 825-441-985.00SP GUNNER KENNELS010324A52762

4,404.50 

146.57 101-215-751.00OFFICEMAX/OFFICE DEPOTFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA010324B52763POOL01/26/2024

858.55 701-000-255.01BARRETT'S SMOKEHOUSE010324B52763

1,005.12 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 12/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

15.99 101-101-801.00ZOOMFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA010324C52764POOL01/26/2024

19.84 101-215-751.00AMAZON.COM010324C52764

99.99 101-265-801.00VAC WORLD010324C52764

50.80 101-701-751.00SMARTSIGN010324C52764

129.99 207-301-751.00AMAZON.COM010324C52764

316.61 

13,487.82 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTAKALAMAZOO COUNTY0114242504TAX01/29/2024

0.61 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTA011424A2504

13,488.43 

8,693.45 703-000-221.01CITY SWR/WTR USAGE - DELINQKALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER0114242505TAX01/29/2024

150,164.07 703-000-223.00KAL. LIBRARYKAL. PUBLIC LIBRARY0114242506TAX01/29/2024

2,616.05 703-000-222.00DUE TO COUNTY OPERATINGKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER0114242507TAX01/29/2024

680.37 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAIN011424N2507

135.51 703-000-222.03COUNTY INTEREST011424A2507

7,232.29 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME011424D2507

0.33 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME011424E2507

32,328.04 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND011424F2507

1.45 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND011424G2507

62,377.60 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY011424B2507

2.80 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY011424C2507

15,014.83 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR011424H2507

0.67 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR011424I2507

28,016.00 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH011424J2507

1.26 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH011424K2507

4,335.06 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 011424L2507

0.20 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 011424M2507

152,742.46 

169.57 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAINKALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER011424O2508TAX01/29/2024

843.82 703-000-222.02COUNTY DRAIN011424P2508

3,787.30 703-000-226.20KPS - SCH #01 - S.E.T011424Q2508

175.45 703-000-228.03INT. - SCH. #01 - S.E.T.011424R2508

2.96 703-000-228.07SCH. #40 - S.E.T.011424S2508

0.09 703-000-228.09INT. - SCH. #40 - S.E.T.011424T2508

4,979.19 

120,602.71 703-000-235.00KVCCKAL. VALLEY COMM. COLLEGE0114242509TAX01/29/2024

5.42 703-000-235.00KVCC011424A2509

120,608.13 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 13/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

235,908.78 703-000-236.00KRESA ISDKRESA0114242510TAX01/29/2024

0.10 703-000-236.02INT. -KRESA011424A2510

235,908.88 

16.96 703-000-214.00TOWNSHIPKALAMAZOO COUNTY LAND BANK0114242511TAX01/29/2024

1.74 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTA011424I2511

0.32 703-000-222.05JUVENILE HOME011424C2511

1.45 703-000-222.06COUNTY HOUSING FUND011424D2511

2.80 703-000-222.07CO PUBLIC SAFETY011424B2511

0.60 703-000-222.08COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTA011424J2511

0.67 703-000-222.09CO SENIOR011424E2511

1.25 703-000-222.11COUNTY 911/DISPATCH011424F2511

0.19 703-000-222.13COUNTY VETERANS 011424G2511

3.78 703-000-223.05PARCHMENT LIBRARY011424K2511

4.29 703-000-226.19BOND- TWP ROADS011424A2511

5.42 703-000-235.00KVCC011424H2511

39.47 

58,287.11 703-000-223.05PARCHMENT LIBRARYPARCHMENT COMM. LIBRARY0114242512TAX01/29/2024

4.94 703-000-223.05PARCHMENT LIBRARY011424A2512

58,292.05 

8.81 703-000-239.00SCH. #40 - OPERATINGPARCHMENT PUBLIC SCHOOLS0114242513TAX01/29/2024

0.27 703-000-239.02INT. - SCH. #40 - OPER.011424C2513

3.45 703-000-239.03SCH. #40 - DEBT011424A2513

0.10 703-000-239.05INT. - SCH. #40 - DEBT011424D2513

0.96 703-000-239.06PARCHMENT SD #40 - SINKING FUND011424B2513

0.03 703-000-239.08INT. -  SCH #40 - SINKING FUND011424E2513

13.62 

38,848.06 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTACENTRAL COUNTY TRANSPORTATION0114242514TAX01/29/2024

1.75 703-000-222.04COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTA011424A2514

38,849.81 

377,479.44 703-000-214.00TOWNSHIPTWP. OF KALAMAZOO/SHERINE MILLER0114242515TAX01/29/2024

46,625.62 703-000-214.19DUE TO TOWNSHIP - COMM POLICING011424H2515

46,625.62 703-000-214.20DUE TO TOWNSHIP - FIRE OPERATING011424J2515

15,842.97 703-000-226.01ADMINISTRATIVE FEE011424B2515

500.00 703-000-226.05TWP SERV-MW/DEMO/FALSEALRMS011424E2515

18,724.51 703-000-226.10STREET LIGHTING011424C2515

46,375.52 703-000-226.11RECYCLING011424D2515

79,265.04 703-000-226.16POLICE OPERATING011424F2515

13,985.55 703-000-226.17POLICE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT011424G2515



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 14/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

46,625.62 703-000-226.18FIRE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT011424I2515

95,438.17 703-000-226.19BOND- TWP ROADS011424A2515

787,488.06 

0.04 703-000-275.00REFUNDCHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALAMAZOO01/30/20242516TAX01/30/2024

32.15 703-000-275.00REFUND01/30/20242516

124.02 703-000-275.00REFUND01/30/20242516

728.14 703-000-275.00REFUND01/30/20242516

0.02 703-000-275.00REFUND01/30/20242516

884.37 

0.08 703-000-275.00REFUNDCHARTER TOWNSHIP OF KALOAMZOO01/30/20242517TAX01/30/2024

1,442.29 703-000-275.00REFUNDCORELOGIC01/30/20242518TAX01/30/2024

        375.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-372-801.00
      1,253.59 LAND REPAIRS & MAINT101-265-930.00
        627.87 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-265-801.00
        384.40 GAS & OIL101-265-759.00
      1,296.02 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-754.00
      1,980.05 INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP101-261-938.00
        451.16 SOFTWARE MAINT AGREEMENTS101-261-933.00
        563.99 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET101-261-924.00
      1,710.79 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS101-261-921.00
      2,874.04 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC101-261-920.00
        860.60 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-261-919.00
        167.42 UTILITIES - WATER101-261-918.00
         24.90 POSTAGE101-261-851.00
        325.02 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)101-261-850.00
        661.77 LEGAL SERVICES - LABOR101-261-802.00
      1,111.97 AUDIT SERVICES101-261-801.00
         98.11 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-261-751.00
      2,880.00 ENGINEERING SERVICES101-257-946.00
        250.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-257-754.00
        427.49 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-253-754.00
     31,935.52 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT101-228-985.00
        128.77 SOFTWARE MAINT AGREEMENTS101-228-933.00
         92.14 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)101-228-850.00
         13.49 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-228-751.00
         82.14 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)101-215-850.00
         15.07 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-754.00
        166.41 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-215-751.00
         41.07 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)101-171-850.00
      1,327.90 PUBLIC NOTICES101-101-903.00
      1,091.50 LEGAL SERVICES101-101-802.00
      8,485.49 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-101-801.00

--- GL TOTALS --- 

12,925,914.61 TOTAL OF 137 CHECKS (1 voided)TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 15/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

        815.15 LEIN BILLING207-301-933.00
        176.39 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-932.00
     11,243.56 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINT207-301-931.00
        550.00 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET207-301-924.00
         13.41 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT207-301-909.00
      1,026.61 RADIO TOWER T1 LINE207-301-850.00
      1,444.22 HEALTH SERVICES207-301-835.00
        253.42 BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION207-301-801.01
      4,842.86 PURCHASED SERVICE - CONSOL DISPATCH207-301-801.00
        460.00 DUES/SUBS/PUBL207-301-791.00
        282.18 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE207-301-767.00
      2,513.40 GAS & OIL207-301-759.00
      1,635.04 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-301-754.00
        861.89 CRIME PREVENTION207-301-751.00
     17,820.45 INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP206-336-938.00
      3,431.33 VEHICLE REPAIRS & MAINT206-336-932.00
      2,169.14 REPAIRS & MAINT - BLDG/GROUNDS206-336-930.00
        559.99 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.14
        553.81 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.13
      1,005.03 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.12
        741.24 UTILITIES - CABLE/INTERNET206-336-924.11
        301.08 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-921.13
        690.48 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-921.12
        728.69 UTILITIES - NATURAL GAS206-336-921.11
        179.16 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-920.13
        549.53 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-920.12
        574.50 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC206-336-920.11
        139.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.14
         29.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.13
        139.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.12
        139.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE206-336-919.11
         83.63 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.14
         54.20 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.13
         99.47 UTILITIES - WATER206-336-918.12
        151.02 TRAINING FEES/EQUIPMENT206-336-910.00
      1,759.36 COMMUNICATIONS (TELEPHONE)206-336-850.00
      8,867.23 LEGAL SERVICES206-336-802.00
      2,279.49 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC206-336-801.00
        355.00 DUES/SUBS/PUBL206-336-791.00
        384.00 PERSONAL EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE206-336-767.00
      1,626.66 GAS & OIL206-336-759.00
        161.26 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-754.00
      6,532.57 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT206-336-752.00
      1,026.94 OFFICE SUPPLIES206-336-751.00
         31.68 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC101-751-920.00
         58.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-751-919.00
     14,472.50 PLANNING CONSULTANT101-701-801.00
         50.80 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-701-751.00
         67.00 UTILITIES - WASTE/RECYCLE101-567-919.00
      1,035.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC101-567-801.00
      7,793.90 SIDEWALK MAINTENANCE101-446-986.00



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 16/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

     93,931.11 POLICE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT703-000-226.17
    532,382.06 POLICE OPERATING703-000-226.16
    373,575.65 RECYCLING703-000-226.11
    125,949.97 STREET LIGHTING703-000-226.10
      9,995.00 TWP SERV-MW/DEMO/FALSEALRMS703-000-226.05
    110,056.00 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE703-000-226.01
     58,296.98 PARCHMENT LIBRARY703-000-223.05
    967,055.84 KAL. LIBRARY703-000-223.00
     27,783.36 COUNTY VETERANS703-000-222.13
    179,558.92 COUNTY 911/DISPATCH703-000-222.11
     96,232.19 CO SENIOR703-000-222.09
     86,445.22 COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - KCTA703-000-222.08
    399,789.87 CO PUBLIC SAFETY703-000-222.07
    207,195.80 COUNTY HOUSING FUND703-000-222.06
     46,352.65 JUVENILE HOME703-000-222.05
    248,522.94 COUNTY TRANSPORTATION - CCTA703-000-222.04
        319.64 COUNTY INTEREST703-000-222.03
      9,301.51 COUNTY DRAIN703-000-222.02
     10,307.18 DUE TO COUNTY OPERATING703-000-222.00
     49,941.47 CITY SWR/WTR USAGE - DELINQ703-000-221.01
    313,159.40 DUE TO TOWNSHIP - FIRE OPERATING703-000-214.20
    313,251.93 DUE TO TOWNSHIP - COMM POLICING703-000-214.19
  2,654,040.31 TOWNSHIP703-000-214.00
      6,882.31 ZONING/DEVELOPMENT ESCROW701-000-283.00
        858.55 DEPOSITS - VENDING MACHINE701-000-255.01
      3,680.00 TRAILER TAX701-000-240.05
          5.56 PARCHMENT SD #40 - SINKING FUND701-000-239.06
         19.97 PARCHMENT PS - DEBT701-000-239.03
         38.53 KALAMAZOO PS - OPERATING701-000-237.00
         15.28 KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY701-000-236.03
         47.32 KRESA ISD701-000-236.00
         18.48 DUE TO KVCC701-000-235.00
         17.11 PARCHMENT PS - S.E.T.701-000-228.07
         32.16 KALAMAZOO PS - DEBT701-000-228.02
          5.28 DUE TO LIBRARY - PARCHMENT701-000-223.05
          4.28 COUNTY 911/DISPATCH701-000-222.11
          2.30 CO SENIOR701-000-222.09
          9.52 CO PUBLIC SAFETY701-000-222.07
          4.96 COUNTY HOUSING FUND701-000-222.06
          1.06 JUVENILE HOME701-000-222.05
          5.74 CCTA TRANSPORTATION701-000-222.04
          2.05 KCTA TRANSPORTATION701-000-222.01
         13.19 DUE TO COUNTY701-000-222.00
         50.00 INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP267-301-938.00
     46,738.16 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC226-528-801.00
     20,827.93 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC219-448-920.00
        549.00 PROFESSIONAL & CONTRACTUAL SVC217-301-801.00
     45,150.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT207-301-985.00
     14,529.77 COMPUTER SERVICE207-301-948.00
      1,754.79 RENTALS - EQUIPMENT207-301-940.00
     29,650.75 INSURANCE - WORKERS COMP207-301-938.00



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CHARTER TOWNSHP OF KALAMAZOO 17/17Page
:

02/08/2024 10:22 AM
User: MONICAK
DB: Kalamazoo Twp

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2024 - 01/31/2024

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeInvoiceCheck #BankCheck Date

 12,925,914.61 TOTAL
      4,033.33 MISC & ADMINISTRATION826-441-985.00
     14,900.00 STATION UPGRADES/EQUIPMENT826-441-975.00
     44,657.71 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT825-441-985.00
    144,755.33 CONSTRUCTION COSTS807-535-972.00
      1,661.00 ENGINEERING FEES807-535-946.00
        192.00 ENGINEERING FEES806-534-946.00
     10,807.21 HIDTA MONEY719-000-245.17
      3,672.51 FORFEITURE - OPR719-000-245.04
      5,502.65 REFUND703-000-275.00
          7.20 INT. -  SCH #40 - SINKING FUND703-000-239.08
        256.50 PARCHMENT SD #40 - SINKING FUND703-000-239.06
         25.82 INT. - SCH. #40 - DEBT703-000-239.05
        919.84 SCH. #40 - DEBT703-000-239.03
          0.27 INT. - SCH. #40 - OPER.703-000-239.02
        934.12 SCH. #40 - OPERATING703-000-239.00
         12.65 INT. -SCH. #32 - SINKING FUND703-000-238.07
        199.24 SCH #32 - SINKING FUND703-000-238.06
         69.82 INT. - SCH. #32 - DEBT703-000-238.03
      1,100.53 SCH. #32 - DEBT703-000-238.02
         96.98 INT. - SCH. #32 - OPER.703-000-238.01
      1,872.27 SCH. #32 - OPERATING703-000-238.00
  1,707,135.94 KPS SCH. #01 - DEBT703-000-237.00
         93.85 INT. -KRESA703-000-236.02
  1,537,933.09 KRESA ISD703-000-236.00
    772,966.87 KVCC703-000-235.00
         14.75 INT. - SCH. #40 - S.E.T.703-000-228.09
        821.49 SCH. #40 - S.E.T.703-000-228.07
         65.76 INT. - SCH. #32 - S.E.T.703-000-228.05
      1,292.87 SCH. #32 - S.E.T.703-000-228.04
        435.41 INT. - SCH. #01 - S.E.T.703-000-228.03
    432,782.63 KPS SCH# 01 OPERATING703-000-228.01
      3,787.30 KPS - SCH #01 - S.E.T703-000-226.20
    670,927.26 BOND- TWP ROADS703-000-226.19
    313,159.40 FIRE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT703-000-226.18



02/08/2024                                          Check Register Report For                                                      

                                             For Check Dates 01/01/2024 to 01/31/2024                                              

Check Physical Direct

Check Date Check Number Name Gross Check Amount Deposit

01/12/2024           52696 EMPLOYEE CHECK $210.00 $185.00 $0.00

01/31/2024 EMPLOYEE DIRECT DEPOSITS $508,787.74 $0.00 $357,594.95

01/17/2024         EFT2408 BURNHAM & FLOWER GROUP $776.65 $776.65 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2419 BURNHAM & FLOWER GROUP $776.65 $776.65 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2409 EW FIRE DUES $150.00 $150.00 $0.00

01/03/2024         EFT2403 MISDU $220.46 $220.46 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2410 MISDU $337.79 $337.79 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2420 MISDU $220.46 $220.46 $0.00

01/03/2024           52633 FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE #98 $2,643.69 $2,643.69 $0.00

01/30/2024           52765 FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE #98 $2,059.96 $2,059.96 $0.00

01/03/2024         EFT2404 IRS $68,745.72 $68,745.72 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2411 IRS $66,177.80 $66,177.80 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2421 IRS $55,649.77 $55,649.77 $0.00

01/03/2024         EFT2405 KTPOA $290.00 $290.00 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2412 KTPOA $340.00 $340.00 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2422 KTPOA $340.00 $340.00 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2413 MERS $37,519.40 $37,519.40 $0.00

01/03/2024         EFT2406 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $6,098.34 $6,098.34 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2414 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $8,236.41 $8,236.41 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2423 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $8,111.38 $8,111.38 $0.00

01/03/2024         EFT2407 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $13,113.24 $13,113.24 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2415 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $14,361.46 $14,361.46 $0.00

01/30/2024         EFT2424 ALERUS FINANCIAL, N.A. $9,548.31 $9,548.31 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2416 NW FIRE DUES $320.00 $320.00 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2417 STATE OF MICHIGAN $28,629.75 $28,629.75 $0.00

01/17/2024         EFT2418 WW FIRE DUES $720.00 $720.00 $0.00

01/31/2024 VENDOR DISBURSEMENTS $325,387.24 $325,387.24 $0.00

01/31/2024 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $834,384.98 $325,572.24 $357,594.95





Monthly Special Permit - Owner Request 02/01/2024

OwnerParcel Number  Date Entered

Special Permit

Permit # Job Address Fee Total

06-10-155-130

Meter socket inspection from fireWork Description:

$55.002010 N WESTNEDGE AVEPS24-06-001 BERNARDI, JESSE R. 01/04/2024

Meter Socket Inspection01/08/2024Inspections: Approved

06-13-111-490

Meter socket inspectionWork Description:

$55.00521 IRA AVEPS24-06-004 SORRENTINO, JESSICA 01/17/2024

Meter Socket Inspection01/22/2024Inspections: Approved

Total Permits For Type: 2

Total Fees For Type: $110.00

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $110.00

Grand Total Permits: 2Permit.DateIssued  Between
1/1/2024 12:00:00 AM AND
1/31/2024 11:59:59 PM AND
GovernmentUnitList.UnitCode  =
6
AND
Permit.Category  =  Meter Socket
Inspection OR
Permit.Category  =  Hood
Suppression OR
Permit.Category  =  Special Permit
OR
Permit.Category  =  Owner Request



Permit List 02/01/2024

OwnerParcel Number Issue Date

Building

Permit # ContractorJob Address Fee Total Const. Value

TRILLIUM LANDING OWNER, LLCPB24-06-002 3314 W MAIN ST $176.00 $0

Work Description: Install foundation drainage system and sump per plans.

01/03/202406-18-290-020 StayDry Home Services

TRILLIUM LANDING OWNER, LLCPB24-06-016 3320 W Main # 102 $176.00 $0

Work Description: Install foundation drainage and sump per plans.

01/18/202406-18-280-010 StayDry Home Services

TRILLIUM LANDING OWNER, LLCPB24-06-017 3326 W MAIN  102 $176.00 $0

Work Description: Install foundation drainage into existing sump

01/18/202406-18-280-010 StayDry Home Services

Total Permits For Type: 3

Total Fees For Type: $528.00

Total Const. Value For Type: $0

Population: All Records

Report Summary

Grand Total Fees: $528.00

Grand Total Permits: 3

Grand Total Const. Value:

Permit.PermitType  =  Building
AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between
1/1/2024 12:00:00 AM AND
1/31/2024 11:59:59 PM AND
Permit.BasicUsage  =  Commercial
AND
GovernmentUnitList.UnitCode  =
6



$0











Permit List 02/01/2024

OwnerParcel Number Issue Date

Building

Permit # ContractorJob Address Fee Total Const. Value

HILL, MARKPB24-06-007 2109 SAGEBRUSH ST. $223.00 $5,641

Work Description: 12' x 12' unconditioned 4 season room with stairs to grade per plans.

01/05/202406-07-195-070 Hutcherson Construction

BROWN CO EMPLOYEES CREDIT UNIONPB24-06-008 316 W MOSEL AVE $223.00 $0

Work Description: Alteration to existing building and change of occupancy to a"E" group daycare per plans.
FIRE SUPPRESSION NOT REQUIRED NOT PROVIDED.

01/19/202406-03-355-110 ELITE Companies

KALAMAZOO VALLEY HABITAT 4 HUMANITYPB24-06-009 1118 JENKS BLVD $104.00 $0

Work Description: Install basement bedroom egress window per plans.

01/10/202406-17-135-150

BROWN, BENJAMIN D. & JULIA W.PB24-06-021 2920 MAPLE AVE $104.00 $0

Work Description: Install basement egress window per plans.

01/18/202406-01-440-720 West MI Glass Block

DRAPER, TAYLOR N.PB24-06-022 3427 ENTERPRISE DR $104.00 $0

Work Description: Install basement egress window and well in north wall of basement

01/19/202406-01-220-290

SILLS, ELIZABETH R.PB24-06-031 2110 ALAMO AVE $176.00 $0

Work Description: Install subfloor drainage system and smartjacks to stabilize floor joists per plans

01/30/202406-08-455-510 Ayers Basement Systems

Total Permits For Type: 6

Total Fees For Type: $934.00

Total Const. Value For Type: $5,641

Report Summary



Population: All Records Grand Total Fees: $934.00

Grand Total Permits: 6

Grand Total Const. Value: $5,641

Permit.PermitType  =  Building
AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between
1/1/2024 12:00:00 AM AND
1/31/2024 11:59:59 PM AND
Permit.BasicUsage  =  Residential
AND
GovernmentUnitList.UnitCode  =
6



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

INC. NO ADDRESS TYPE OF CALL STA. 1 STA. 2 STA. 3 STA. 4 COMSTK OSH CITY TOTALS

2705 STRUCTURE FIRE 1 7 4 12

2706 FIRE ALARM 1 7 MR 3 11

2707 FIRE ALARM 4 4

2708 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 6 MG 6

2709 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 5 MG 5

2710 BREATHING PROBLEM 1 1

2711 FIRE ALARM 2 3 5

2712 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 5 5

2713 HEMORRHAGE/LACERATION 2 2

2714 FALL 5 5

2715 FALL 3 3

2716 BURNING COMPLAINT 4 4

2717 HEMORRHAGE/LACERATION 5 5

2718 BREATHING PROBLEM MR 3 3

2719 EMS ALARM 6 6

2720 CARBON MONOXIDE 1 3 4

2721 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 3 3

2722 CHEST PAIN 2 2

2723 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

2724 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 3 3

2725 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2726 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 3 3

2727 LIFT ASSIST 5 5

2728 BREATHING PROBLEM 6 6

2729 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 4 4

2730 CHEST PAIN 6 6

2731 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 4 4

2704 CHEST PAIN 5 5

2732 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2733 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 5 5

2734 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

2735 FIRE ALARM 3 3 6

2736 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 11 11

2737 SMOKE INVESTIGATION 9 2 15 26

2738 BREATHING PROBLEM 2 2

2739 BREATHING PROBLEM 3 3



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

SUB TOTAL SUB-TOTALS 17 69 0 97 10 0 0 193



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

INC. NO ADDRESS TYPE OF CALL STA. 1 STA. 2 STA. 3 STA. 4 COMSTK OSH CITY TOTALS

2740 BURNING COMPLAINT 5 5

2741 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2742 BURNING COMPLAINT 5 5

2743 LIFT ASSIST 5 MR 5

2744 SMOKE INVESTIGATION 7 7

2745 LIFT ASSIST 2 2

2746 UNCONSCIOUS 4 4

2747 STAB/GUNSHOT WOUND MR 3 3

2748 ALLERGIC REACTION/STINGS 2 2

2749 CHEST PAIN 5 5

2750 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE MR 3 3

2751 NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL 5 5

2752 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2753 LIFT ASSIST 2 2

2754 EMS ALARM 2 2

2755 FIRE ALARM 3 6 9

2756 AID GIVEN - FIRE 11 MG 11

2757 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 3 3

2758 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2759 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 MR 5

2760 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

2761 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 5

2762 HYPOTHERMIA 4 4

2763 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 2 2

2764 PSYCHIATRIC PROBLEMS 5 5

2765 NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL 2 2

2766 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 4 4

2767 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 3 3

2768 CHEST PAIN 2 2

2769 CARDIAC ARREST 5 12 17

2770 STAB/GUNSHOT WOUND 10 10

2771 BREATHING PROBLEM 1 1

2772 BREATHING PROBLEM 1 1

2773 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 5 5

2774 STRUCTURE FIRE 9 6 14 29

2775 EMS ALARM 1 1



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

SUB TOTAL 49 132 0 182 16 0 0 379



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

INC. NO ADDRESS TYPE OF CALL STA. 1 STA. 2 STA. 3 STA. 4 COMSTK OSH CITY TOTALS

2776 FIRE ALARM 1 3 2 6

2777 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 1 1

2779 CHEST PAIN 3 3

2780 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 5

2781 HEMORRHAGE/LACERATION 3 3

2782 BREATHING PROBLEM 3 3

2783 BURNING COMPLAINT 9 MR 9

2784 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 4 4

2785 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 9 9

2786 NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL 8 8

2787 BREATHING PROBLEM 3 3

2788 BREATHING PROBLEM 2 2

2789 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 3 3

2790 EMS ALARM 6 6

2791 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 5 MR 5

2792 UNCONSCIOUS 4 4

2793 BREATHING PROBLEM 1 1

2794 BREATHING PROBLEM 2 2

2795 BREATHING PROBLEM 3 3

2796 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 1 1

2797 CHEST PAIN 2 2

2798 FALL 1 1

2799 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 5 5

2800 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 5 5

2801 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 3 MR 3

2802 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2803 EMS ALARM 4 4

2804 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 2 2

2805 EMS ALARM 4 4

2806 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 4 4

2807 WATER LEAK 3 5 3 4 15

2808 FALL 3 6 9

2809 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2810 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 4 4

2811 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 3 3

2812 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 2 2



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

SUB TOTAL 71 189 0 246 19 0 6 531



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

INC. NO ADDRESS TYPE OF CALL STA. 1 STA. 2 STA. 3 STA. 4 COMSTK OSH CITY TOTALS

2813 WIRES DOWN/ARCING 4 4

2814 ALTERED MENTAL STATUS 5 5

2815 FALL 7 7

2816 FALL 4 4

2817 SICK PERSON 5 5

2818 FIRE ALARM 3 6 9

2819 UNCONSCIOUS 4 4

2820 BREATHING PROBLEM 6 6

2821 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

2822 STROKE 8 8

2823 GAS LEAK 4 4 3 11

2824 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 2 MG 2

2825 ALLERGIC REACTION/STINGS 4 4

2826 LIFT ASSIST 1 1

2827 BREATHING PROBLEM 2 2

2829 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 5 5

2830 ASSIST POLICE 1 1

2831 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 5

2832 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 5

2833 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 5 5

2834 BREATHING PROBLEM 1 1

2835 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 1 1

2836 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 4 4

2837 EMS ALARM 7 7

2838 NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL 4 4

2839 NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL 3 MG 3

2840 CHEST PAIN 2 2

2841 FALL 2 2

2842 LIFT ASSIST 4 4

2843 STROKE 3 3

2844 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 1 1

2845 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 6 6

2846 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 1 1

2847 EMS ALARM 4 4

2848 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 5 5

2849 ALLERGIC REACTION/STINGS 4 4



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

SUB TOTAL 97 244 0 312 22 0 6 681

INC. NO ADDRESS TYPE OF CALL STA. 1 STA. 2 STA. 3 STA. 4 COMSTK OSH CITY TOTALS

2850 FALL 3 3

2851 FORCIBLE ENTRY 2 2

2852 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 4 4

2853 CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE 3 3

2854 OVERDOSE/POISONING 5 5

2855 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 5 MG 5

2856 LIFT ASSIST 4 MR 4

2857 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

2858 FIRE ALARM 4 4 8

2859 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 5 5

2860 UNCONSCIOUS 5 5

2861 AID GIVEN - FIRE 6 MG 6

2862 FIRE ALARM 4 4

2863 BREATHING PROBLEM 4 4

2864 FALL 4 4

2865 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 4 4

2866 BREATHING PROBLEM 2 2

2867 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 3 3

2868 MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 7 7

2869 CHEST PAIN 3 3

2871 WELFARE CHECK 4 4

2870 HEMORRHAGE/LACERATION 5 5

2872 EMS ALARM 3 3

2873 CARDIAC ARREST 7 5 12

2874 EMS ALARM 11 11

2876 STROKE 6 6

2877 OVERDOSE/POISONING 6 6

2878 AID GIVEN - FIRE 4 MG 4

2879 EMS ALARM 2 2

2880 EMS ALARM 2 2

2881 FALL 6 6

2882 UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN 6 6

2883 FALL 3 3

2884 CANCELLED EN ROUTE 3 6 MR 9

2885 FIRE ALARM 2 7 9



KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE REPORT: December 2023

2886 BREATHING PROBLEM 5 5

TOTALS 131 328 0 373 22 0 6 860



AID GIVEN - FIRE

AID GIVEN - HAZMAT TEAM

AID GIVEN - MEDICAL

AID GIVEN - MOVE UP

ABDOMINAL PAIN

ALLERGIC REACTION/STINGS

ALTERED MENTAL STATUS

ANIMAL BITE

ASSAULT

ASSIST POLICE

ATTEMPT SUICIDE

BACK PAIN

BREATHING PROBLEM

BURNING COMPLAINT

BURNS

CANCELLED EN ROUTE

CARBON MONOXIDE

CARDIAC ARREST

CHEST PAIN

CHOKING

CONVULSIONS/SEIZURE

DIABETIC PROBLEM

DUMPSTER FIRE

ELEVATOR RESCUE

EMS ALARM

EYE INJURY

EXTRICATION

FALL

FIRE ALARM

FORCIBLE ENTRY

GAS LEAK

GRASS/BRUSH FIRE

HAZMAT INVESTIGATION

HEAD INJURY/PAIN

HEAT EXHAUSTION

HEMORRHAGE/LACERATION

HIGH ANGLE RESCUE

HYPOTHERMIA

LIFT ASSIST

MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT

NOTHING FOUND/ARRIVAL

OVERDOSE/POISONING

PREGNANCY/OB

PSYCHIATRIC PROBLEMS

SICK PERSON

SMOKE INVESTIGATION

STAB/GUNSHOT WOUND

STROKE

STRUCTURE FIRE

TREE DOWN/REMOVAL

UNCONSCIOUS

UNKNOWN/PERSON DOWN

VEHICLE FIRE

WATER LEAK

WATER RESCUE/DROWNING

WELFARE CHECK

WIRES DOWN/ARCING



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

 

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

As required per the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MPEA) Act 33 of 
2008, as amended, the Planning Commission shall submit a report of 
its 2023 activities to the Kalamazoo Township Board. 

“A planning commission shall make an annual written report to the 
legislative body concerning its operations and the status of planning 
activities, including recommendations regarding actions by the 
legislative body related to planning and development.” 

In addition to fulfilling this requirement, the Annual Report and Work 
Plan increases information-sharing between staff, boards, 
commissions, and the governing body and assists with these entities 
with anticipating, preparing, and budgeting for upcoming priorities.  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEMBERSHIP 

We thank the following Commission 
members for their time commitment and 
their important contributions to the 
quality of life in Kalamazoo Township: 

• Fred Nagler, Chairperson 
• Denise Hartsough, Vice-Chair 
• Christopher Mihelich, Secretary 
• William Chapman 
• Warren Cook 
• Steve Leuty, Board liaison  
• Peter Morrison (resigned)  
• Mike Seals 

This Annual Report is 
intended to serve as a 
planning document that 
outlines the work plan 
for the next fiscal year 
and is a communication 
tool to share recent 
achievements and plans 
for future goals with the 
community.  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 

The Kalamazoo Township Planning Commission met twelve times in 
2023. This meets and exceeds the requirements of the MPEA, 
which requires a minimum of four meetings annually. 

1. Thursday, January 5 ,2023 
2. Thursday, February 2, 2023 
3. Thursday, March 2, 2023 
4. Thursday, April 6, 2023 
5. Thursday, May 4, 2023 
6. Thursday, June 1, 2023 
7. Thursday, July 6, 2023  
8. Thursday, August 3, 2023  
9. Thursday, September 7, 2023  
10. Thursday, October 12, 2023 
11. Thursday, November 2, 2023  
12. Thursday, December 7, 2023 

Planning Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 
2023 Annual Planning Report to Township Board & 
2024 Planning Commission Work Plan  
Kalamazoo Township, MI 



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

The Kalamazoo Township Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) is responsible for Zoning Ordinance interpretation and 
granting variances in the Township. A variance may be granted to an applicant for reasons of unnecessary 
hardship due to special circumstances located on a specific site or property.  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEMBERSHIP 

We thank the following ZBA members for their time commitment and good work: 

• Nicky Leigh 
• Shawn Blue 
• Fred Nagler, Planning Commission liaison 
• Lisa Mackie, Township Board liaison  
• David Combs (joined fall 2023) 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETINGS 

The ZBA held nine meetings in 2023. The meeting dates include: 

1. Wednesday, January 18, 2023 
2. Wednesday, April 19, 2023   
3. Wednesday, May 17, 2023 
4. Wednesday, July 19, 2023 
5. Wednesday, August 16, 2023  
6. Wednesday, September 20, 2023  
7. Wednesday, October 18, 2023 
8. Wednesday, November 15, 2023  
9. Wednesday, December 20, 2023  

A breakdown of the ZBA’s business and actions are provided on the next page below.  



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

VARIANCES (ZBA) 

Application 
Type Location Project Description Decision Date 

Variance 2016 N. Pitcher Street 
Variance request to allow the construction of landscaping 
berms that are six (6) feet in height where a maximum of 
three (3) feet is permitted. 

Approved 
January 18, 2023 

Variance  4629 Winding Way  

To obtain relief from the rear yard setback requirement in 
the RM-2, Multi-Family/Mixed Use District of 30 feet to 
facilitate construction of additional attached accessory 
structure and principal living space. 

Tabled  
April 19, 2023 

Variance  910 Jenks Boulevard 

To obtain relief from the front yard setback requirement 
(25 feet) in the R-2, Single & Two Family Residential 
District of 15 feet to facilitate construction of a children’s 
play structure along Fletcher Avenue. 

Approved  
May 17, 2023 

Variance (3) 3809 E. Michigan 
Avenue 

To obtain relief from the parking minimum requirement in 
the I-2, General Industrial District in the form of a parking 
space reduction from the required 52 spaces to 18 spaces. 
To obtain relief from the parking lot landscaping 
requirements to provide landscaping based on the 18 
proposed parking spaces, which is contingent upon 
receiving relief from the parking minimum requirements.  
To obtain relief from the building height maximum of 45’-0” 
as specified for the I-2, General Industrial District to allow 
for a maximum height of 50’-10” for the high bay in order 
to accommodate production. 

Approved 
July 19, 2023 

Variance 2334 Lincoln Avenue 
To obtain relief from the minimum side yard setback 
requirement in the I-2, General Industrial District from 30 
feet to 15 feet. 

Approved  
July 19, 2023 

Variance 222 S. Kendall  

To obtain relief from the front sign setback requirement 
(40ft) and side sign setback requirement (30ft) in the RM-
3, Residential Restricted District to place a ground sign at 
the entrance of the apartment complex. 

Approved 
July 19, 2023 

Variance 3809 E. Michigan 
Avenue 

To obtain relief from the minimum setback distance 
required for freight yards as it pertains to public & private 
rights-of-way in which a 300-foot setback is required and a 
150-foot setback is proposed. 

Approved 
September 20, 

2023 

Variance 3122 Santos Avenue 

To obtain relief from the maximum permitted lot coverage 
of 25% in the R-1 District, to permit the construction of a 
single-family residential dwelling with an estimated lot 
coverage of 31%. 

Tabled 
October 18, 2023 

Variance 3122 Santos Avenue 

To obtain relief from the maximum permitted lot coverage 
of 25% in the R-1 District, to permit the construction of a 
single-family residential dwelling with an estimated lot 
coverage of 31%. 

Approved  
November 15, 

2023 

Variance  2609 N. Burdick 

To obtain relief from the side & rear yard minimum setback 
requirements of the I-2, General Industrial District as it 
pertains to the placement of a dumpster enclosure pad 
three (3) feet from the side and rear property lines. 

Approved  
December 20, 

2023 

Variance  4629 Winding Way 

To obtain relief from the rear yard setback requirement in 
the RM-2, Multi-Family/Mixed Use District of 30 feet to 
facilitate construction of additional attached accessory 
structure and principal living space. 

Tabled  
December 20, 

2023 



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

2023 in Review  
The following table outlines the various reviews and decisions (site plan, special land use, rezoning, annual 
renewals, etc.) considered by the Planning Commission in 2023. 

REVIEWS (PLANNING COMMISSION) 

Application Type Location Project Description Decision Date 

Site Plan Review 
PUD Amendment 

3713 W. Main, 
Kalsec 

Kalsec applied for site plan review and for a PUD Amendment 
(subsequently subject to approval by the Township Board) to expand 
existing building 401 and build a new guard shack on the existing site. 

Approved 
January 5, 2023 

Annual Renewal 
4274 Ravine Rd.  

Aggregate 
Resources 

Annual gravel mine renewal for Aggregate Resources. Approved  
February 2, 2023 

Site Plan Review 
Special Land Use 

2429 Burdick, 
Park Consulting 

Review of a change of use and site plan to remove grow operations 
on-site and add processing of cannabis only on-site. 

Approved 
March 2, 2023 

Special Land Use 2017 N. Burdick,  
Tree Fellers 

Review of a special land use for a contractor’s storage yard 
operations. The application as presented did not meet special land 
use criteria. 

Denied  
April 6, 2023 

Site Plan Review 
910 Jenks Blvd.  
Hope Reform 

Church 

Review of an updated parking plan for Hope Reform Church to include 
the adjustment of parking spaces and inclusion of play structure. 

Approved  
April 6, 2023 

Special Land Use 
Site Plan Review 

2016 N. Pitcher,  
Graphic 

Packaging 

A special land use and site plan review to permit Graphic Packaging 
to construct a trucking/trailer storage facility on the Kalamazoo 
Township site. This was in compliance with EGLE requirements. 

Approved  
May 4, 2023 

Annual Renewal 1950 Ravine Rd. 
Superior Gravel Annual gravel mine review for Superior Gravel. Approved  

June 1, 2023 

Annual Renewal 
720 Mosel Ave. 

Peter’s 
Construction 

Annual gravel mine review for Peter’s Construction. Approved  
June 1, 2023 

Annual Renewal 
4274 Ravine Rd. 

Aggregate 
Resources 

Annual gravel mine renewal for Aggregate Resources. Approved  
June 1, 2023 

Rezoning 411 Nazareth Rd. To forward an approval recommendation to the Township Board for a 
rezoning from C-1 to R-2. 

Approved  
June 1, 2023 

Text Amendment 241 W. Mosel 
To discuss a potential zoning ordinance text amendment, submitted 
by property owners at 241 W. Mosel, to permit retail cannabis grow 
facilities in the C-1 district. 

No Action 
June 1, 2023 

Site Plan Review  
Special Land Use 

3809 E. Michigan, 
Consumers 
Concrete  

A special land use and site plan review for an additional building 
located on-site for a new concrete crushing plant.  

Approved  
July 6, 2023 

Annual Renewal  2702 Ravine Rd.  
Hillside Gravel Annual gravel mine renewal for Hillside Gravel. Approved  

August 3, 2023 

Fill Permit 
2016 N. Pitcher,  

Graphic 
Packaging 

A review of a fill permit to move the large dirt pile on-site and begin 
construction activities from approval. This is in compliance with EGLE. 

Approved  
August 3, 2023 

Site Plan Review  
3809 E. Michigan,  

Consumers 
Concrete 

A site plan review to discuss a building rotation from previous 
approved site plan. 

Approved  
August 3, 2023 

Annual Renewal 3800 Ravine Rd.  
Stoneco Gravel Annual gravel mine renewal for Stoneco Gravel. 

Approved  
September 7, 

2023 

Site Plan Review  2017 N. Burdick,  
Tree Fellers 

A review for a proposed site plan to conduct wood products 
manufacturing, including furniture manufacturing on-site. Also, the 
Manufacturing, compounding, assembling, packaging, or treatment of 
articles or merchandise from previously prepared materials. 

No Action  
September 7, 

2023 

Site Plan Review  2017 N. Burdick  
Tree Fellers 

A review for a proposed site plan to conduct wood products 
manufacturing, including furniture manufacturing on-site. Also, the No Action  



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

manufacturing, compounding, assembling, packaging, or treatment of 
articles or merchandise from previously prepared materials. 

October 12, 
2023 

Special Land Use 
Site Plan Review 

521 E. Mosel 
Cloud Cannabis 

To build out a currently unoccupied portion of the building, located at 
521 East Mosel, for a new tank room, office, operations, and storage. 

Approved  
November 2, 

2023 
Special Land Use  
Site Plan Review 

3735 Franklin  
SAIA Motor 

Freight 

To redevelop/re-utilize the former motor freight trucking facility at 3735 
Franklin Street in order to conduct motor freight warehousing and 
storage. 

Approved  
November 2, 

2023 

Special Land Use 
Site Plan Review 

521 E. Mosel 
Cloud Cannabis 

To complete the final build-out of the existing building located at 521 
E. Mosel. 

Approved  
December 7, 

2023 

Site Plan Review 316 W. Mosel 
Maragret Daycare  To operate a daycare/childcare facility. 

Approved  
December 7, 

2023 

AND MORE…  

Home Occupation Ordinance  

The Planning Commission worked for several months in 2022 on the review and update of the Township’s Home 
Occupation Ordinance. Modeled after top recommendations for best practices from municipal attorneys in 
Michigan, the home occupation ordinance update includes:  

• Categories of home occupations that vary in intensity with associated appropriate approval processes  
• Clarifies ambiguities in the current ordinance language  
• Offers flexibility to residents to operate businesses within the home 
• Establishes a clear path from review, to approval, to enforcement  

The ordinance text was approved by the Planning Commission and Township Board in February 2023. 

Master Plan Update 

A large undertaking headed by the Planning Commission in 2022 included the Township Master Plan update. The 
Planning Commission met several times, open to the public, in 2022 to workshop Master Plan content and led a 
public outreach campaign for a few months. The Master Plan is projected to be adopted in 2024. 

Sol Smart  

In January 2023, the Planning Commission listened to a presentation from the (former) Township Clerk, Mark 
Miller, regarding the status of the Township’s solar energy regulations. Sol Smart conducts reviews of various 
solar ordinances to ensure that the regulations produce the highest quality results and promote alternative energy 
sources. It was identified that few areas of the Ordinance should be updated, but overall the current regulations 
are adequate. 

Marijuana Business Fencing Requirements  

Due to changing State laws regarding the removal fencing requirements for marijuana businesses, the Planning 
Commission moved to repeal the marijuana fencing requirements from Sections 8.02 VV, WW, and XX in March 
2023. By doing so, marijuana business applicants would not be required to update their site to include fencing, 
which can become a cumbersome and expensive requirement for business owners in the Township. 

2024-2029 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

Trustee Leuty presented the 2024-2029 CIP in August 2023. The CIP assigns costs to the Township’s vision, 
quantifies the expectations, and presents an annual plan for getting closer to that vision. It is in this role that the 
Township Administration has prepared the CIP to outline funding, expenditures, and other priorities.  



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

 

 

 
 
 

Looking Ahead: 
2024 Work Plan 
 
In the coming year, the following are additional projects  
the Planning Commission may undertake: 
 
 
 

KALAMAZOO TOWNSHIP MASTER PLAN ADOPTION 

One of the most important activities planned for 2024 is the adoption of the Kalamazoo Township Master Plan. 
The Master Plan is a policy guiding document that plays a significant role in shaping the future land use, 
transportation, sustainability, and other aspects of a community. Throughout 2024 and beyond, the Planning 
Commission will be working alongside Township Staff and the Township Board to adopt the Master Plan and 
implement the ideas and vision articulated within. Some significant themes of the Master Plan will include:  

• Future land uses (e.g., planned residential densities, commercial corridors, industrial corridors, mixed-use 
areas, etc.) 

• Aging in place and best practices in sustainability  
• Future transportation (motorized and non-motorized)  
• Zoning plan and zoning ordinance recommendations  
• Action-oriented implementation plan 

SCHEDULE OF REGULATIONS  

In reviewing variance requests and by examining building permits submitted to the Township, it has become 
apparent that the Township’s current schedule of regulations for several zoning districts are not reflective of the 
real-life built conditions in many areas of the Township. Most notably, the I-2, General Industrial District, R-2, 
Single & Two Family Residential District, and R-1, Single Family Residential District. In 2024, we will examine and 
run an analysis on the existing conditions for each of the Township’s zoning districts and recommend any 
applicable changes as they relate to minimum lot size requirements, setback requirements, lot coverage 
requirements, and others.  

OTHER ORDINANCE UPDATES 

Throughout 2024, the Planning Commission and Township staff will intermittently examine and update other parts 
of the Township Zoning Ordinance to increase user-friendliness and clarity. Some of the ordinance updates that 
can be reviewed in 2024 are:  

• Updating the sign ordinance in response to Reed v. Gilbert rulings  
• Updating the outdoor storage setback requirement for Industrial Districts 
• Updating ordinance provisions relating to landscaping and screening

By preserving what 
Kalamazoo Township 
already has, and 
enhancing those 
elements that can be 
improved, the Township 
can continue to support 
a high-quality place to 
live, work and play.  



2023 ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT & 2024 WORK PLAN 
Kalamazoo Township, Michigan 

WELLHEAD PROTECTION ORDINANCE  

In 2023, the Township Board adopted a Wellhead Protection Ordinance. As such, in 2024 (and following years), 
The Planning Commission will expand site plan reviews to include drinking water protection in response to the 
Board of Trustees’ adoption of a Wellhead Protection Ordinance in December 2023.  

WIND AND SOLAR ENERGY 

In 2023, the State of Michigan passed PA 233 and PA 234. The new language in these Acts set forth a regulatory 
process for the construction of wind and solar energy facilities in the State of Michigan – particularly “utility-scale” 
wind and solar energy facilities. PA 233 and PA 234 effectively preempt local governments to regulate:  

• Any solar energy facility with a nameplate capacity of 50 megawatts or more  
• Any wind energy facility with a nameplate capacity of 100 megawatts or more  
• Any energy storage facility with nameplate capacity of 50 megawatts or more and an energy discharge 

capability of 200 megawatt hours or more 

Into 2024, the Planning Commission will keep informed on any new information or guidelines that arise out of 
these new Acts. This includes examining and updating the Township’s Zoning Ordinance to better comply with the 
State’s decision. This includes Section 8.02.TT.2 of the zoning ordinance – which attempts to regulate utility-scale 
solar facilities of 50 megawatts or more. 



 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo Community Survey-2023 

 

 

Report to the Township of Kalamazoo  

 

Kercher Center for Social Research 

Western Michigan University 

 

 

 

 

January 2024 

 

 

Prepared by:  

 

Patrick Cundiff 

Department of 

Sociology 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Table of Contents 

 

Executive Summary…………………………………………………………………….. 1 

• Mail Surveys……………………………………………………………………. 1 

• Internet Surveys………………………………………………………………… 5 

 

Methodology and Samples……………………………………………………………… 9 

• Methodology…………………………………………………………………… 9 

• Samples…………………………………………………………………………   10 

 

Results……………………………………………………………………………………  16 

• Mail Surveys……………………………………………………………………..  16 

▪ Close-Ended Questions………………………………………………………  16 

▪ Written Reponses…………………………………………………………….  48  

• Internet Surveys………………………………………………………………….  58 

▪ Close-Ended Questions………………………………………………………. 58 

▪ Written Responses………………………………………………………….… 89 

 

Appendix: Questionnaire Questions (Reproductions)…………………….……………….91 

• Mail Surveys……………………………………………………………………….91 

• Internet Surveys……………………………………………………………………95 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ii 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo Community Survey was first mailed to a random sample of 3,000 

residential addresses located within the Township of Kalamazoo, then 30 days following the 

mail survey an identical online version of the survey was released to the general public. This 

executive summary serves to highlight key findings generated from the responses in each of 

these surveys. 

 

Mail Surveys 

 

Evaluation of Township Services: 

 

The 2023 Community Survey focused on providing township leaders with resident evaluations 

of township and community services provided or administered by the Township of Kalamazoo. 

The results from these questions are provided below: 

 

• In evaluating the police, a majority of respondents (60 percent) found the Township of 

Kalamazoo Police Department to be good or excellent overall in its coverage and 

response. Additionally, a majority (51 percent) found the level of police service provided 

within the township to be at the right amount or more than enough. While overall there 

seems that a majority of respondents are satisfied with police services, in the area of 

traffic enforcement respondents were divided with 41 percent finding the level of traffic 

enforcement lacking, 7 percent finding the level of traffic enforcement excessive, and 34 

percent finding the level of traffic enforcement to be at an appropriate level.  

• In evaluating firefighting services a majority (75 percent) found the Township of 

Kalamazoo Fire Department to be good or excellent in its coverage and response. 

Additionally, a majority of respondents (63 percent) perceived the level of firefighters 

and emergency medical responders to be at the right level or more than enough 

(approximately 4 percent reported having more than enough).  

• The Township’s parks were found to be good or excellent by a majority of respondents 

(65 percent). While respondents generally held favorable views of the Township’s parks, 

when asked to evaluate specific aspects of the parks (quality of facilities, access for 

disabled, safety, and quality of events) a majority of respondents held no opinion. A 

majority of respondents also held no opinion on their level of satisfaction with the 

Township’s parks.  

• In regards to the recycling services provided by the Township, a majority of respondents 

(68 percent) found them to be good or excellent.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Perceptions of Safety: 

 

Survey participants were presented with a question designed to assess perceptions of safety in 

their neighborhoods, the township as a whole, and the parks. Responses to these questions 

revealed that residents view the Township of Kalamazoo as a relatively safe place.  

 

• Overall a slight majority of residents (50 percent) have not noticed a change in safety 

within their neighborhood within the past 12 months. However, nearly 45 percent of the 

sample noted at least some increase in concerns over safety in their neighborhoods over 

the past 12 months. The values observed in 2023 also show an increase in concerns 

regarding safety over time as well when compared with responses to an identical 

question asked in 2021 as part of the Township of Kalamazoo Police Department 

Community Engagement survey. In 2021, 58 percent of respondents reported no changes 

in safety, 28 percent reported concerns over safety decreasing, and only 14 percent of 

respondents reported increased concerns over safety. 

• A majority of respondents (68 percent) believe that the township is a safe place to live.  

• While a majority of respondents (51 percent) held no opinion on the safety and security 

of the township’s parks, respondents who did hold opinions selected good or excellent as 

the modal response.   

 

Evaluation of Infrastructure: 

 

Related to issues surrounding quality of life, survey participants were presented with a series of 

questions related to the Township of Kalamazoo’s infrastructure. Focusing on road/street 

maintenance/repair, accommodations for bicycle and foot traffic, number of retail/commercial 

sites, number of restaurants/bars, and housing the following results were observed:  

 

• When asked to evaluate the street maintenance and repair a majority of respondents 

rated the Township’s service in this department as less than good (59 percent of 

respondents selected fair or poor).   

• When asked to think about the Township of Kalamazoo’s accommodations for bicycle 

and foot traffic, a plurality of respondents found the accommodations to be good or 

excellent (42 percent).  

• A near majority of respondents (49.82 percent) observed the number of restaurants and 

bars within the Township to be good or excellent. 

• A majority of respondents (55 percent) found the number of retail and commercial sites 

within the Township to be good or excellent. 

• When asked to identify the types of homes missing within the community respondents 

expressed a desire to see additional age-restricted communities as well as small single-

family homes most often.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

Budgetary Priorities: 

 

In line with questions asked during the 2013 community survey, township residents were also 

asked about how to budget for some of the township’s services in the event of inadequate 

revenues to maintain current service levels. Additionally, respondents were asked to gauge their 

support for potential future service improvements.  

 

• Across all services asked about (law enforcement, fire response, emergency medical 

response, sidewalk repair, road maintenance, bike/walking paths, recycling, parks, code 

enforcement, and bulk trash/fall leaf pick up) a majority of respondents was not 

observed. While majorities were not observed, respondents most often elected to raise 

taxes to maintain current service levels for: law enforcement, fire response, emergency 

medical response, sidewalk repair, road maintenance, parks, and code enforcement. In 

contrast respondents elected (most often) to reduce service levels for bike/walking paths, 

raise user fees for recycling collection, and to privatize or outsource bulk trash/fall leaf 

pick up.  

• When asked about potential future service improvements, respondents generally found 

they needed more information about the improvements (reasons for why) before being 

able to make a determination on support for additional funding. The one exception was 

in their support for additional funding for road maintenance and repair.  

 

Evaluation of Township Management: 

 

Respondents were asked to rate their perceptions of those overseeing the Township’s 

management (Board of Trustees, Township Manager, Township Hall Staff) as well as the how 

the township is developing (it’s growth, spending, and economic development).  

 

• A majority of respondents reported neutral evaluations of satisfaction when asked to 

evaluate those overseeing the Township’s management. 68 percent of respondents 

reported being neither satisfied nor dissatisfied with the Board of Trustees, 64 percent 

were neither satisfied nor dissatisfied with the Township Manager, and 58 percent were 

neither satisfied nor dissatisfied with the Township Hall Staff.  

• This neutrality in satisfaction continued when respondents were asked to rate the 

Township’s spending (58 percent), economic development (57 percent), and responsible 

growth (37 percent, modal response).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

Evaluation of Township Communication: 

 

Finally, respondents were asked to evaluate the Township’s communication by evaluating the 

Township’s website, social media presence, and their general perceptions of communication and 

engagement with the public.  

 

• A plurality of respondents (41 percent) held no opinion on the Township’s website. 

However, nearly one third of respondents felt that the website was less than good.  

• A majority of respondents (61 percent) held no opinion on the Township’s social media. 

However, as with the website, for those who held an opinion it was more often negative 

(rating the social media as less than good).  

• A majority of respondents (51 percent) found the Township’s communication and 

engagement with the public to be less than good. 

• When respondents were asked how they may be better reached with communication, 

they expressed a desire for the creation of a newsletter that could be mailed or emailed to 

residents.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

Internet Surveys 

 

To supplement the randomly selected mail survey sample, an identical version of the survey was 

made available online for anyone to complete anonymously. The survey link was advertised by 

the Township of Kalamazoo to promote responses. While online surveys offer greater 

accessibility for respondents, they do come with certain drawbacks. Anonymous online surveys 

distributed by link are not randomly selected (as the mail survey was). Online surveys also must 

be sought out be respondents, versus mail surveys in which the respondents receive a direct 

invitation to participate. Overall, the results from both the mail and online surveys shared more 

similarities than differences. Given the low total number of respondents to the online survey 

(overall sample size was 79, however individual questions had lower levels of response) it is 

important to note that patterns observed in the limited number of responses to the online survey 

may not be indicative of population at large and may not possess enough statistical power to 

draw conclusions from. 

 

Evaluation of Township Services: 

 

• In evaluating the police, a plurality of respondents (49 percent) found the Township of 

Kalamazoo Police Department to be good or excellent overall in its coverage and 

response. Additionally, a slight majority (50 percent) found the level of police service 

provided within the township to be at the right amount or more than enough. While 

overall there seems that a majority of respondents are satisfied with police services, in 

the area of traffic enforcement a majority of respondents (53 percent) rated the service as 

less than good (fair or poor).  

• In evaluating firefighting services a majority (65 percent) found the Township of 

Kalamazoo Fire Department to be good or excellent in its coverage and response. 

Additionally, a majority of respondents (71 percent) perceived the level of firefighters 

and emergency medical responders to be at the right level or more than enough.  

• The Township’s parks were found to be good or excellent by a majority of respondents 

(53 percent).  

• In regards to the recycling services provided by the Township, a majority of respondents 

(56 percent) found them to be good or excellent.  

 

Perceptions of Safety: 

 

• A majority of residents (50 percent) noted at least some increase in concerns over safety 

in their neighborhoods over the past 12 months. Very few respondents noticed decreases 

in their concerns.  

• A majority of respondents (51 percent) believe that the township is a safe place to live.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 

 

Evaluation of Infrastructure: 

 

• When asked to evaluate the street maintenance and repair a majority of respondents 

rated the Township’s service in this department as less than good (62 percent of 

respondents selected fair or poor).   

• When asked to think about the Township of Kalamazoo’s accommodations for bicycle 

and foot traffic, a majority of respondents found the accommodations to be good or 

excellent (52 percent).  

• A majority of respondents (53 percent) observed the number of restaurants and bars 

within the Township to be less than good. 

• A majority of respondents (50 percent) found the number of retail and commercial sites 

within the Township to be good or excellent. 

• When asked to identify the types of homes missing within the community respondents 

expressed a desire to see additional small single-family homes and age-restricted 

communities most often.  

 

Budgetary Priorities: 

 

• Similar to the mail survey, across all services asked about (law enforcement, fire 

response, emergency medical response, sidewalk repair, road maintenance, bike/walking 

paths, recycling, parks, code enforcement, and bulk trash/fall leaf pick up) a majority of 

respondents was not observed. While majorities were not observed, respondents most 

often elected to raise taxes to maintain current service levels for: law enforcement, fire 

response, emergency medical response, and parks. In contrast respondents elected (most 

often) to reduce service levels for bike/walking paths, raise user fees for code 

enforcement, and to privatize or outsource sidewalk repair, road maintenance, recycling, 

and bulk trash/fall leaf pick up.  

• When asked about potential future service improvements, respondents generally found 

they needed more information about the improvements (reasons for why) before being 

able to make a determination on support for additional funding. In only three instances 

was the modal response support or opposition. Online respondents opposed additional 

funding for improving township hall and parks/recreation while supporting additional 

funding for road maintenance and repair. 

 

Evaluation of Township Management: 

 

• A majority of respondents reported neutral evaluations of satisfaction when asked to 

evaluate those overseeing the Township’s management. 54 percent of respondents 

reported being neither satisfied or dissatisfied with the Board of Trustees, 58 percent 

were neither satisfied or dissatisfied with the Township Manager, and 54 percent were 

neither satisfied or dissatisfied with the Township Hall Staff.  

• This neutrality in satisfaction continued when respondents were asked to rate the 

Township’s spending (39 percent, modal response), economic development (54 percent), 

and responsible growth (44 percent, modal response).  

 

 



7 

 

Evaluation of Township Communication: 

 

• A majority of respondents (65 percent) felt that the website was less than good.  

• A majority of respondents (73 percent) held a rating of Township’s the social media as 

less than good.  

• A majority of respondents (82 percent) found the Township’s communication and 

engagement with the public to be less than good. 

• When online respondents were asked how they may be better reached with 

communication, they too expressed a desire for the creation of a newsletter that could be 

mailed or emailed to residents.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

Full Report: 

 

The full details of the methodology, sample, and results are reported in the following sections. In 

addition to more statistical information relating to the above findings, the results also include all 

write-in responses and comments provided by participants. The comments provided for questions 

6 (If ‘Other’ was selected, respondents’ responses to what they think the best form of 

communication the Township could use), 9 (If ‘Other’ was selected, respondents’ responses to 

what types of homes or households are missing), and 23 (“We welcome your comments and 

suggestions. Please write them in the space below or enclose a note.”) for both the mail and 

online surveys are particularly detailed, including a wide variety of thoughts, opinions, 

criticisms, and suggestions. Themes that were found to be most prevalent are identified. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 

 

Methodology and Samples 

 

A questionnaire was designed through collaboration between the Kercher Center for Social 

Research and the Township of Kalamazoo (TK) to examine the opinions of Township of 

Kalamazoo residents in relation to their community.  

 

In October 2023, the questionnaire was first mailed to a random sample of 3,000 Township of 

Kalamazoo residents. Addresses were grouped by neighborhood (Eastwood, Northwood, 

Westwood, and Lakewood) and sampled to reflect population distributions. The smallest 

neighborhood, Lakewood, was over sampled in an attempt to better represent the concerns of 

residents in that neighborhood. To accommodate the oversampling of Lakewood addresses, the 

two most populous neighborhoods (Westwood and Eastwood) were undersampled. Overall the 

sampling strategy was only able to slightly increase Lakewood resident participation. Each 

questionnaire was addressed to an address, allowing any member of the household over the 

age of 18 to participate. Between October 20th of 2023 and December 12th of 2023 a total of 

279 valid surveys were returned by respondents. The total response rate was 9.3 percent. This 

response rate was slightly below typical response rates for similar surveys conducted by the 

Kercher Center for Social Research and the field in general (with average response rates for 

mail-based surveys ranging from 10-15 percent). The 2021 Community Engagement Survey 

conducted on behalf of the Township of Kalamazoo Police Department previously yielded an 

11.56 percent response rate as well. While the response rate was slightly lower than 

anticipated, the number of completed surveys did provide enough responses to conduct 

analyses on the whole sample with sufficient statistical power and confidence. Lower response 

rates from the Eastwood and Lakewood neighborhoods (7.1 and 4.5 percent respectively) 

made neighborhood comparisons not statistically viable. 

 

On November 17th of 2023 the online version of the survey was made available for the general 

public to take. The online survey was advertised by the TK. Between November 17th of 2023 

and December 15th of 2023 a total of 79 valid responses were submitted. This report 

summarizes the findings of both the mail and online survey. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 

 

Samples  

 

The respondents to the mail survey were, on average, approximately 61 years old (mean = 

60.95). The majority of respondents were over the age of 50, with those between the ages of 

50 and 64 and those aged 65 or older comprising 27 and 48 percent of the sample respectively. 

They were followed by ages 35-49 (15 percent) and then 25-34 (9 percent). Approximately 

one percent of the sample fell into the final age group of 18-24. This sample (mail survey) was 

found to be skewed towards an older age than expected given estimates from census results 

which have estimated the population of 65 and older to be approximately 14 percent of the 

township’s population; however, this is a pattern common with mail-based surveys. 

 

In comparison, respondents to the online survey were on average approximately 48 years old 

(mean 47.84). The majority of respondents to the online survey were under the age of 50 

(comprising 63 percent of the sample).  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 1. Age of Respondents

Mean Min. Max. Mean Min. Max.

Age 60.95 22 99 47.84 26 76

Age Groups Number Percent Number Percent

18-24 2 0.77 0 0.00

25-34 23 8.88 5 8.93

35-49 40 15.44 30 53.57

50-64 70 27.03 15 26.79

65 or Older 124 47.88 6 10.71

Total Valid 259 56

Missing 20 23

Mail Survey Internet Survey



11 

 

In regards to gender of mail survey respondents, 53 percent of respondents identified as 

female, 46 percent identified as male, and approximately 1 percent of respondents identified as 

neither male nor female. In regards to race, the majority of respondents identified themselves 

as white (90 percent), followed by: black (4 percent), multiracial (3 percent), other                   (2 percent), 

and Asian (less than 1 percent). Finally, in regards to ethnicity, only 3 percent of the sample 

identified as Hispanic.  

 

As for the online survey, a majority of respondents identified as female (60 percent) while 38 

percent identified as male and 2 percent identified as neither male nor female. Similar to the 

mail survey online survey participants were overwhelmingly white (91 percent) and few 

respondents identified as Hispanic (5 percent). 

 

In comparison with census estimates the mail survey was similar while the online survey 

skewed more female. In terms of race, both the online and mail surveys seemed to miss 

capturing the opinions of people of color. Less than 10 percent of each survey contained 

respondents who identified as some race other than white, while census estimates would 

expect that number to be closer to 28 percent. Within survey research under-representation of 

minority groups is common, but the degree of under-representation observed in this sample is 

something to note when considering the results of the survey items.  

 

 

Table 2. Gender, Race and Ethnicity of Respondents

Census

Gender Number Percent Number Percent Percent

Female 141 53.21 35 60.34 51.3

Male 122 46.04 22 37.93 48.7

Neither of the above options 2 0.75 1 1.72

Total Valid 265 58

Missing 14 21

Race Number Percent Number Percent Percent

White 244 90.37 53 91.38 71.7

Black 11 4.07 1 1.72 15.9

Asian 2 0.74 1 1.72 2.4

American Indian, Alaska Native, Pacific Islander 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.2

Multiracial 7 2.59 2 3.45 7.9

Other 6 2.22 1 1.72

Total Valid 270 58

Missing 9 21

Ethnicity Number Percent Number Percent Percent

Hispanic 7 2.63 3 5.17 5.9

Non-Hispanic 259 97.36 55 94.83 94.1

Total Valid 266 58

Missing 13 21

Notes: 

1. Census information based on 2020 Census and 2020 American Community Survey-5 Year Estimates

Mail Survey Internet Survey



12 

 

Table 3 presents information regarding respondents’ household income. In regards to income of 

mail survey respondents, the top three                  responses included 27 percent of respondents reported 

household earnings between in excess of $100,000,  26 percent reported earnings ranging from 

$25,000 to $49,999, and 23 percent reported earnings $50,000-$74,999. 

 

For the online survey, a plurality of respondents reported household incomes in excess of 

$100,000 (38 percent), followed by the $75,000-$99,999 (24 percent) and $50,000 to $74,999 

(20 percent) income brackets. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 3. Income of Respondents

Income Number Percent Number Percent

Less than $25,000 28 10.85 1 1.82

$25,000-$49,999 67 25.97 9 16.36

$50,000-$74,999 60 23.26 11 20.00

$75,000-$99,999 33 12.79 13 23.64

$100,000 or more 70 27.13 21 38.18

Total Valid 258 55

Missing 21 24

Mail Survey Internet Survey



13 

 

The majority of respondents reported being married (55 percent), followed by: single or never 

married (14 percent), separated or divorced (14 percent), widowed (9 percent), and with a 

partner but not married (7 percent). In 17 percent of respondent households, children under the 

age of 18 were present. In households with children, the average number of children equaled 2 

with the number of children in these households ranging from 1 to 7. Finally, in regards to 

characteristics related to residency, respondents tended to have spent a considerable time in 

their current household with the average time lived in their current residence at nearly 24 years. 

Although, on average, respondents reported well established households, the sample did vary 

considerably in length of residency with a minimum residency of less than 1 year and a 

maximum residency of 82 years.  

 

The respondents in the online survey were largely similar to the mail survey in terms of 

domestic status with a majority of respondents (64 percent) reporting being married. Outside 

of the majority, respondents fell into the following categories: with a partner but not married 

(12 percent), single/never married (12 percent), separated or divorced (7 percent), and 

widowed (5 percent). In contrast to the mail survey, over 29 percent of respondents reported 

households with children under the age of 18 present. The online survey sample was nearly 

identical to the mail survey in terms of both the average number of children living in those 

households (2.09) and the range was slightly narrowed (1 to 4). Finally, in regards to length of 

residency, respondents reported an average of 19 years spent in their current residence.  

 

 
 



14 

 

Table 5 presents information on respondents’ veteran status and household. For mail survey 

respondents, approximately 11 percent reported having been an active duty veteran. In terms of 

household type, the majority of respondents were homeowners (88 percent). Just over 11 percent 

of respondents reported renting their household.  

 

As for the online sample, only 3 percent of respondents reported having been an active duty 

veteran. Finally, in terms of household type, the vast majority of respondents owning a house (95 

percent) or condo (10 percent). Only 2 percent of the respondents reported renting their 

household. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 5. Veteran Status and Household of Respondents

Active Duty Veteran Number Percent Number Percent

Yes 29 10.82 2 3.45

No 239 89.18 56 96.55

Total Valid 268 58

Missing 11 21

Household Type Number Percent Number Percent

Rent apartment, condo, or duplex 24 8.76 0 0

Rent an entire home 1 2.55 1 1.64

Own a condo 0 0 0 0

Own a house 242 88.32 58 95.08

Other 1 0.36 2 3.28

Total Valid 274 61

Missing 5 18

Mail Survey Internet Survey



15 

 

Finally, in Table 6 the neighborhood of residents is reported. Respondent neighborhood was 

obtained by sending out four identical surveys to address lists that were divided among the 

four neighborhoods within the Township of Kalamazoo (Eastwood, Lakewood, Northwood, 

and Westwood). The bulk of the sample originated from the Westwood neighborhood (46 

percent), followed by the Northwood (27 percent), Eastwood (22 percent), and Lakewood (5 

percent) neighborhoods. Based upon the comparison between population estimates and 

sample the survey sample is fairly well representative of the Township’s residents, with the 

exception being the representativeness of residents of Eastwood (as their percent of the 

sample is approximately 10 percent less than their population).  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 6. Neighborhood of Respondents

Neighborhood

Number of 

Surveys Sent

Number of 

Respondents

Response 

Rate

Percent of 

Sample

Percent of 

Population

Eastwood 858 61 7.11% 22.1 32

Northwood 666 74 11.11% 26.81 22

Westwood 1142 126 11.03% 45.65 42

Lakewood 334 15 4.49% 5.43 4

Total Valid 279

Total Response Rate 9.30%

Missing 0



16 

 

Survey Results 

 

Mail Survey 

 

Question 1: Over the past 12 months, to what extent have your concerns regarding safety in your 

neighborhood increased, decreased, or stayed the same? 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



17 

 

Question 1 was also previously asked in the Township of Kalamazoo Police Department 

Community Engagement Survey in 2021. For comparison the figure below provides the 2023 

results (in blue) beside the 2021 results (in orange).  

 

 
 

Overall the above comparison shows an increase in concerns for safety in township residents’ 

neighborhoods. In Table 7, the concerns over safety perceptions are broken down further by 

neighborhood of respondent.  

 

 
 

The results presented in Table 7 suggest that concerns over safety have increased across all 

neighborhoods, however, this rise appears more pronounced in the Eastwood and Lakewood 

neighborhoods.  

 

 

 

 

 

Table 7. 2023 versus 2021 Concerns over Safety by Neighborhood

Eastwood Northwood Westwood Lakewood

2021 2023 2021 2023 2021 2023 2021 2023

Decreased a lot 9.46 5.17 0 1.41 3.77 0 6.25 0

Decreased some 18.92 6.90 20.99 2.82 29.56 2.46 9.38 7.14

Stayed the same 51.35 29.31 65.43 60.56 54.09 56.56 71.88 28.6

Increased some 16.22 37.93 11.11 25.35 11.32 26.23 12.5 50.00

Increased a lot 4.05 20.69 2.47 9.86 1.26 14.75 0 14.29



18 

 

Question 2: Please rate each of the following as they pertain to the Township of Kalamazoo: 

 

Fire coverage and response for the community 

 

 
 

Police coverage and response for the community 

 

 
 

 



19 

 

Parks, recreation areas, trails, and preserves 

 

 
 

Recycling service 

 

 
 

 



20 

 

The number of restaurants and bars 

 

 
 

The number of retail and commercial sites 

 

 
 

 

 



21 

 

Street maintenance and repair 

 

 
 

Accommodations for bicycle and foot traffic 

 

 
 

 

 



22 

 

Question 3: The Township needs to live within its budget. In planning the budget, there is a need 

to establish priorities. Revenues (taxes, fees, etc…) to fund core Township services may not keep 

pace with the cost of providing such services. If revenues were not adequate to maintain 

Township services at current levels, please indicate the budgeting strategies or approaches you 

would support for each of the services listed below: 

 

Law enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



23 

 

Fire response 

 

 
 

Emergency medical response 

 

 
 

 

 



24 

 

Sidewalk repair 

 

 
 

Road maintenance 

 

 
 

 

 



25 

 

Add bike and walking paths 

 

 
 

Recycling collection 

 

 
 

 

 



26 

 

Parks 

 

 
 

Code enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 



27 

 

Bulk trash and fall leaf pick up 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



28 

 

In Table 8 a comparison is presented examining the results from the current community survey 

with the results of the community survey conducted in 2013. The table presents the budgetary 

strategy most selected (the modal response) by respondents.  

 

 
 

In comparing the most selected budgetary strategy for each of the services the township provides 

there was overall consistency in the modal response from respondents. For the services of: law 

enforcement, fire response, and road maintenance respondents continued to support the budget 

strategy of raising taxes to meet any budgetary shortfalls. However, the degree of supported has 

waned some in the years between 2013 and 2023; with an approximately 10 percent decline in 

the selection of raising taxes as the modal response. This decline in modality was observed 

across all services assessed in both the 2013 and 2023 surveys. The addition of bike and walking 

paths continued to see the modal response of reducing service levels. Two modalities did shift, 

those for parks and code enforcement. Respondents in the 2023 survey most supported additional 

taxes when it came to funding parks as compared to those in 2013 who most supported raising 

user fees. As for code enforcement, respondents in the 2023 survey most supported additional 

taxes as compared to those in 2023 who most supported reducing service levels. When reviewing 

this results it is also to keep in mind the narrowed modalities for some of these services as well 

as the sizeable percentages of respondents who held no opinion on budgeting for shortfalls with 

these services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 8. 2023 versus 2013 Budgetary Strategy Preferences

Most Supported Budget Strategy

Township Service 2013 2023

Law enforcement Raise Taxes (60%) Raise Taxes (49%)

Fire response Raise Taxes (60%) Raise Taxes (49%)

Emergency medical response NA Raise Taxes (36%)

Sidewalk repair NA Raise Taxes (27%)

Road maintenance Raise Taxes (51%) Raise Taxes (41%)

Add bike and walking paths Reduce Service Levels (36%) Reduce Service Levels (23%)

Recycling collection NA Raise User Fees (23%)

Parks Raise User Fees (38%) Raise Taxes (25%)

Code enforcement Reduce Service Levels (34%) Raise Taxes (18%)

Bulk trash and fall leaf pick up NA Privatize/Outsource (24%)



29 

 

Question 4: In thinking about potential future improvements, please review the areas below and 

indicate if you would support a new millage or user fee to fund it. 

 

Improving fire stations 

 

 
 

Improving township hall 

 

 



30 

 

Improving police station 

 

 
 

Road maintenance and repair 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



31 

 

Parks and recreation (expanding program options and/or capital improvements) 

 

 
 

Public transportation 

 

 
 

 

 

 



32 

 

Improving community outreach and engagement 

 

 
 

In Table 9, a summary of the results related to potential future service improvements is provided. 

The modal response is highlighted in green. 

 

 
 

Overall respondents generally requested more information beyond what was provided in the 

survey. However, the one exception was in the category of road maintenance and repair where a 

majority of respondents already support additional funding.  

 

 

 

 

Table 9. Consideration of Future Options

Potential Service Improvements

Support 

Additional 

Funding

Oppose 

Additional 

Funding

Need More 

Information

Improve fire stations 28% 19% 53%

Improve township hall 5% 41% 53%

Improve police station 23% 24% 53%

Road maintenance and repair 53% 14% 33%

Parks and recreation 30% 28% 42%

Public transportation 35% 29% 37%

Improving community 

outreach and engagement
22% 29% 49%



33 

 

Question 5: Please rate each of the following: 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s website 

 

 
 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s social media 

 

 
 

 

 



34 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s communication and engagement with the public 

 

 
 

Question 5 measured respondent perceptions of the Township’s electronic and internet presence. 

Across all items respondents were asked to rate, respondents on average held no opinion. In 

examining the responses from respondents with opinions, the plurality of respondents rated the 

Township’s electronic and internet presence as less than good (Fair was the plurality for all three 

items).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



35 

 

Question 6: In thinking about how the Township could best communicate with you regarding 

events, news, notes, and outreach, please select up to three (3) forms of communication that you 

would be most likely to use for this purpose by ranking them 1, 2, and 3 in the boxes provided. 

Please not that 1 should indicate the form of communication you would most prefer, 2 should 

indicate your next preference, and 3 should indicate the third-greatest preference.  

 

 
 

Overall, respondents expressed the greatest preference for the creation of a newsletter that could 

be mailed or emailed to residents regarding the Township’s: events, news, notes, and outreach. 

The next most preferred options for communication were text message, Facebook, and an 

automated phone call. Some respondents selected Other and provided a range of possibilities in 

that category including: using the Township’s website (with notifications), local news media, 

live-streaming all meetings, and public signage or flyers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



36 

 

Question 7: Please indicate whether the Township of Kalamazoo provides enough of each of the 

following: 

 

Police 

 

 
 

Firefighters and Emergency Medical Responders 

 

 
 



37 

 

Code enforcement 

 

 
 

Traffic enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 

 



38 

 

Question 8: In thinking about the Township, how much do you agree or disagree that your 

Township is: 

 

A safe place to live 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



39 

 

Physically attractive 

 

 
 

Growing responsibly 

 

 
 

 



40 

 

A safe place to bike and walk 

 

 
 

 

A perfect community for me 

 

 
 



41 

 

Question 9: What specific types of homes or households do you think are missing in the 

community? (Select all that apply, if none apply leave blank) 

 

 
 

Note: SFH stands for Single-Family Home while MFC stands for Multi-Family Complex 

 

Overall, respondents noted age-restricted communities, small single-family homes, and small 

single-family homes on large lots as the types of homes or households most missing from the 

community currently. A small percentage of respondents selected Other from the options and 

provided a range of responses including: affordable housing, tiny homes, housing for those with 

special needs or disabilities, and housing for the homeless.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



42 

 

Question 10: Please rate your current level of satisfaction with each of the following 

 

The Board of Trustees 

 

 
 

The Township Manager 

 

 



43 

 

 

Township Hall Staff 

 

 
 

The township’s spending 

 

 
 



44 

 

 

Economic development in the township 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



45 

 

Question 11: The township’s parks department oversees: Stroud Family Park, Rynbrandt Park, Jenks & 

Grand Pre Park, Lakewood Park, Academy Park, Grand Prairie Golf Course, Wilson Recreation Area. 

With these facilities in mind, please rate them on the following attributes: 

 

Quality of facilities 

 

 
 

Access for the disabled 

 

 



46 

 

Public safety/security 

 

 
 

 

Your level of satisfaction with these facilities 

 

 



47 

 

The township events delivered at these facilities 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



48 

 

Write-in Responses and Comments (Mail Survey) 

 

Question 23: We welcome any additional comments and suggestions. Please write them in the 

space below or enclose a note.  

 

The comments provided at the end of the survey were varied and ranging. Prominent themes 

included township services, communication, and taxes/spending. Many respondents expressed 

desires for additional services (such as curbside leaf pick-up that does not involve bagging) or 

improved services (ex. greater traffic enforcement, more snow removal services, different road 

maintenance, etc…). One of the most frequent themes surrounded respondents not having 

enough information from the township regarding services, facilities, or events. Respondents 

overall expressed a desire for greater communication from the township. Related to the desire for 

greater communication, many respondents noted issues that are outside of the township’s 

oversight (ex. frustrations over downtown Kalamazoo, speeding in areas not a part of the 

township, conditions around WMU’s campus, and county parks’ facilities). These comments 

provide some evidence that residents of the Township of Kalamazoo are not familiar with its 

boundaries and are unclear of where to voice concerns or frustrations. Greater communication 

from the township may alleviate these issues. Finally, another prominent theme had to do with 

taxes and spending. Many residents expressed frustrations with rising tax levels, had questions 

about where tax dollars were being spent, and some even questioned why the township should 

continue to operate separate from the City of Kalamazoo.   

 

Unabridged written comments (responses were transcribed as written, any spelling or 

grammatical errors were found in the respondents’ writings): 

 

With exception to the parts of the Kal-Haven Connector & KRUT (managed by the 

county) parks & green space is lacking, as well as a sense of community 

Bulk leaf pick up (curbside)- let us put our leaves on the street like other 

communities! (i.e. Parchment) 

Thank you for seeking my opinion!  

Property taxes have increased.  Cannot deal with all the hero demand- we were 

assured if voted in 6% sales tax would not be asked for higher taxes.  

I am tired of nonprofits. I don’t feel they pull their weight.  People who live or have 

another state as resident still pay for public services here. 

Where is the option to reduce government size or payroll? There is no good answer 

provided.  You’ve placed full responsibility for government overspending on the 

public. Funding this (outreach) is more important than the police? I have watched 

this neighborhood go downhill for almost 10 years.  I worry about rats and other 

vermin due to my neighbor’s trashy yard which has been that way for at least 5 

years. The township is aware of the problem and has been “working” with him.  

Apparently his “rights” are more important than mine? My yard is well maintained.  

Code enforcement needs some work.  Code is becoming very lax where in-home 

businesses are allowed in subdivisions where parking and traffic is increasing and is 

a nuisance.  Not against at-home businesses within reason.  Auto detailing not good 

because of all the unlicensed vehicles.  

Nowhere is it as safe as it was in 1945, but I love Kalamazoo!  



49 

 

My comments pertain to the eastside of the township.  I am neither politically or 

socially active.  There have been many changes in the years I’ve been here, and not 

all positive.  

The township services, especially parks and recreation opportunities, are very poor.  

Our taxes are quite high, but I struggle to explain where those dollars go.  The 

aesthetics of the township are uninviting and there is very little to brag about.  Make 

the township a place where young, active families are drawn to! A community pool 

that is clean and safe is an example.  We have lived here over 20 years and the best 

part of the township is Grand Prairie Golf Course.  That alone is not enough!  

Becoming very noisy.  Very little nature trails. Places for kids to ride motor bikes 

not available.  

Police/fire community is awesome but they deserve more employees to help out. 

Keep law enforcement, fire, and emergency medical response as #1 priority. Cut 

other items. This is a poorly designed survey.  In particular, there was no option 

when evaluating specific services to reducing a service nor was there an option for 

us to rank the priority of various services.  In addition, the survey was asking for 

detailed responses on a granular level without providing appropriate background 

information.  For example, expecting the typical township president to know who 

the trustees are reflects a government employee bias.   

Reevaluate how property taxes are calculated as I seem to be paying a lot more than 

neighbors with similar homes! Give tickets to those who park on streets too close to 

intersection and to those who park on lawns.  

Why? You won’t listen anyways- your compassion is reserved for the criminals, 

homeless, and gender confused.  So our city is in horrible condition- but go ahead 

and spend millions redirecting downtown traffic. ☹ 

I am unhappy about the guy who drives around in a township car to police garage 

sales.  Haven’t seen him in a while, but I witnessed him intimidating people holding 

sales- especially threatening to single women.  It gave me a really bad view of the 

township.  Hopefully he is no longer on the job- certainly there are more important 

concerns.   

Often I chose no opinion since I did not have enough information.  I liked the cannot 

judge option better.  Thank you!  

Highest taxes in the county. But residents wants come after trustees. Again no way 

to complain about the township’s shortfalls, i.e. snowplowing, unsafe roads- high 

taxes. 

This is what is wrong.  YOU got payed to do a survey by the township. More wasted 

$. Just like the stinky river. Pay somebody not once butt twice to tell us it stinks.  

I would like to see enforcement of vehicles on lawns…and the overall BLIGHT that 

is all too common on lawns.  There has to be a compromise with civil rights and the 

maintenance/ preservation of neighborhoods. 

The prioritization of bike and walking trails seems much higher than needed. The 

management of the unhoused population makes walking and biking options that 

aren’t for my family.  

With all issues township never responds. Why can’t we blow leaves curbside and 

have them picked up like other cities/counties/townships? Why no enclosed 

buildings at bus stops due to rain/snow? Can’t use restaurant restrooms.  Why not? 



50 

 

Porta potties for people in a hurry. Why won’t township fix the nasty water? I keep 

getting lied to when I complain.  White milky water, then dark brown water.  Triple 

filtering my water just to drink it.  

 

We live on a short dead-end street on the west side, which is VERY safe but reports 

of many car break-ins, mailbox robberies within a few blocks is very disturbing.  

There is little public green space in the township near us.   

I grew up in the township. Lived in the city for about 15 years after college before 

buying a house in the township. 

I really wish there were efforts surrounding the development of parks- either more 

parks or nicer parks. I feel the effort to consistently communicate with the residents 

of the township is lacking- I would like to see more. 

I would love enhancements to the West Main park behind the fire station and 

Markin Glenn Park, by getting new playground equipment 

More community activities 

Our income is not your concern 

Road planning is our biggest issue. We’re glad to hear of roundabouts coming to 

Drake & H/Squires. We need change at Barney & Nichols and at Nichols & Ravine. 

4-way stops aren’t working, and people use center turn lane as a lane to run the 

Barney stop. 

I believe affordable housing is the greatest challenge for the area. The financial 

burden of shelter is becoming unmanageable. 

My overall concern lately has been safety, car break-ins in Westwood 

neighborhood, porch pirates, and delayed police response to a couple issues on our 

street. We would greatly support more police funding and presence.  

Democrats and republicans need to work together on the township board so we 

don’t have drawn-out embarrassing expensive controversies like w/ township 

manager + fire department 

1) Best dog park is plot of privately owned land on Baker St. in Eastwood. What is 

its history + how is the township involved? More info please. 2) Too many 

dispensaries. 3) Sherine Miller is a horrible treasurer, and I hope someone better is 

in that role soon. 4) More focus on economic development on the eastside of the 

township is needed. Dollar Generals are a bad sign.  

The traffic issues- speeding running red lights/stop signs aggressive + reckless 

driving, improper traffic circle use near campus leaves us nearly terrified to drive. 

Safety is a major concern- drug dealing, guns, break-ins all around are increasing x 

2 yrs has us looking to move out of area. 

They need to take care of the homeless 

House on my street burned + nothing has been done with it. It has stood empty for 

ten months. Neighbors park cars + trucks on front lawn + nothing is done about it. 



51 

 

We have been pleased with the negotiated trash pickups, yardwaste pickup, bulk 

pickup, leaf pickup & recycling services - reasonably (not perfectly) reliable and 

reasonably priced while redirecting truck traffic on township roads  

Too much spending on the police.  

I love Kalamazoo. Will be better if have more activities for senior people 

More code enforcement. Community awareness on storm drains, lots of debri being 

blown into street clogging catch basins. Better traffic control on Alamo Ave & 

Grand Prairie. High rate of speed, passing is common. Would like to see MTS and 

school buses adhere to posted speed limits. 

I’ve waited years for the road at the end of my driveway to be fixed. When it rains 

or melting snow there is a pond at the end of my drive. Please come look: 2527 

Cumberland st 49006. Thank you 

We do not generally use the services of the community besides walking, & 

recycling, running. I have know idea who anyone is in question 10 and I can not 

remember any communications from kzoo township that mattered to us. Thank you! 

The township seems like it is spending far too much on the fire department. Is this a 

personal “fun project” for the supervisor. They want to build a fire station when the 

police station is falling apart.  

They need to get the homeless help and get the meth out of here.  

Income category should have no bearing on our opinion so left unanswered. Should 

amount of income have any type of bearing on opinions? What has it to do with 

opinions? 

Where is “reduce unnecessary spending”? Tax less- spend less 

Thank you for seeking our input. 

Housing. Kalamazoo’s wealth inequality is a travesty, a civic embarrassment 

Patrick Cundiff does a great job serving community, and golfer 

One major issue is the change of the speed limit on Nichols Rd. 45 mph is to fast for 

a rd with schools, bikes, pedestrians, fire station, churches. Very dangerous for 

everyone involved. Esp since not everyone obeys the speed limit posted. It is also 

residential, very difficult to even get out of our street. Traffic has also increased the 

past few years in the area. Poor decision.  

Can’t really comment on township parks- familiar only with Wilson Rec. Generally 

not opposed to request for increased mileage for DEMONSTRATED NEED- need 

to be educated of need (i.e. Township/police offices remodel/expand). I think this 

survey would have had more relevant if there had been a demographic question to 

denote which Kal township “neighborhood” (Westside, Eastside, Northside + would 

have given better measurable response of who responded + where concerns lie. 

Please help the homeless 

Please enforce codes for overgrown yards (my biggest complaint)- no mowing, and 

the sidewalks especially around Alamo need replacing there is about a 3-4 inch gap, 

someone is going to fall and reporting should be anonymous.  



52 

 

New affordable housing. I have a disability with a lot of expensive but can’t save for 

a house because (1) No affordable (decent) housing. (2) because I earn too much to 

participate in programs to get a house because I earn too much and have a lot to 

spend on medical. this is with decent insurance. Affordable NEW housing. New 

starter homes. 

Kal Twp needs to unlock the front- since that is where handicapped parking is 

located! ADA needs to be in place at the twp! 

Need focus on affordable housing for lower and middle income. most township 

services seek to be on east side. NOT much for those living on the west 

OUR TAXES ARE OVER PRICED. FIRE STATION WAS HANDLED ARE ON 

GOING WITH YET ANOTHER PILLAR OF THE COMMUNITY. AUDIT 

WEEDER WHERE DID THE MILLION DOLLAR FIRE STATION WE 

NEV[ER] HAD Built 

We have too many leaves + sticks in this area not to allow burning on some level. 

Also we have no curbs so we do not have roadside leaf pickup. Bags are too 

expensive for our large yards 

Very appreciative of re-paving work completed on Sage St- might stonebrooke ave 

be on the slate for 2024? Had our vehicle stolen this past summer- not conducive to 

feeling safe or helping one’s peace of mind. 

I used to feel safe walking, but now there are some pit bulls that occasional run 

loose, or I am approached by strangers 

Its difficult to answer these questions when I never receive anything from TK even 

though I have lived here 25 yrs. That is very sad. The board of directors should go 

door to door to get to know us + like have a BBQ at one of the parks for the 

community. Everyone get to know each other. 

Raise taxes on those who earn more (e.g., over 100,000) per yr. Do not have enough 

information about needs of community. Thank you for this survey. Many thanks to 

the helpful township staff! I appreciate the work you do for our community 

I would like to see no parking on yards enforced. It makes the area look getto. 

Northwood needs a lot more police presence + code enforcement 

Code enforcement is very poor. Part time help is not enough, garbage in yards, junk 

cars. especially in lakewood. thank-you 

Do not use any of the parks + recreation areas so I had no opinion on them 

Item#3e- don’t we have a 10 yr. millage to pay for this? f- please don’t do anything 

stupid like city of kal did their downtown. g- don’t we get billed for this separately 

as well as on our tax bill? #5b: don’t care. Where are the questions related to 

administrative costs + efficiencies? How is the township responding to the increased 

presence of homeless people + pan handlers in the township? 

 

  



53 

 

People running stop signs, motorcycles speeding down residential. Too many police 

cars sometimes at one spot. Spread them out. Too much attention to bikes- not very 

many bikes on the road. Too cold much of the year. Have police report pot holes to 

authorities as they make their rounds. Don’t allow people to throw junk out in front 

of their houses by the road. If something is put out for free- have a sign that says 

free, don’t require permits for garage sales. Police should use ordinary cars to watch 

for people running stop signs + motorcycles speeding- have a camera system to get 

plate readings. Have a site where homeowners can take downed branches i.e., 

(Battle Creek has such a site). Trim bushes at major intersection. Be sure stop signs 

in residential areas are not blocked by vegetation. Have township clear main side 

walks of snow- example along all rd. Require trash containers along road to be at 

least 3’ back. Sometimes trash haulers actually sit them partially on the road.  

Please improve the walkability of west main and drake. There are many commercial 

and residential buildings here but it isn’t easy to walk between them 

The section of marlane that is private is an awful road! Get that repaved! It is 3 

families driveways! Public vehicles such as the USPS use that road! So do garbade 

trucks, firetrucks, etc. Take care of it! 

Republic only through the city. NEVER BESTWAY. Roads are chipped when not 

necessary causes problems unnecessary. Let the city handle with county’s work 

continuity, seamless infrastructure. We want trustees to recognize the waste and 

confusion caused by being separate from the city. PLEASE consider, a better use of 

our resources may include a consolidation of services with the City of Kalamazoo 

Many of the streets are very dangerous due to poor driving habits. We need more 

enforcement  

We moved into the township for the taxes being affordable compared to the city of 

kalamazoo. The taxes just keep going up + it’s getting too much of a house 

payment. Please keep taxes down. Can’t we allow our millages to expire? 

Filling out this survey makes me realize how little I know what is going on. Better 

communication would be appreciated. Requests for increased taxes need explanation 

and justification. Not just for the increase but also that current funding is well 

stewarded. 

I have lived in K Township + love the area 

Provide land and incentives for low affordable mixed housing in the t/ship. Look for 

similar programs like kzoo city foundation for excellency, where are our township 

billionaires, approach them, we do benefit from kzoo promise, why cant t/ship all 

benefit from prop tax reduction etc. Thank you. 

CONTINUE TO DO YOUR BEST AND COOPERATE WITH COUNTY + 

NEARBY TOWNSHIPS 

We are very disappointed in the quality of snow removal on township roads. 

Plowing quality is poor and delayed, which leads to icy, dangerous roads. We would 

be willing to pay additional taxes to support this service. 

Appreciate how well Grand Prairie Golf Course is maintained 



54 

 

I think bike’s on roadways is stupid. How many cars on roadways how many bikes 

It’s a good community. Perfect is not the right word. Thanks for all your work! 

Don’t think much of this has to do with me or neighborhood + don’t know reason 

for this wasting time for you people 

Hoping that the improvements on East Main will support it’s neighbors. Some areas 

in the township need to be cleaned up. The homeless are an issue. I don’t have an 

answer but it is a problem.  

No bike lanes on busy roads like downtown please!! Kal Township needs to spend 

money efficiently rather than double their salaries & using excess funds to line their 

own pockets!- Disgusting!! 

More parks, more bike lanes! 

The code enforcement needs to do these job 3 house around my naborhold have 

junk, cars, trash you can see from street but nothing done to them he is (code) not 

very helpful and never helps would be nice to see homes with cars trash, junk 

cleaned up cant call never around to [answer?] and never comes when he dos says I 

cant see from street and still will do nothing he can see from street 

We could cut unnecessary staff at township. No need for a township manager. If you 

have a supervisor. Have only 2 election days a year- no special elections. People 

who overdose and need narcan need to pay for it. Buses are almost always empty. I 

feel that kalamazoo township taxes are out of hand. Businesses are going to 

Oshtemo; which puts a larger strain on the homeowners to make up the tax base. I 

realize that Kalamazoo is a college town and rentals are needed, but I would rather 

have property owners voting on millages, as most of the student vote Yes for all of 

them and will probably not be in a few years (most student do not think of the cost 

to the taxpayer). *We are getting ready to retire and am not sure if we will be able to 

afford to live in our own home.  

My concerns about road repairs are perhaps better directed to the city of kalamazoo, 

but negligence on their part is affecting township residents. 

Speeding and not stopping at stop signs is a huge problem. It’s unsafe to walk. 

Downtown Kzoo looks shoddy & unkempt w/ the new bike path. It confuses traffic. 

I HATE going through downtown now. I travel through downtown Daily on my way 

to work in Battle Creek. Most people mess up on the left shifting lanes. I’ve had 

more neare side swipe to my car than ever before 

Speeding on W. Main is insane! People easily going 20 mph over the limit many are 

daily offenders. I see them from my office and can hear them coming. Stop the 

ridiculous number of speeders on West Main! Lower the speed limit between 

Turwill and downtown, this should 30 mph because there are so many homes here! 

You know people drive 10 mph over the limit anyway! DO SOMETHING! Get 

more enforcement of ordinances so many homes with overgrown lawns/landscaping 

that they look vacant. 



55 

 

Since raising the speed limit in a school zone to 45 and then 0 enforcement on 

Nichols Road people traveling 65+ and no enforcement very disappointing- not 

happy at all. Road used to be patrolled regularly. It could be a large revenue 

producer for township- if you are looking to improve townships bottom line look not 

further! 

We need a bike route on M43 that runs from Nichols to Downtown. (Please forward 

this idea to the county if that is their responsibility.) 

A crosswalk and walkover bridge along Nichols is much needed. Either that or 

multiple stop lights. Traffic goes too fast and I do not feel safe walking or biking on 

that road. 

Code enforcement & planning need more time out in the community, investigating 

complaints and more follow up on complaints. Seems like they subscribe to “one 

and done” philosophy. 

Would like to be able to choose own garbage service. Stuck with having to pay for 

POOR service. If not for the township they would be fired on the SPOT. 

I wish there was a way that the appearance of East Main Street businesses + homes 

could be improved as that part in Kalamazoo is. Is there a way the township can get 

involved or be proactive?  

Very concerned about # of single family dwellings are actually being occupied by 

several college students which violates township ordinances to my knowledge; 

increased traffic and parking issues and look of yards etc. 

(Q2d: Frequent skip days) (Q3d: thought owner paid?) (Q4: Most “improvements” 

are strictly benefiting employees of such places. ie “new paint in breakrooms”) (Q5: 

never looked at any of these) (Q7: not sure how I would quantify this. Look at 

response times and make informed decisions.) (Q8: the beggars on street corners is 

too much. Panhandling license might be the key) (Q10: no contact, no opinion) 

(Q11: Didn’t know they existed) I added notes where pertinent. 

better snow removal times would be greatly appreciated. it makes it hard to get out 

when we get plowed 2 times a winter. Thank you! 

Put restrooms + splash pad at Wilson park 

When I moved to Kalamazoo in 1999 the city grew. Was safe and I loved and was 

proud to live here. Sadly, my house (once a home) was a place I loved! But for over 

three years I have not been allowed in my yard by my neighbor. I’m not allowed to 

take out the trash, get my mail. He’s damaged my property. Kalamazoo is where 

people exist, not live :-(  

Ever since I can remember they talk about raising taxes for roads etc. Roads have 

been the worst they’ve ever been. Every penney needs to be accounted for. Make it 

Public. Top employees need to be paid as much as the bottom employee. Stop taking 

it out on home owners. Lower the taxes. Help the residents instead of nickel & 

dining them. Fix houses. Repair sidewalks & roads. These neighborhoods used to be 

beautiful. Now they are all rundown. Help Homeowners. Don’t Punish Them! 



56 

 

I’m interested to see if the business revitalization without current tenets will work 

out. It makes the neighborhood seem nicer, but its still an empty building. More 

bars/restaurants would be nice. Also LEAF COLLECTION would be nice if we 

could just put leaves to the curb. 

-Focus on neighborhoods not economic development 

-Stop dividing us by means of demographics  

-Be accountable 

-MORE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 

Horrible budgeting process- spending w/o fiscal responsibility. The cost of this 

survey is excessive 

Make leaf clean up like the city. Need better/safer sidewalks. Need more street 

sweeping too. 

PD/FD corruption, slander + harassment of residents are horrible, decades of 

disrespect, will take years to overcome. F*** THE FD. Quit wasting time harassing 

residents, slandering their careers and letting officials get away with false PD 

reports  

Lack of enforcement of restrictions on Balkema. Gravel pit is driving us off Barney 

Rd, which is their objective. They’re succeeding.  

We need to invest in pedestrian/bicycling paths and parks. The increased speed limit 

on Nichols Rd, which is in a residential area is ridiculous and unsafe as is the lack of 

sage access on Nichols to the Kalamazoo Valley Trail. I don’t have enough 

information about public safety resources to comment. The board seems 

dysfunctional and not focused on needed improvements in the community. 

Snow removal from neighborhood streets.  

The township should annex to/combine with the city of Kalamazoo. The ARG one 

economic unit. Make the one political unit. 

Thanks for listing the township parks- was not aware of them. I am very 

disappointed with code enforcement. I have called + emailed several times about 

same to neighbors + no changes. Also disappointed with the increase of speed limits 

on roads. Makes it unsafe conditions for biking + walking. 

Too much foot traffic on roads (EG, Nicholas Rd). Ppl do not use sidewalks- why 

not expand on roads for “multi-use” space instead of sidewalks? 

Sr. + vet. could use help- tree trimming-gutter cleaning. Rid of wasps - sr are hurting 

+ can’t afford to hire it done. or too ill to climb ladders or too old 

Tragic to take car lanes away for bikes 

The way township is shaped is a joke. It’s two separate areas with the city poking 

into areas. I think township of kalamazoo should merge with city of kalamazoo 

Township should provide senior discount/reduced rate on property taxes. Offer other 

cost-savings also. 

I honestly do not feel I interact (or perhaps the other way around) with township 

staff/facilities on a regular basis.  Some of my answers are based on remote 

interactions rather than more recent ones.  Thanks & best wishes!  



57 

 

Nowhere is safe anymore. I am a handicap.  Getting taxed out of my home.  Upside 

down on home. Along with inflation it is getting impossible to survive: not much to 

look forward. Government has failed missirably. Embarrassment. And water is 

disgusting. They should hand heads down.  

Get our st. cleaned up.  Currently have 2 junk yards on our street.  Nasty junk cars 

all over 2 properties.  

The chip seal on our roads in Valleywood is an extreme nuisance.  Its been over a 

year and rocks and fragments are in our driveway, shoes, house, car tires, pets’ 

paws.  People cannot rollerblade in the neighborhood and its very unattractive, 

painful to walk on.  Seems unnecessary- hasn’t fixed cracks.  

Resurfacing of roads in Valleywood is horrible!  I constantly have little bits of road 

in my house.  You cannot skateboard anymore.  This is not the quality of road that 

was here when we moved here in 2003. 

Township needs more for seniors- a community center would be great!  So many 

seniors have very little social time with others as there is no activity centers except 

for a few churches offer something social- But what if they don’t attend a church? 

Some have outlived family, others never had one.  Many seniors feel very alone and 

don’t know where they can go to socialize- a monthly meeting place or dance would 

be wonderful- a community center would be awesome!  Appoint a place, let seniors 

guide you, and publish- you would be surprised!  

Township needs to better enforce neighborhood ordinances!  Eastwood looks trashy 

most of the time and this drives petty crime.  Mail and packages are not safe, trash 

& noise & dog ordinances not enforced.  I’d move if I could! Ordinance officer 

actually told me to contact homeowner instead of bothering him next time w/ trash 

complaint.  What?!  It’s HIS job!  Trash was being left on curb ALL the time and he 

couldn’t do anything till I contacted him a 2nd time and had to get aggressively 

assertive to get him to act.   

Traffic pattern is terrible in North St/ Dartmouth neighborhood.  Speeding and 

traffic sign violations make it unsafe to walk and bike.  Car and property theft is 

extremely high in our community.  

I live in Westwood- in the house my parents built and then added on to when I was 

born.  I love our community.  

We pay to much for administration of services!  Need less overhead and more law 

enforcement! Roads that have been put in or redone in last 10 years are horrible!  

Please consider providing more law enforcement.  Don’t let Kalamazoo become 

another danger zone like most of America.  Prioritize funding for public safety, not 

salaries of people who don’t even earn it.  Also, let’s focus on traffic safety and 

installing more traffic lights at the dangerous intersections, not traffic circles.  

Police seem to have helped the level of theft recently.  Grateful.  

Although I have used 3 of the 4 parks, I was surprised that there were more.  Lack of 

communication.  This, also, is the reason for many “no opinion” marks.  I know so 

little of the items in question in spite of 40 years of residency.  Communication! 

Please!  

 



58 

 

Online Survey 

 

Question 1: Over the past 12 months, to what extent have your concerns regarding safety in your 

neighborhood increased, decreased, or stayed the same? 

 

 
 

Respondents to the online survey expressed a greater degree of increasing concerns over 

neighborhood safety than did those who participated in the mail survey.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



59 

 

Question 2: Please rate each of the following as they pertain to the Township of Kalamazoo: 

 

Fire coverage and response for the community 

 

 
 

Police coverage and response for the community 

 

 
 



60 

 

 

Parks, recreation areas, trails, and preserves 

 

 
 

Recycling service 

 

 
 

 



61 

 

The number of restaurants and bars 

 

 
 

The number of retail and commercial sites 

 

 
 

 

 



62 

 

Street maintenance and repair 

 

 
 

Accommodations for bicycle and foot traffic 

 

 
 

 

 



63 

 

Question 3: The Township needs to live within its budget. In planning the budget, there is a need 

to establish priorities. Revenues (taxes, fees, etc…) to fund core Township services may not keep 

pace with the cost of providing such services. If revenues were not adequate to maintain 

Township services at current levels, please indicate the budgeting strategies or approaches you 

would support for each of the services listed below: 

 

Law enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



64 

 

Fire response 

 

 
 

Emergency medical response 

 

 
 

 

 



65 

 

Sidewalk repair 

 

 
 

Road maintenance 

 

 
 

 

 



66 

 

Add bike and walking paths 

 

 
 

Recycling collection 

 

 
 

 

 



67 

 

Parks 

 

 
 

Code enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 



68 

 

Bulk trash and fall leaf pick up 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



69 

 

In Table 10 a comparison is presented examining the results from the online version of the 

community survey with the results of the mailed version of the community survey. The table 

presents the budgetary strategy most selected (the modal response) by respondents.  

 

 
 

In comparing the most selected budgetary strategy for each of the services the township provides 

there was overall consistency in the modal response from respondents for 6 of the 10 services.  

For the services of: law enforcement, fire response, emergency medical response, and parks 

respondents supported the budget strategy of raising taxes to meet any budgetary shortfalls. The 

addition of bike and walking paths had a modal response of reducing service levels across both 

surveys. Finally, across both surveys respondents suggested that budgetary shortfalls related to 

bulk trash and fall leaf pick up be addressed by privatizing or outsourcing these services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 10. Online Survey versus Mail Survey Budgetary Strategy Preferences

Most Supported Budget Strategy

Township Service Online Survey Mail Survey

Law enforcement Raise Taxes (38%) Raise Taxes (49%)

Fire response Raise Taxes (40%) Raise Taxes (49%)

Emergency medical response Raise Taxes (39%) Raise Taxes (36%)

Sidewalk repair Privatize/Outsource (35%) Raise Taxes (27%)

Road maintenance Privatize/Outsource (37%) Raise Taxes (41%)

Add bike and walking paths Reduce Service Levels (37%) Reduce Service Levels (23%)

Recycling collection Privatize/Outsource (26%) Raise User Fees (23%)

Parks Raise Taxes (21%) Raise Taxes (25%)

Code enforcement Raise User Fees (29% Raise Taxes (18%)

Bulk trash and fall leaf pick up Privatize/Outsource (43%) Privatize/Outsource (24%)



70 

 

Question 4: In thinking about potential future improvements, please review the areas below and 

indicate if you would support a new millage or user fee to fund it. 

 

Improving fire stations 

 

 
 

Improving township hall 

 

 



71 

 

Improving police station 

 

 
 

Road maintenance and repair 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



72 

 

Parks and recreation (expanding program options and/or capital improvements) 

 

 
 

Public transportation 

 

 
 

 

 

 



73 

 

Improving community outreach and engagement 

 

 
 

In Table 11, a summary of the results related to potential future service improvements is 

provided. The modal response is highlighted in green. 

 

 
 

Overall respondents generally requested more information beyond what was provided in the 

survey. However, some exceptions were present; respondents noted support for additional 

funding for road maintenance and repair while also noting opposition to additional funding for 

improving township hall or parks and recreation. 

 

 

 

Table 11. Consideration of Future Options-Online Survey

Potential Service Improvements

Support 

Additional 

Funding

Oppose 

Additional 

Funding

Need More 

Information

Improve fire stations 37% 24% 39%

Improve township hall 13% 44% 44%

Improve police station 29% 29% 42%

Road maintenance and repair 42% 23% 36%

Parks and recreation 26% 44% 31%

Public transportation 26% 35% 39%

Improving community 

outreach and engagement
23% 31% 47%



74 

 

Question 5: Please rate each of the following: 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s website 

 

 
 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s social media 

 

 
 

 



75 

 

 

The Township of Kalamazoo’s communication and engagement with the public 

 

 
 

Question 5 measured respondent perceptions of the Township’s electronic and internet presence. 

Across all items respondents on average rated the township as less than good. This result is 

similar to the mail version of the survey, but with a more pronounced majority of respondents 

indicating dissatisfaction with the Township’s electronic and internet presence  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



76 

 

Question 6: In thinking about how the Township could best communicate with you regarding 

events, news, notes, and outreach, please select up to three (3) forms of communication that you 

would be most likely to use for this purpose by ranking them 1, 2, and 3 in the boxes provided. 

Please not that 1 should indicate the form of communication you would most prefer, 2 should 

indicate your next preference, and 3 should indicate the third-greatest preference.  

 

 
 

Overall, respondents expressed the greatest preference for the creation of a newsletter that could 

be mailed or emailed to residents regarding the Township’s: events, news, notes, and outreach. 

The next most preferred options for communication were Facebook and text message. Few 

respondents selected Other, outside of mail-based services (postcards, local newspaper) regularly 

updated announcements on the website were the mentioned most. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



77 

 

Question 7: Please indicate whether the Township of Kalamazoo provides enough of each of the 

following: 

 

Police 

 

 
 

Firefighters and Emergency Medical Responders 

 

 
 



78 

 

Code enforcement 

 

 
 

Traffic enforcement 

 

 
 

 

 

 



79 

 

Question 8: In thinking about the Township, how much do you agree or disagree that your 

Township is: 

 

A safe place to live 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



80 

 

Physically attractive 

 

 
 

Growing responsibly 

 

 
 

 



81 

 

A safe place to bike and walk 

 

 
 

 

A perfect community for me 

 

 
 



82 

 

Question 9: What specific types of homes or households do you think are missing in the 

community? (Select all that apply, if none apply leave blank) 

 

 
 

Note: SFH stands for Single-Family Home while MFC stands for Multi-Family Complex 

 

Overall, respondents noted small single family homes, small single family homes on large lots, 

and age-restricted as the types of homes or households most missing from the community 

currently. Only two respondents selected Other from the options, they noted affordable senior 

housing and planned unit developments of smaller homes designed to promote community and 

sustainability.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



83 

 

Question 10: Please rate your current level of satisfaction with each of the following 

 

The Board of Trustees 

 

 
 

The Township Manager 

 

 



84 

 

 

Township Hall Staff 

 

 
 

The township’s spending 

 

 
 



85 

 

 

Economic development in the township 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



86 

 

Question 11: The township’s parks department oversees: Stroud Family Park, Rynbrandt Park, Jenks & 

Grand Pre Park, Lakewood Park, Academy Park, Grand Prairie Golf Course, Wilson Recreation Area. 

With these facilities in mind, please rate them on the following attributes: 

 

Quality of facilities 

 

 
 

Access for the disabled 

 

 



87 

 

Public safety/security 

 

 
 

 

Your level of satisfaction with these facilities 

 

 



88 

 

The township events delivered at these facilities 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



89 

 

Question 25: We welcome any additional comments and suggestions. Please write them in the 

space provided.  

 

Overall the comments provided at the end of the online survey were largely similar in the 

prominent themes that emerged. Prominent themes in the online survey also included township 

services, communication, and taxes/spending. Online respondents’ desires for additional services 

tended to focus on police, code enforcement, and snow removal. As with the mail survey, one of 

the most frequent themes surrounded respondents not having enough information from the 

township regarding services, facilities, events, and status updates related to investigations of 

township employees. Respondents overall expressed a desire for greater communication from the 

township. Finally, as was observed with the mail surveys taxes and spending were also on the 

minds of online survey respondents. Questions about the necessity of the township operating 

independently of the city were raised as were questions regarding how tax revenues were being 

spent (this may also be related to the desire for greater communication).  

 

Unabridged written comments (responses were transcribed as written, any spelling or 

grammatical errors were found in the respondents’ writings): 

 

 

Why not cut other expenses to give us better police and things we need? 

Doing nothing about climate change, diversity, affordable living 

The board and Supervisor Martin owe the Township residents an explanation as to 

the status of Dexter Mitchell and if he is still on paid admin leave. 

Kalamazoo Township has been a great neighborhood to raise our family. Safety 

issues come and go in the area which seem to get addressed in a timely manner. I 

do wish we had more frequent yard garbage pickups to keep up with the 

neighborhood's yard maintenance.   

We have gangs of people going through our neighborhoods every few weeks and 

breaking into cars. Makes me want to move. 

Lay the ground work to merge services with the City of Kalamazoo and stop 

wasting all of our resources.  I’m shocked at $15,000 sign on bonuses for police to 

compete against the City. That not fiscal responsibly. 

Most incompetent board I've ever seen. No manager for over 9 months. 

Need more street lights in neighborhoods. 

Please find ways to fully fund fire station replacements and fly staff the 

department. Our community deserves more highly trained firefighters on duty 

each day.  

Please fix the snow plows they need to be out sooner. Roads are too icy and 

unsafe 

I don’t know what, besides recycling, the township provides for its residents. I’m 

often confused as to why we do not  become part of the City of Kalamazoo. It 

seems like it would be more efficient to do so.  

Noticed that frequency of communication from township has declined. When 

attempting to contact township via email regarding issues with recycling and 

garbage bins being damaged,we get no responses. 



90 

 

We appreciate the significant sidewalk improvements in recent years. 

What we need in the Westwood neighborhood are snowplows during the winter. 

We seem to be forgotten about. Only twice last winter did we have a snowplow 

come through on my street. It was a mess and almost impassable. Why do we pay 

such high taxes if it doesn't benefit us in anyway.  

Comstock township needs one of these questionnaires 

If the code enforcement officer puts everything on the police why do we have one. 

Not enough police to do code violations on top of what the police need to do 

Please, no more taxes. We struggle already yo pay property taxes and the county 

hits us with millages one right after another. 

I don’t feel like the Township is as visible as the City.  Although I’ve lived here 

for 10 years I don’t know very much about where our taxes go or what programs 

they have. 

Quit Wasting our money. Do your homework to know what you are voting on. 

Quit voting yes on everything. 

I love Kalamazoo Township and the west side specifically.  Absolutely perfect 

location and the best part of Kalamazoo. 

I am not sure of the details but apparently disfunction at township office needs 

improvement. Grumpy property tax lady is toxic. She always seems to be about to 

hiss and spit at people who ask questions. 

WOULD LIKE TO SEE SPEED BUMPS ON SOLON ST. AND SLOWER 

SPEEDS, MAKE IT A ONE LANE, ROAD WITH SIDEWALKS. 

WAYYYYYY TOO MANY SPEEDING CARS AND ITS GETTING OUT OF 

CONTROL 

I am extremely disappointed in the lack of communication the township has 

provided regarding the status of Dexter Mitchell's employment. It appears they are 

trying to sweep this under the rug. He should be terminated and the township 

needs to consider if a manager is needed at all or at the very least part time if they 

can have functioned this long without him. The handling of this situation has been 

totally unacceptable. 

I have never even HEARD of some of the parks you mentioned above. I would 

love to hear more about those types of places and events. More social media 

outreach would be great! 

The Manager and several Board members should be gone! 

Communication from the township is really lacking. I follow the Facebook page 

and check the website regularly but there’s  

get control of homeless 

Burke acres area has turned into a mess full of section 8 housing and nothing is 

done to control the level of crime or nuisance. I have been threatened in and 

around my home, almost run down when walking my dogs, theres little to no 

police presence yet my taxes continue to rise 

 

 

 

 



91 

 

Appendix 

 

Mail Survey: 

 

 



92 

 

 



93 

 

 



94 

 

 
 

 

Internet Survey: 

 



95 

 

Township of Kalamazoo Community Survey-2023 

 

 

Q1 Western Michigan University Department of Sociology 

Principal Investigator:         Dr. Patrick Cundiff 

Student Investigator:           Jennifer Therrien 

 

You are invited to participate in this research project titled "2023 Township of Kalamazoo 

Community Survey” 

 

STUDY SUMMARY:  This consent form is part of an informed consent process for a research 

study and it will provide information that will help you decide whether you want to take part in 

this study.  Participation in this study is completely voluntary. You may choose to not answer 

any question. The survey focuses on your perceptions and opinions of the Township of 

Kalamazoo and the services it provides. If you take part in the research, you will be asked to 

complete a short survey.  Your replies will be completely anonymous, so do not put your name 

anywhere on the survey.  Your time in the study will take approximately 10-15 minutes. As this 

survey is anonymous and involves questions of a non-controversial nature, there are no risks if 

you choose to participate. Although there are no direct potential benefits of taking part your 

responses will be used to create a report designed to help the Township of Kalamazoo address 

the needs of its residents. Your alternative to taking part in the research study is not to take part 

in it.  

 

The de-identified (anonymous) information collected for this research may be used by or 

distributed to investigators for other research without obtaining informed consent from you. 

 

Should you have any questions prior to or during the study, you can contact Dr. Patrick Cundiff 

at Western Michigan University at 269-387-5293 or patrick.cundiff@wmich.edu.   You may also 

contact the Chair of the Institutional Review Board at 269-387-8293 or the Vice President for 

Research at 269-387-8298.   

 

This consent has been approved by the Western Michigan University Institutional Review Board 

( WMU IRB) on (10/09/2023).  Participating in this survey online indicates your consent for use 

of the answers you supply.  

 

o I agree to participate in this research study  (1)  

o I decline to participate in this research study  (2)  

  



96 

 

Q2 Over the past 12 months, to what extent have your concerns regarding safety in your 

neighborhood increased, decreased, or stayed the same? 

o Decreased a lot  (1)  

o Decreased some  (2)  

o Stayed the same  (3)  

o Increased some  (4)  

o Increased a lot  (5)  

 

 



97 

 

Q3 Please rate each of the following as they pertain to the Township of Kalamazoo: 

 Excellent (1) Good (2) Fair (3) Poor (4) 
No Opinion 

(5) 

Fire coverage and 

response for the 

community (1)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Police coverage 

and response for 

the community (2)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Parks, recreation 

areas, trails, and 

preserves (3)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Recycling service 

(4)  o  o  o  o  o  
The number of 

restaurants and 

bars (5)  
o  o  o  o  o  

The number of 

retail and 

commercial sites 

(6)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Street 

maintenance/repair 

(7)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Accommodations 

for bicycle and 

foot traffic (8)  
o  o  o  o  o  

 

  



98 

 

Q4 The Township needs to live within its budget. In planning the budget, there is a need to 

establish priorities. Revenues (taxes, fees, etc...) to fund core Township services may not keep 

pace with the cost of providing such services. If revenues were not adequate to maintain 

Township services at current levels, please indicate the budgeting strategies or approaches you 

would support for each of the services listed below: 

 

Reduce 

Service 

Levels (1) 

Raise Taxes 

(2) 

Raise User 

Fees (3) 

Privatize or 

Outsource 

Service (4) 

No Opinion 

(5) 

Law 

enforcement 

(1)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Fire response 

(2)  o  o  o  o  o  
Emergency 

medical 

response (3)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Sidewalk 

repair (4)  o  o  o  o  o  
Road 

maintenance 

(5)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Add bike and 

walking paths 

(6)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Recycling 

collection (7)  o  o  o  o  o  
Parks (8)  o  o  o  o  o  

Code 

enforcement 

(9)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Bulk trash 

and fall leaf 

pick up (10)  
o  o  o  o  o  

 

 

 

  



99 

 

Q5 In thinking about potential future service improvements, please review the areas below and 

indicate if you would support a new millage or user fee to fund it. 

 
Support Additional 

Funding (1) 

Oppose Additional 

Funding (2) 

Need More 

Information (3) 

Improving fire 

stations (1)  o  o  o  
Improving township 

hall (2)  o  o  o  
Improving police 

station (3)  o  o  o  
Road maintenance 

and repair (4)  o  o  o  
Parks and recreation 

(expanding program 

options and/or capital 

improvements (5)  
o  o  o  

Public transportation 

(6)  o  o  o  
Improving 

community outreach 

and engagement (7)  
o  o  o  

 

 

 

 



100 

 

Q6 Please rate each of the following: 

 Excellent (1) Good (2) Fair (3) Poor (4) 
No Opinion 

(5) 

The Township 

of Kalamazoo's 

website (1)  
o  o  o  o  o  

The Township 

of Kalamazoo's 

social media 

(2)  
o  o  o  o  o  

The Township 

of Kalamazoo's 

communication 

and 

engagement 

with the public 

(3)  

o  o  o  o  o  

 

 

  



101 

 

 

Q7 In thinking about how the Township could best communicate with you regarding events, 

news, notes, and outreach, please select up to three (3) forms of communication that you would 

be most likely to use for this purpose by ranking them in the boxes provided.  

Most preferred form of 

communication 

Second most preferred form 

of communication 

Third most preferred from of 

communication 

______ Facebook (1) ______ Facebook (1) ______ Facebook (1) 

______ Instagram (2) ______ Instagram (2) ______ Instagram (2) 

______ X (formerly Twitter) 

(3) 

______ X (formerly Twitter) 

(3) 

______ X (formerly Twitter) 

(3) 

______ Emailed Newsletter 

(4) 

______ Emailed Newsletter 

(4) 

______ Emailed Newsletter 

(4) 

______ Mailed Newsletter 

(5) 

______ Mailed Newsletter 

(5) 

______ Mailed Newsletter 

(5) 

______ Text Message (6) ______ Text Message (6) ______ Text Message (6) 

______ Automated Phone 

Call (7) 

______ Automated Phone 

Call (7) 

______ Automated Phone 

Call (7) 

______ Other (8) ______ Other (8) ______ Other (8) 

 

 

Q8 Please specify the other form(s) of communication you would prefer. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

  



102 

 

 

Q9 Please indicate whether the Township of Kalamazoo provides enough of each of the 

following 

 

Far Below 

What is 

Needed (1) 

Not Quite 

Enough (2) 

The Right 

Amount (3) 

More Than 

Enough (4) 

No Opinion 

(5) 

Police (1)  o  o  o  o  o  
Firefighters 

and 

Emergency 

Medical 

Responders 

(2)  

o  o  o  o  o  

Code 

Enforcement 

(3)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Traffic 

Enforcement 

(4)  
o  o  o  o  o  

 

 

  



103 

 

 

Q10 In thinking about the Township, how much to you agree or disagree that your Township is: 

 
Strongly 

Agree (1) 
Agree (2) 

Neither 

Agree nor 

Disagree 

(3) 

Disagree 

(4) 

Strongly 

Disagree 

(5) 

Cannot 

Judge (6) 

A safe 

place to 

live (1)  
o  o  o  o  o  o  

Physically 

attractive 

(2)  
o  o  o  o  o  o  

Growing 

responsibly 

(3)  
o  o  o  o  o  o  

A safe 

place to 

bike and 

walk (4)  
o  o  o  o  o  o  

A perfect 

community 

for me (5)  
o  o  o  o  o  o  

 

  



104 

 

 

Q11 What specific types of homes or households do you think are missing in the community? 

(Select all that apply, if none apply leave blank) 

▢ Small, single-family homes  (1)  

▢ Single-family homes on large lots  (2)  

▢ Large, single-family homes  (3)  

▢ Small, multi-family complexes of two stories with fewer than 20 units  (4)  

▢ Large, multi-family complexes of two stories with more than 20 units  (5)  

▢ Senior/age-restricted communities  (6)  

▢ Long-term rentals  (7)  

▢ Other  (8)  

 

 

Q12 Please specify what types of homes or households are missing. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

  



105 

 

 

Q13 Please rate your current level of satisfaction with each of the following: 

 

Very 

Dissatisfied 

(1) 

Dissatisfied 

(2) 

Neither 

Satisfied nor 

Dissatisfied 

(3) 

Satisfied (4) 
Very 

Satisfied (5) 

The Board of 

Trustees (1)  o  o  o  o  o  
The 

Township 

Manager (2)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Township 

Hall Staff (3)  o  o  o  o  o  
The 

township's 

spending (4)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Economic 

development 

in the 

township (5)  
o  o  o  o  o  

 

 

  



106 

 

 

Q14 The township’s parks department oversees: Stroud Family Park, Rynbrandt Park, Jenks & 

Grand Pre Park, Lakewood Park, Academy Park, Grand Prairie Golf Course, Wilson Recreation 

Area. With these facilities in mind, please rate them on the following attributes: 

 Excellent (1) Good (2) Fair (3) Poor (4) 
No Opinion 

(5) 

Quality of 

facilities (1)  o  o  o  o  o  
Access for the 

disabled (2)  o  o  o  o  o  
Public 

safety/security 

(3)  
o  o  o  o  o  

Your level of 

satisfaction 

with these 

facilities (4)  
o  o  o  o  o  

The township 

events 

delivered at 

these facilities 

(5)  

o  o  o  o  o  

 

 

  



107 

 

 

Q15 Demographics:  The following questions will help us be certain we have a representative 

sample. 

 

Q16 Do you rent or own your household? 

o Rent an apartment, condo, or duplex  (1)  

o Rent an entire home  (2)  

o Own a condo  (3)  

o Own a home  (4)  

o Other  (5)  

 

 

Q17 Please specify your household. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Q18 How long have you lived within the Township of Kalamazoo? 

o Years  (1) __________________________________________________ 

o Months  (2) __________________________________________________ 

 

 

Q19 How many children under the age of 18 live in your household? 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Q20 What is your age? (in years) 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



108 

 

Q21 Which of the following best describes you? 

o Male  (1)  

o Female  (2)  

o Neither of the options above  (3)  

 

 

 

Q22 Please specify how you would describe your gender. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Q23 Which of the following best describes your race? 

o White  (1)  

o Black  (2)  

o Asian  (3)  

o American Indian, Alaska Native, or Pacific Islander  (4)  

o Multiracial  (5)  

o Other  (6)  

 

 

 

Q24 Please specify how you would describe your race. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 



109 

 

Q25 Are you Hispanic or Latino? 

o Yes  (1)  

o No  (2)  

 

 

Q26 Which of the following best describes your domestic status? 

o Single / Never Married  (1)  

o With a partner, but not married  (2)  

o Married  (3)  

o Separated or Divorced  (4)  

o Widowed  (5)  

 

 

Q27 Which of the following categories best describes your highest level of education? 

o Some high school or less  (1)  

o High school graduate  (2)  

o Some college  (3)  

o College graduate  (4)  

o Graduate degree  (5)  

 

 

  



110 

 

Q28 Have you ever served on active duty in the U.S. Armed Forces, Reserves, or National 

Guard? 

o Yes  (1)  

o No  (2)  

 

 

 

Q29 Which category represents the total combined income of all members of this household 

during the past 12 months? 

o Less than $25,000  (1)  

o $25,000-$49,999  (2)  

o $50,000-$74,999  (3)  

o $75,000-$99,999  (4)  

o $100,000 or more  (5)  

 

 

Q30 We welcome any additional comments and suggestions. Please write them in the space 

below or enclose a note. 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-

3550 
www.ktwp

.org 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM                                              AGENDA ITEM NO: __ 9A  02122024 
 

FOR MEETING DATE:  February 12, 2024  
 

SUBJECT:   2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan___ 
 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT:  Supervisor Martin___ 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

 

Approval of the resolution for the 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan. The plan can be 

viewed here: https://www.kalcounty.com/em/hazard.php?tag=mitigation 

the final draft of "Pending Adoption" by all participating entities 

 
 
 

Financing Cost: ____________

 

 

Source:           General Fund 

 

 

Grant   

 

 

Other 

Are these funds currently budgeted?  Yes     No_____

 
Submitted by: Supervisor Martin  

 

Recommendation: Approve 

 
Direction: For an item to be included in the agenda this form must be completed and signed by the department 
head, committee chairperson, etc. requesting board action. This form is to be complete and accompany all 
requests submitted to the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees for official action. It indicates that the item 
has received proper administrative consideration prior to its presentation to the Board. The completed form 
and supporting documentation must be received NO LATER THAN NOON ON WEDNESDAY 
PRECEDING THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING. Any request presented without this form or after 
the deadline will be considered incomplete and returned for resubmission. 

 

The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn, and play. 



 

Local Jurisdiction Resolution of Adoption 

of the 

2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan 

A Resolution of 

Adoption of the 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan   

 

Whereas 

Recognizes that all hazards pose a potential threat to people and property within the Charter township 

of Kalamazoo. 

 

Whereas: 

Kalamazoo County Emergency Management has prepared a multi-hazard mitigation plan, hereby known 

as the 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan, in accordance with federal laws, including the 

Robert T Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, as amended; the National Flood 

Insurance Act of 1968, as amended; and the National Dam Safety Program Act. as amended; 

 

Whereas  

The 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies mitigation goals and actions to reduce or 

eliminate long-term risk to people and property in Kalamazoo County, Michigan from the impacts of 

future hazards and disasters. 

 

Whereas  

Adoption by the Charter Township of Kalamazoo demonstrates its commitment to hazard 

mitigation and achieving the goals outlined in the 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard Mitigation 

Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Charter Township of Kalamazoo   

That Charter Township of Kalamazoo hereby adopts the 2023 Kalamazoo County Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. While content related to Kalamazoo County may require revisions to meet the 

plan approval requirements, the change occurring after adoption will not require sub-

jurisdiction to readopt any further iterations of the plan. Subsequent plan updates following the 

approval period for this plan will require separate adoption. 

 

Adopted by a vote of ___in favor and ___against this __day of __________, _________ 

BY: _________________Print Name_____________________(Signature ) 



The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM AGENDA ITEM NO:________________ 

FOR MEETING DATE:__________________________________ 

SUBJECT:________________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT:______________________________________________________________ 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Financing Cost:________________________________ 

Source: General Fund____________  Grant____________ Other_________________________ 

Are these funds currently budgeted? Yes______ No__________ 

Other comments or notes: 

Submitted by:______________________________________________________ 

Manager’s Recommendation: 

Direction:  In order for an item to be included in the agenda this form must be completed and signed by the 

department head, committee chairperson, etc. requesting board action. This form is to be complete and 

accompany any and all requests submitted to the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees for official action. It 

indicates that the item has received proper administrative consideration prior to its presentation to the Board. 

The completed form and supporting documentation must be received in the Manager’s office NO LATER 

THAN NOON THE THURSDAY PRECEDING THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING. Any request 

presented without this form or after the deadline will be considered incomplete and returned for resubmission.  



 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo Police Department 

Pride ~ Integrity ~ Compassion ~ Respect 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Supervisor Don Martin & the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees 
From: Bryan Ergang, Chief of Police 
Date: February 6, 2024 
RE: Williams Architects Agreement for Additional Services 
 

 
 
The Kalamazoo Township Building Planning Committee has developed a focused strategy to 
move toward a long-term solution for providing efficient and effective public service to our 
community, maximizing the benefits of economy of scale and the unique ability of the Township 
to be adaptive and creative in our approach to facilities planning. 

In addition to continually evaluating how to move forward with the assessment and planning 
stages, the committee determined working with a single architectural firm may best serve our 
current needs. The Building Committee is requesting the Board review the attached proposal 
from Williams Architects, to include the ongoing development of the Eastwood Fire Station, as 
well how to incorporate and develop those plans into a strategic, long-term infrastructure 
strategy. 

The Building Committee believes the services provided by Williams will be critical in assisting 
the Township in streamlining our approach, maximizing efficiency and ideally increasing the 
tempo for developing a dynamic timeline of actions for the board to review for these projects.  

 

 

 

 



 

 
2 February 2024 
 
 
 
Bryan Ergang     
Police Chief 
Charter Township of Kalamazoo 
1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004 
 
Re: Additional Planning Services – Fire Station & Added Municipal Center Concepts 

Kalamazoo Township  
Architectural Planning Services 
Township Municipal Facilities – Township Hall, Police and Fire 
WA Project No. 2022-031 

 
Dear Bryan: 
 
Thank you for the good work we have been doing together with your team over the last year and a half! 
We understand the Town desires to add some additional services to our agreement. These include space 
programming, conceptual site design and cost estimating for the new Eastwood fire station project, an 
additional design concept for the Town Hall & Police municipal center on existing site, but further from the 
intersection and higher up on the hill and finally, and a municipal center with space for a potential future fire 
station concept on another site to be selected by the Town. 
 
We look forward to reviewing, selecting, refining, and finalizing the list of services below with the Township. 
 
 
ADDITONAL SERVICES PROJECT SCOPE  
 
Step I. SET-UP PROJECT 

A. No added services needed.  
 
Step II. ESTIMATE FUTURE FIRE DEPARTMENT STAFFING, VEHICLES & SERVICES 
 A. Review with fire department staff the current and estimated staffing levels, emergency 

response vehicles and the potential for the vehicle repair garage to be relocated to the 
Eastwood fire station. Should also discuss the potential for ambulance services to be co-
located at this facility at some point in the future. 

 B. Staff to provide organizational information on the current authorized staffing levels, 
vehicles and the estimated staffing and vehicles in 10 – 15 years, and one for 25 year / 
ultimate build-out. 

 C. Williams Architects (WA) to review these organizational charts, trends in fire department 
staffing, and the expected growth and change for Kalamazoo Township with staff and 
provide a chart that shows the Township’s current and estimated future staffing and 
vehicles as directed by staff. 

 D. Township to review and approve the estimated current and future staffing and vehicles. 
 E. Step to include one staff meeting 
 
Step III. EASTWOOD FIRE STATION SPACE PROGRAMMING 
 A. Township to select appropriate fire department staff members and tour with WA, area fire 

department facilities that are understood to be well-designed examples at similarly sized 
communities. (Optional Service). 

 B. Meet with fire department staff to review the approved staffing and vehicle estimates and 
the expected department-provided services. Discuss the space needs for all the people, 
functions, storage needs, public uses, vehicles, and equipment necessary at the new 
Eastwood fire station. These meetings are to occur over one day. 



Municipal Center Planning Study Additional Services Proposal / Township of Kalamazoo / 22 January 2024 / Page 2 

 C. Provide a draft space program that lists potential spaces that could be needed along with 
the overall size of the building. This will include the estimated required staff, visitor, and 
emergency response vehicles and parking requirements. 

 D. Meet with staff to review the space program, review example room types, sizes, and 
layouts provided by WA for potential changes to the space program. 

 E. Provide a target space program and convey it to staff for their review and comment. 
 F. Provide refinements to the space program and submit them for staff approval. 
. G. Step includes one optional facilities tour and two staff meetings. 
 
Step IV. REVIEW CONDITION & CONTINUED USE REQUIREMENTS OF THE EXISTING FACILITY 
 A. It is understood that the existing fire station is to be demolished. 
 
Step V. FIRE STATION, EXISTING MUNICIPAL CENTER ADDED CONCEPT AND NEW SITE 

A. Provide Multiple Site/Building Layout Options for the following options: 
a. New Eastwoods Fire Station on the existing site 
b. New Town Hall & Police facility on current site, but further up the hill 
c. Construction of an all-new facility (with space allowed for another future fire station) 

on another site to be selected by the Township. 
B. Meetings with staff to review options and select preferred concepts. 
C. Includes civil engineering review and site planning assistance for each option. 

 C. Refine concepts to a singular solution for each option. 
 D. Prepare Project Budget for each option. 
 E. Step to include two staff meetings. 
 
Step VI. PROJECT PUBLIC REVIEW & BOARD DECISIONS 

A. Part of the previous proposal and those services have not yet been provided, so no 
additional fee. 
 

DELIVERABLES (based upon the services authorized by the Township): 
A. Summary chart of present and estimated future staffing and vehicles. 
B. Space Programs showing potential phasing. 
D. Final conceptual colored plan drawing of each preferred option. 
E. Conceptual level project budgets. 
F. Executive summary. 
G. All documents shall be provided as both a hard copy and digital copy. 
 

EXCLUDED ITEMS: 
A, Drawings, and layouts beyond conceptual. 

 B. Review of existing conditions or code issues. 
 C. Detailed or unit take-off estimate.  
 D. Meetings beyond those listed. 
 E. Surveys, wetlands review, soil borings, environmental investigations. 
 
 
PROPOSED FEES 
We propose to provide the above services for the following fees: 
 
Step I. SET-UP PROJECT 

 Complete, no further service required $ 0.00 
 

Step II. ESTIMATE FUTURE EASTWOOD FIRE STATION STAFFING & VEHICLES 
 We propose a lump sum fee of: $ 1,500.00 
 
 

Step IIIa. FIRE STATION FACILITY TOURS (Optional Service) 
 We propose a lump sum fee of: $ 3,000.00 



Municipal Center Planning Study Additional Services Proposal / Township of Kalamazoo / 22 January 2024 / Page 3 

 
Step IIIb. EASTWOOD FIRE STATION SPACE PROGRAMMING 

 We propose a lump sum fee of: $ 7,000.00 
 

Step IV. REVIEW CONDITION OF THE EXISTING MUNICIPAL CENTER 
 Complete, no further services required $ 0.00 
 

Step V. CONCEPT PLANNING (3 Options, including civil & cost estimating) 
 We propose a lump sum fee of: $ 24,000.00 
 
Step VI. PROJECT PUBLIC REVIEW & BOARD DECISIONS 

 Included in previous proposal, no added services required  $ 0.00 
 
TOTAL FEE IF ALL STEPS ARE ACCEPTED: $ 35,500.00  
 
 
We shall invoice monthly for the services rendered with payment due within 30 days. 
 
HOURLY RATES 
Additional services, approved by the Owner in writing, shall be provided hourly per the rate table listed 
below. These rates shall be revised at the beginning of June each year. The following rates shall hold 
through 31 May 2024. 
 

RATE TABLE 
 

Managing Principal........................................  $ 250.00/Hour 
Senior Principal .............................................  $ 231.00/Hour 
Principal ........................................................  $ 225.00/Hour 
Associate Principal ........................................  $ 223.00/Hour 
Senior Associate/Senior Project Mgr. ...........  $ 223.00/Hour 
Associate / Project Manager .........................  $ 203.00/Hour 
Architect III ....................................................  $ 180.00/Hour 
Architect II .....................................................  $ 166.00/Hour 
Architect I ......................................................  $ 149.00/Hour 
Senior Project Coordinator II .........................  $ 180.00/Hour   
Senior Project Coordinator I ..........................  $ 166.00/Hour 
Project Coordinator IV ...................................  $ 135.00/Hour 
Project Coordinator III ...................................  $ 124.00/Hour 
Project Coordinator II ....................................  $ 105.00/Hour 
Project Coordinator I…………………….. ......  $   90.00/Hour 
Project Technician II…………………….........  $   70.00/Hour 
Project Technician I.......................................  $ 54.00/Hour 
Aquatic Engineer II ........................................    $ 214.00/Hour 
Aquatic Engineer I .........................................  $ 163.00/Hour 
Director of Marketing .....................................  $ 200.00/Hour 
Marketing Coordinator ..................................  $ 145.00/Hour 
Accounting ....................................................  $ 192.00/Hour 
Secretarial .....................................................  $ 135.00/Hour 
Clerical ..........................................................  $ 96.00/Hour 
Director of Interior Design .............................  $ 182.00/Hour 
Interior Designer V ........................................  $ 142.00/Hour 
Interior Designer IV .......................................  $ 119.00/Hour 
Interior Designer III........................................  $ 92.00/Hour 
Interior Designer II.........................................  $ 79.00/Hour 
Interior Designer I ..........................................  $ 54.00/Hour 
 
 



Municipal Center Planning Study Additional Services Proposal / Township of Kalamazoo / 22 January 2024 / Page 4 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES: 
In addition to our professional fees, we shall invoice the Township for our reimbursable expenses 
(mileage, printing, delivery services, misc. project supplies) times a 1.15 multiplier. 
 
PROGRAM QUALIFICATIONS 
This proposal is based on the following assumptions and qualifications: 

1. The Township shall provide all existing conditions drawings for our use in developing the 
documents.  

2. Our project meetings and on-site time/field time are limited, and some meetings and/or attendees 
shall participate via the web. Meetings and field time beyond the defined limits will be charged 
hourly. 

 
CONCLUSION 
If you agree with the terms of this Letter of Proposed Agreement, please sign and date below and return 
one copy to our office. It is understood that the general terms of this proposal are as per the current AIA 
Document B104 (Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for a Project of Limited 
Scope) and in keeping with the Architect’s Standard of Care. 
 
 
Thank you again for this wonderful opportunity to be of service to the Township of Kalamazoo. If you have 
any questions or comments, please call or email. 
 
 
Cordially, 

 
 
Mark S. Bushhouse, AIA, LEED AP 
President / Managing Principal  
 
xc:  Sonia L. Sporleder / Williams Architects 
  Marc Rohde / Williams Architects 
 
 
 
 
 
The Township of Kalamazoo hereby accepts the Scope of Services, Fees, and Terms listed above and 
authorizes Williams Architects to begin their services immediately: 
 
ACCEPTED BY: 
 
 
____________________________________________   ___________________________ 
Authorized Representative - Township of Kalamazoo  Date 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Authorized Representative - Printed Name and Title 
 
 
 
 
 
g:\2022\2022-031 kalamazoo township municipal center\a pre-design\a05 contracts\owner_client_arch\drafts\2024 01 19 williams architects additional services proposal - 
kalamazoo township planning services.docx 



1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM       AGENDA ITEM NO: __ 

FOR MEETING DATE:  February 12, 2024 

SUBJECT: MDOT Performance Resolution for Municipalities 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT:  Police Department 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Approve the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Performance Resolution for Municipalities and 
authorize the Township Supervisor to sign on behalf of the Board to Trustees to allow the Permit Manager from 
Flock Safety to apply for (MDOT) permits on behalf of the Township of Kalamazoo to complete the installation 
of Flock Safety license plate reader cameras within the State Highway Right of Way. 

Financing Cost:  $0 

Source: General Fund Grant Other 

Are these funds currently budgeted?  Yes No 

Submitted by:  Bryan N. Ergang, Chief of Police 

Please note: This resolution has been approved to form by the Township Attorney.

Recommendation:  

Direction:  In order for an item to be included in the agenda this form must be completed and signed by the 
department head, committee chairperson, etc. requesting board action. This form is to be complete and 
accompany any and all requests submitted to the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees for official action. 
It indicates that the item has received proper administrative consideration prior to its presentation to the 
Board. The completed form and supporting documentation must be received NO LATER THAN NOON ON 
WEDNESDAY PRECEDING THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING. Any request presented without 
this form or after the deadline will be considered incomplete and returned for resubmission. 

The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn, and play. 

Lisav
Typewritten text
9C 02122024



Michigan Department 
of Transportation

2207B (05/21) PERFORMANCE RESOLUTION FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 

Page 1 of 2 

This Performance Resolution (Resolut ion) is required by the Michigan Department of Transportation for 

purposes of issuing to a Municipality an ''Individual Permit for Use of State Highway Right of Way'', and/or 

an ''Annual Application and Permit for Miscellaneous Operations within State Highway Right of Way''.

RESOLVED WHEREAS, the  
(County, City, Village, Township, etc.) 

hereinafter referred to as the ''MUNICIPALITY,'' periodically applies to the Michigan Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as the "DEPARTMENT," for permits, referred to as ''PERMIT,'' to 
construct, operate, use and/or maintain utilities or other facilities, or to conduct other activities, on, over, and 
under State Highway Right of Way at various locations within and adjacent to its corporate limits; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the DEPARTMENT granting such PERMIT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that: 

1. Each party to this Resolut ion shall remain responsible for any claims arising out of their own acts and/or 
omissions during the performance of this Resolut ion , as provided by law. This Resolut ion is not 
intended to increase either party's liability for, or immunity from, tort claims, nor shall it be interpreted, 
as giving either party hereto a right of indemnification, either by Agreement or at law, for claims arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement.

2. If any of the work performed for the MUNICIPALITY is performed by a contractor, the MUNICIPALITY shall 
require its contractor to hold harmless, indemnify and defend in litigation, the State of Michigan, the 
DEPARTMENT and their agents and employee’s, against any claims for damages to public or private 
property and for injuries to person arising out of the performance of the work, except for claims that result 
from the sole negligence or willful acts of the DEPARTMENT, until the contractor achieves final acceptance 
of the MUNICIPALITY. Failure of the MUNICIPALITY to require its contractor to indemnify the 
DEPARTMENT, as set forth above, shall be considered a breach of its duties to the DEPARTMENT.

3. Any work performed for the MUNICIPALITY by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as a contractor 
for the MUNICIPALITY and not as a contractor or agent of the DEPARTMENT. The DEPARTMENT shall 
not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors and contractors of the MUNICIPALITY, or their 
subcontractors or any other person not a party to the PERMIT without the DEPARTMENT’S specific prior 
written consent and notwithstanding the issuance of the PERMIT. Any claims by any contractor or 
subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the MUNICIPALITY.

4. The MUNICIPALITY shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or indirectly out 
of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the PERMIT which results in claims being asserted 
against or judgment being imposed against the State of Michigan, the Michigan Transportation Commission, 
the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents and employees thereof and those contracting governmental 
bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all officers, agents, and employees 
thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event that the same occurs, for the purposes of the 
PERMIT, it will be considered as a breach of the PERMIT thereby giving the State of Michigan, the 
DEPARTMENT, and/or the Michigan Transportation Commission a right to seek and obtain any necessary 
relief or remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages.

5. The MUNICIPALITY will, by its own volition and/or request by the DEPARTMENT, promptly restore and/or 
correct physical or operating damages to any State Highway R ight of Way resulting from the 
installation construction, operation and/or maintenance of the MUNICIPALITY’S facilities according to a 
PERMIT issued by the DEPARTMENT.



6. With respect to any activities authorized by a PERMIT, when the MUNICIPALITY requires insurance on
its own or its contractor's behalf it shall also require that such policy include as named insured the State
of Michigan, the Transportation Commission, the DEPARTMENT, and all officers, agents, and employees
thereof and those governmental bodies performing permit activities for the DEPARTMENT and all
officers, agents, and employees thereof, pursuant to a maintenance contract.

7. The incorporation by the DEPARTMENT of this Resolution as part of a PERMIT does not prevent the
DEPARTMENT from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance of a
PERMIT.

8. This Resolution shall continue in force from this date until cancelled by the MUNICIPALITY or the
DEPARTMENT with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice provided to the other party. It
will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the MUNICIPALITY with regard to any PERMIT which has
already been issued or activity which has already been undertaken.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following position(s) are authorized to apply to the DEPARTMENT for 
the necessary permit to work within State Highway Right of Way on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY. 

Title and/or Name: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution adopted by 

the   
(Name of Board, etc.)

of the  of 
(Name of MUNICIPALITY) (County) 

 meeting held on the _______day at a 

of ______________________ A.D. ________________. 

Print Signed Name

MDOT 2207B (05/21) Page 2 of 2 

 Title

Signed 



 

 
 
 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM                                              AGENDA ITEM NO: __ 9D 02122024  
 

FOR MEETING DATE:  February 12, 2024  
 

SUBJECT:   Hiring Full-Time FF/EO 24-hour position  
 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

I authorize the hiring of Joseph Coudron to the position of full-time FF/EO within the Fire Department. 
 
 
 

Financing Cost: Budgeted   

 

 

Source:           General Fund 

 

 

Grant   

 

 

Other Fire Operations

Are these funds currently budgeted?  Yes   X  No  

 

Other comments or notes:  _____________ 
 
 

 
Submitted by: Jairus Baird, Fire Chief 

 

Recommendation:  

 
Direction:  In order for an item to be included in the agenda this form must be completed and signed by the 
department head, committee chairperson, etc. requesting board action. This form is to be complete and 
accompany any and all requests submitted to the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees for official action. It 
indicates that the item has received proper administrative consideration prior to its presentation to the Board. 
The completed form and supporting documentation must be received in the Manager’s office NO LATER 
THAN NOON THE THURSDAY PRECEDING THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING. Any request 
presented without this form or after the deadline will be considered incomplete and returned for resubmission. 

 

The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 



 

 
 
 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM                                              AGENDA ITEM NO: __ 9E 02122024  

 

FOR MEETING DATE:  02-12-2023  
 

SUBJECT:   Request to enter into Federal Grant with RCKC for Traffic Pre-Emption System  
 

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Fire Department   
 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I authorize the Fire Department to apply for a Regional Federal Highway Safety Grant 
through the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County with an expected match being $161,706.82 coming from 
Fire Capital over two years.  

 
 
 
 

Financing Cost: $161,706.82 split between 2024 and 2025  

 

 

Source:         General Fund 

 

 

Grant   

 

 

Other   Fire Capital

Are these funds currently budgeted?  Yes   X  No  

 

Other comments or notes:  _____________ 
 
 

 
Submitted by: Jairus Baird, Fire Chief 

 

Recommendation:  

 
Direction:  In order for an item to be included in the agenda this form must be completed and signed by the 
department head, committee chairperson, etc. requesting board action. This form is to be complete and 
accompany any and all requests submitted to the Kalamazoo Township Board of Trustees for official action. It 
indicates that the item has received proper administrative consideration prior to its presentation to the Board. 
The completed form and supporting documentation must be received in the Manager’s office NO LATER 
THAN NOON THE THURSDAY PRECEDING THE NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING. Any request 
presented without this form or after the deadline will be considered incomplete and returned for resubmission. 

 

The mission of Kalamazoo Township is to provide government services that promote a safe, healthy, accessible, and 
economically viable community to live, work, learn and play. 



 

 
 
 

1720 Riverview Drive 
Kalamazoo, MI 49004-1056 

Tele: (269) 381-8080 
Fax: (269) 381-3550 

www.ktwp.org 
 
 

 

 

 

 

To:  Kalamazoo Township Board 
From:  Jairus Baird, Fire Chief 
Date:  Feb. 12, 2024 
 
Traffic preemption systems are integrated technology installed on vehicles and traffic signals that allows 
authorized emergency vehicles to “request” the green light from the traffic light controller. 
 
Back in the Summer of 2023, Road Commission of Kalamazoo County (RCKC) informed all fire departments of 
the possibility to seek Federal funding for installation of traffic preemption systems.  The infrastructure that needs 
to be installed on each traffic signal has already been embraced and installed in all new traffic light installations by 
RCKC, with the technology already installed along Mosel Ave. during those most recent upgrades.   
 
Without the assistance of a grant, total cost to implement a program would be in excess of $400,000.  If the grant 
is awarded, total cost to outfit Kalamazoo Township’s remaining intersections, as well as the 17 vehicles in the 
fire department would be approx. $81,000 per year over two years.  First payment for engineering would be 
required near the end of 2024 and the other $81,000 in 2025 to support construction and installation costs.  Total 
anticipated match from Kalamazoo Township is $161,706.82 
 
Comstock has already installed this technology in both their vehicles and intersections with great results.  
Oshtemo Township is working to join this regional grant offering along with Richland and Texas.  Having this 
technology installed in our auto-aid partners amplifies the amount of benefits we will receive with us being able to 
get to calls in their area safer and faster, while allowing them the same when responding into Kalamazoo 
Township.  Added long term benefits once the infrastructure is installed in Kalamazoo Township could include 
expansion into the vehicles of the Police Department. 
 
RCKC will be handling all aspects of the grant, they just need supporting funding from each municipality to bring 
this project to fruition.  Traffic preemption will make responding safer in Kalamazoo Township, not just to Fire 
Department vehicles, but also to every member in the motoring public during our response.  Funds are available in 
Fire Capital to support this purchase should it be awarded.   
 
 
 
 

  

                          



Opticom ® GPS System

• A system that features global 
positioning satellite (GPS) and 
embedded radio technology

What is it?

• Using a global network of GPS 
satellites, vehicle equipment calculates 
speed, direction, longitude and 
latitude information

• Intersection equipment is programmed 
with approach map to define corridors 
for priority control activity

• As vehicle enters intersection’s radio 
range it sends updated speed, position, 
identification information, and turn 
signal status every second

• Intersection equipment sends priority 
request to the phase selector

How does it 
work?

• Safe, efficient results for emergency and 
transit vehicles

• Higher level of intersection 
management and control

Benefits

Components:

Intersection: Radio, Interface Panel, 
Phase Selector

Vehicle: Radio/GPS Control Unit, 
Antenna



Emergency Vehicle Preemption (EVP)

G L O B A L  T R A F F I C  T E C H N O L O G I E S

*Independent studies available upon request

DECREASE
LIABILITY 
FOR CRASHES 
WITH OTHER 
MOTORISTS

PREVENT
INJURIES 
AND 
RELATED 
COSTS

QUICK 
PAYBACK 

ON YOUR 
INVESTMENT

OFFER

BENEFITS

REDUCE 
INTERSECTION

CRASH 
RATES 70%

by up to

IMPROVE
RESPONSE TIMES

25%
by up to

for Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS)

Opticom™ helps 
save lives and 
preserve resources.
Emergency responders are the lifeline of 

their communities. Delays arriving on scene 

can put property and lives at risk. Even their 

own. That’s why fire and EMS agencies 

choose Opticom™ traffic signal priority 

control solutions. Our reliable, scalable 

systems help ensure safer, faster on-scene 

arrival—while maximizing resources and 

your investment.


	Board Meeting Agenda 02122024.pdf (p.1-2)
	December 11 2023 Work Session meeting minutes (1).pdf (p.3-4)
	December 11 2023 Board meeting minutes.pdf (p.5-9)
	Feb132024bills.pdf (p.10-20)
	Jan2024CheckDisbursementReport.pdf (p.21-37)
	Copy of Jan2024CheckEFTregister.pdf (p.38-39)
	KABA January 2024.pdf (p.40-48)
	Kalamazoo Township January 2024 Special Permit (Owner Request).pdf (p.1)
	Kalamazoo Township January 2024 Commercial Permit List.pdf (p.2-3)
	January 2024  YTD Permits  Revenue by Jurisdiction.pdf (p.4-5)
	Kalamazoo Township January 2024 Special Permit (Property Maintenance).pdf (p.6-7)
	Kalamazoo Township January 2024 Residential Permit List.pdf (p.8-9)

	Monthly Fire Report December 2023.pdf (p.49-58)
	Planning and Zonning.pdf (p.59-65)
	INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE of the planning commission
	PLanning COmmission MEMBERSHIP
	Planning Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 2023 Annual Planning Report to Township Board & 2024 Planning Commission Work Plan
	PLanning Commission Meetings

	introduction and purpose of the ZOning BOard of Appeals
	Zoning Board of Appeals membership
	Zoning Board of Appeals Meetings
	Variances (zba)
	2023 in Review
	Reviews (planning commission)
	and more…
	Home Occupation Ordinance
	Master Plan Update
	Sol Smart
	Marijuana Business Fencing Requirements
	2024-2029 Capital Improvements Program (CIP)

	kalamazoo township master plan Adoption
	Schedule of Regulations
	Other ordinance updates
	wellhead protection ordinance
	wind and solar energy


	TK-2023 Community Survey Report-Final (003).pdf (p.66-178)
	Hazard Migitigate plan 2023.pdf (p.179-180)
	Agenda  for Hazard Mitigation Plan.pdf (p.1)
	Local Jurisdiction Resolution of Adoption.pdf (p.2)

	Williams Architect Porposal.pdf3.pdf (p.181-186)
	2024-02-12 Williams Architect proposal (002).pdf (p.1)
	2024-02-12 Williams Proposal Memo.pdf (p.2)
	2024 02 02 Williams Architects Additional Services Proposal - Kalamazoo Township Planning Services.pdf (p.3-6)

	MDOT Preformance.pdf (p.187-189)
	2024-02-12 MDOT Performance Resolution for Municipalities Agenda Item.pdf (p.1)
	2024-02-12 MDOT Performance Resolution for Municipalities.pdf (p.2-3)

	Hiring Full-Time FF-EO - Agenda Request (003).pdf (p.190)
	Traffic Preemption Grant with RCKC -use.pdf (p.191-194)
	Traffic Preemption Grant with RCKC - Agenda Request (003).pdf (p.1)
	Memo traffic Preemption Grant with RCKC.pdf (p.2)
	2Traffic Preemption GPS System Parts and Function (003).pdf (p.3)
	Slide 1

	1Traffic Preemption Benefits of Use (003).pdf (p.4)


	AGENDA ITEM NO: 9B  02122023
	FOR MEETING DATE:               Monday, February 12, 2024
	SUBJECT:               Agreement with Williams Architects
	REQUESTING DEPARTMENT:                Building Committee
	Financing Cost:                   $35,500.00
	General Fund:            X
	Grant: 
	Other:       
	Are these funds currently budgeted Yes:     
	No:         X
	Submitted by:                 Chief Bryan Ergang
	Suggested Motion: The Township board review and support the facilities planning committee recommendation, and approve the proposed agreement with Williams Architects for additional services for an initial amount of $35,500.  
	Other comments: This agreement has been approved to form by the Township Attorney, and has the unanimous support of the members of the facilities planning committee.  
	Manager's Recommendation: 
	Clear Form button: 
	Text1: Charter Township of Kalamazoo
	Text2.0: Permit Manager, Flock Safety 
	Text2.1: 
	Text2.2: 
	Text2.3: 
	Text3: Board of Trustees
	Text4: Charter Township of Kalamazoo
	Text5: Kalamazoo
	Text6: board of trustees regular meeting
	Text7: 12th
	Text8: February
	Text9: 2024
	Text11: Township Supervisor
	Print Signed Name: Donald Martin


